Public Documen{tﬁPack

D2 ISLINGTON

== For a more equal future

Resources Department
Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD

AGENDA FOR THE HEALTH AND CARE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Members of the Health and Care Scrutiny Committee are summoned to a meeting,
which will be held in The Council Chamber, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on, 23
January 2024 at 7.30 pm.

Enquiries to :  Samineh Richardson

Tel : democracy@islington.gov.uk

E-mail : democracy@islington.gov.uk

Despatched : 15 January 2024

Membership Substitute Members
Councillors: Substitutes:

Councillor Jilani Chowdhury (Chair) Councillor Benali Hamdache
Councillor Joseph Croft (Vice-Chair) Councillor Dave Poyser
Councillor Janet Burgess MBE Councillor Heather Staff

Councillor Tricia Clarke
Councillor Fin Craig
Councillor Mick Gilgunn
Councillor Caroline Russell
Councillor Claire Zammit

Quorum: is 4 Councillors

Councillor Flora Williamson



10.

11.

12.

Formal Matters Page
Introductions

Apologies for Absence

Declaration of Substitute Members

Declarations of Interests

Minutes of the previous meeting

Chair's Report

Public Questions

For members of the public to ask questions relating to any subject on the
meeting agenda under Procedure Rule 70.5. Alternatively, the Chair may
opt to accept questions from the public during the discussion on each
agenda item.

Items for Decision/Discussion Page
Whittington Hospital Performance Update 1-118
Scrutiny Review - Age UK 119-128

Executive Member Update

Quarter 2 Performance Report Adult Social Care 129 - 138
Work Programme 139 - 140
Urgent non-exempt items (if any)

Any non-exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered
urgently by reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will
be agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes.

Exclusion of Press and Public

To consider whether, in view of the nature of the remaining items on the

2



agenda, it is likely to involve the disclosure of exempt or confidential
information within the terms of the Access to Information Procedure
Rules in the Constitution and, if so, whether to exclude the press and
public during discussion thereof.

E. Confidential / Exempt Items Page
F. Urgent Exempt Items (if any)

Any exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently
by reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will be
agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes.

The next meeting of the Health and Care Scrutiny Committee will be on 4 March 2024
Please note all committee agendas, reports and minutes are available on the
council's website:

www.democracy.islington.qov.uk

WEBCASTING NOTICE

This meeting wil be fimed by the Council for ive and/or subsequent broadcast on the Council's
website. The whole of the meeting wil be fimed, except where there are confidential or exempt
items, and the footage wil be on the website for 6 months. A copy of it wil also be retained in
accordance with the Council's data retention policy.

If you participate in the meeting you wil be deemed by the Council to have consented to being
fimed. By entering the Council Chamber you are also consenting to being fimed and to the
possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. If
you do not wish to have your image captured you should sit in the public gallery area, overlooking
the Chamber.

In addttion, the Council is obliged by law to alow members of the public to take photographs, fim,
audio-record, and report on the proceedings at public meetings. The Council wil only seek to
prevent this should it be undertaken in a disruptive or otherwise inappropriate manner.

If you have any queries regarding webcasting or the recording of meetings by the public, please
contact Democratic Services on democracy @islington.gov.uk



http://www.democracy.islington.gov.uk/
mailto:democracy@islington.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



K K AKRIKE ) NHS

E OQ U I TY Whittington Health

NHS Trust

Quality
Account:
23-24



KK AKRKE NHS

E QU I TY Whittington Health

NHS Trust

2023-2024 Quality Account Priorities

Reducing health
inequalities in our
local population

Reducing harm :
Improving access

and attendance
for appointments

from hospital
acquired
deconditioning




C‘/\_/_‘\_/CO NHS

E O U | Whittington Health

NHS Trust

Reducing harm from hospital acquired de-conditioning:
Goals

P *To ensure 100% of patients have documentation of a full pressure ulcer risk assessment within 6 hours of admission, and an action plan
re S S u re a re (including all required pressure relieving equipment required) to manage risks identified in place within 24 hours of admission.

D 1 h & *To manage 4 patients per month (2 from Islington borough, 2 from Haringey borough) via the delirium discharge pathway.
I S C a rg e *To reduce medically optimised patients that are unable to be discharged by 50% daily.
*To implement pathway for ‘Trial without Catheter’ (TWOC) at home, reducing the length of stay by at least one day.

R d = Ad - g *To utilise up to 28 Virtual Ward beds daily, including 8 technology enabled virtual ward patients and those on the delirium pathway.
e u C I n g I I I I S S I O n S eFor Urgent Response and Recovery Care Group to ensure patients are seen within the national guidance of 2 to 24 hours for >80% of referrals

eFor patients with Dementia & Learning Disability who are admitted to hospital to have eating and drinking preferences and information about
N t t support required available within 24 hours of their admission.

u r I I O n *This requires 100% of this cohort to have accurate and up-to-date next of kin and emergency contacts who will be able to supply this
information, and for them to be contacted in regard to the individual’s care needs within 24 hours of admission.




C‘/\_/“\_/_‘\_@ NHS

E O U | Whittington Health

NHS Trust

Reducing harm from hospital acquired de-
conditioning: Progress (Q1 & Q2)

Pressure Care:

7 abed

* Nursing documentation has been reviewed and updated to included Pressure Care Assessment (as a bundle
rather than individual note templates)

* Documentation now includes prompts that signpost to what further assessments need to be completed and any
actions that need to be undertaken
* Wider Pressure Care Improvements include:
« Acute equipment delivery service being increased from a 5 to 6 day service
* Nomination of Skin Care Ambassadors in over 90% of clinical areas
* Provision of guidance of skin assessments for a range of skin tones
« Ongoing training for registered and non-registered clinical staff



C‘/\_/“\_/_‘\_/\D NS

E O U | Whittington Health

NHS Trust

Reducing harm from hospital acquired de-
conditioning: Progress (Q1 & Q2)

Discharge & Reducing Admissions:
* 20 Virtual Ward Beds with 8 remote monitoring are in place, with plan to add an additional 8 frailty beds.

« 2 patients per month from Islington are currently being managed via delirium discharge pathway, with delay in implementation secondary
to delay in funding access. Delays with the Haringey pathway ongoing due to availability of 24-hour carers.

G abed

» Islington Rapid Access & Haringey Urgent Response teams have now merged and work together to enable patients to be seen within the
national guidance of between 2 and 24 hours.

* Implementation of Flow Programme aiming to reduce medically optimised patients — A ‘home for the holidays’ flow programme took place
in December prior to the Christmas break. The Same Day Emergency Care (SDEC) saw over 100 patients each day which avoided
admissions and attendances to the Emergency department.

* The team worked with the integrated discharge team and ward teams to gather an accurate picture of expected discharges each day.

* The care of elderly wards are reviewing the ‘SHOP’ board round model which relates to Sick patients, Home patients, Other patients and
Planning of care to review the criteria of patients who have not met the criteria to reside.

« The Trial Without Catheter at home service has started, this has been delayed due to funding issues. So far less than 10 patients have
been streamed to this pathway and we hope those numbers will increase from Q3 onwards.



C‘/\_/“\_/_‘\_@ NHS

E O U | Whittington Health

NHS Trust

Reducing harm from hospital acquired de-
conditioning: Progress (Q1 & Q2)

Nutrition:

9 abed

« Speech and Language Therapy, Dietetic and Nursing note templates have been updated to include dietary preference,
cultural and allergy considerations

* Nutrition was focussed on for a month in Back to the Floor programme

* An increase in the percentage of nutritional screening across the wards was noted as a result of this awareness raising

« Band 6 nurses on the wards are being recruited as additional posts and will be Nutrition Champions




C‘/\_/“\_/_‘\_/\D NS

E O U | Whittington Health

NHS Trust

Improving Access and Attendance for Appointments:
Goals

® For 60% of outpatients to be using Zesty by end of March 2024
e For DNA rates reduced in line with booking amendments functionality being introduced by end of March 2024

e For patients to be able to complete single eligibility criteria for multiple transport requests by end of March 2024.

e For clear communication and guidelines on how to access Transport to be developed in conjunction with the transport
provider, demonstrating an impact of reducing the number of patient complaints relating to Transport being received
by March 2024.

e For outpatient letters to be reviewed and updated to ensure location correctly matches hospital signage.




C‘/\_/_‘\_/C/\D NHDS

E O U | Whittington Health

NHS Trust

Improving Access and Attendance for Appointments:
Goals

¢ To improve uptake and attendance of Wood Green CDC walk-in and booked appointments through
offering a range of patient information (in different languages and different formats such as easy

v read, Braille, electronic and written formats) and by improving wayfinding to the CDC within the
\NOOdgree n CDC Mall, by end of March 2024.

¢ To improve accessibility of booking appointments by introducing an electronic self-booking system
for Wood Green CDC services by end of March 2024. Success will be measured via improvements in
patient surveys, uptake of electronic app & booking rates of appointments.

Accessible
i n fo r m a t i O n fo r eTo implen’_lent accessible information for those with Learning Disabilities (leaflets & videos) relating

to Outpatients, Emergency Department, Theatres, Discharge, Compliments and Complaints.




C‘/\_/“\_/_‘\_/\D NS

E O U | Whittington Health

NHS Trust

Improving Access and Attendance for
Appointments: Progress (Q1 & Q2)

Zesty:

6 obed

* No new functions have been applied to the app in Q1 and Q2, the focus has been concentrating on getting
patients onboarded and using the application.

* In Q1 23/24 — 7,749 patients on signed up to use Zesty and in Q2 23/24 — 10,337 patients signed up to use
Zesty.

* The Zesty SOP has been approved and is to go live.
Transport:

« DHL have confirmed that once completed, the Transport eligibility form is valid for a month, eliminating the need
to complete a form for every appointment within that month.

* Anew Transport Service Group has been implemented aiming to improve engagement with clinical users and
improve services.



OK K AR E NHS
Y

E O U I T Whittington Health

Improving Access and Attendance for
Appointments: Progress (Q1 & Q2)

Letters:

* 1008 letters identified as having hospital site location associated.

* Long term plan to create central letter library to enable changes to be made efficiently & Consistently
* The letter locations have been aligned with hospital signage

0T abed

* Volunteer ‘way finders’ in place to assist patients and members of the public find clinic and ward locations.
Woodgreen CDC:

* In the process of expansion, which has affected the Phlebotomy area, reducing from 3 to 1 couch availability. Couches
should return to 3 by the end of January 2024.

« Additional Phlebotomy clinics due opened at the end of November 2023 due to high demand.

« Walk-In patients continue to be accommodated, although are popular and therefore become oversubscribed, impacting
waiting times. Daily attendances capped to ensure appointments not oversubscribed.

« Swiftqueue introduced to support management of waiting times and oversubscription which has been successful in
reducing waiting times for patients reducing complaints.



C‘/\_/“\_/_‘\_@ NHS

E O U | Whittington Health

NHS Trust

Improving Access and Attendance for
Appointments: Progress (Q1 & Q2)

Accessible Information for patients with Learning Disabilities:
* Leaflets and videos have been created.

Videos are now live, however views on video remain low and further work is needed on ensuring service users are able
to access the information.

TT obed

Feedback on usability is being sought.

Easy read letters and letters are under review and in development.

A new Patient Information Group is currently in implementation phase, with involvement from LD Clinical Nurse
Specialist to ensure accessible information is considered.




C‘/\_/_‘\_/C/\D NS

E O U | Whittington Health

NHS Trust

Reducing Health Inequalities in our local population:
Goals

° e Deliver training to 60% of ED staff to educate on the condition, ensuring unconscious bias does not exist in the
treatment of patients with sickle cell anaemia by end of March 2024.
I C ‘ ‘ ® Ensure 80% of sickle cell patients receive 1st dose of pain relief within 30mins of attendance to ED by end of March

2024.

Le a r n i n g D i S a b i I it i e S * To develop and implement training packages by end of March 2024 for all clinical staff about:1. Treating and

supporting those with Learning Disabilities; 2. Treating and supporting those with Autism.

. ¢ To improve patient experience by offering 100% of patients with Learning Disabilities access to care bags (including
& A u t I S I ' l items aimed to improve this patient cohort’s comfort within this environment) when attending ED by August 2023.

P ro Sta te C a n C e r ¢ To expand on the previous success of Prostate cancer events, we will hold up to 6 specific cancer events by the end of
March 2024.




OK K AR E NHS
Y

E O U I T Whittington Health

NHS Trust

Reducing health inequalities in our local
population: Progress (Q1 & Q2)

Sickle Cell:

* A new data collection tool has been developed to accurately capture the number of patients receiving first dose
treatment within 30 minutes.

* QI project around delivering ED training is ongoing - 23 current nursing staff are trained, with future dates in February
planned which will train a further 25 staff.

* E-learning package implementation in progress
» Back to the Floor Sickle Cell session planned for Q3 to involve story direct from patient

¢T abed

Learning Disability & Autism:

« Training on Learning Disabilities has been rolled out via staff induction with quarter day training days offered
* The service has applied to Charitable Funds to create a video targeting Autism population.

* The Oliver McGown training package is nhow mandated for all staff

« The Care Bags in ED are now live and have received positive feedback from staff and patients on their usefulness in
supporting patient's within the ED environment.



C‘/\_/“\_/_‘\_@ NHS

E O U | Whittington Health

NHS Trust

Reducing health inequalities in our local
population: Progress (Q1 & Q2)

Prostate Cancer:

« Event held on 4th July with the topic: Intimacy for Men following a Cancer Diagnosis. After the discussion in this
workshop, it was decided that the patients would like to write a letter to their team with information about how
they would like to be treated and regarding the delivery of information. This will then be shared with the urology
team with the aim to shape service improvement.

T abed

« 6 week CBT course held for coping with Hot Flushes & Night Sweats for prostate cancer patients on hormone
therapy.

« Tree of Life Workshops held (open to all patients)
« New HOPE course commenced in August

* Remote surveillance cancer support group (for bowel cancer patients) was established, with meditation and
mindfulness sessions as well as practical advice, with positive patient feedback and identifying the opportunity to
use this format for other Cancer diagnoses



K OK K AR E NHS

E OQ U I TY Whittington Health

NHS Trust

Listening to our patients

GT abed




C\/\j/_\\_/CX:) NHS

E O U | Whittington Health

NHS Trust

Inpatient Survey 2022 - Top 5

Top 5

Feedback - :
being asked to : Offeredfood : Reasons for

givetheir : thatmet changing
viewsonthe : dietary : wardsatnight

: Inclusion in
discussion
about care
by doctors

Able to take
own
medicine

9T abed

quality of their : requirements :  explained
care :




C‘/\_/_‘\_/_‘\_O

E QU

/T obed

Noise from
other patients
not being
prevented
from sleeping
by noise at
night from
other patients

Noise
Introduced
sleep well

packs

Consisting of
an eye mask

Cleanliness
of rooms ar
wards
the hospital
room or
ward being
clean

Cleanliness
Joint PET &
facilities

: meetings &

and ear plugs :

: PET involved

in cleaning
audits

Including
patients
nurses
including
them in
discussions
about their
care

After the
operation
being told
how the
operation or
procedure
had gone

What we are doing

Including
patients
Nurses to
explain to
patients that
they do bedside
handovers

After the
operation
inpatient ward
leaflet at every
bedside which
informs patients
who to speak to
if they have a
concern

Inpatient Survey 2022 -Bottom 5

Bottom 5

Meal times

: being able to
: get hospital

food outside

of set meal
times, if
needed

Meal times
inpatient leaflet
advising
patients to ask
staff if they
require food
outside of
mealtimes

NHS

Whittington Health

NHS Trust



C‘/\_/“\_/_‘\_O

=

8T abed

NHS

Whittington Health
NHS Trust

Cancer Patient Experience 2022

Headline findings

Overall experience

8.88

Respondents’ average rating of

care scored from very poor to

very good (scale from 0 to 10)
(8.91 in 2021).

A

Support from your GP
practice

65.4%

of respondents who had
contacted their GP practice said
that the referral for diagnosis
was explained in a way they
could completely understand
(64.2% in 2021).

Diagnostic tests

78.3%

said that the results of
diagnostic tests were explained
to them in a way they could
completely understand (78.7%
in 2021).

O o
2

Finding out that you had
cancer

75.9%

said that when they were first
told that they had cancer, they
had been given the option of
having a family member, carer
or friend with them (70.1% in
2021).




C‘/\_/“\_/_‘\_O

E O U |

NHS

Whittington Health
NHS Trust

Cancer Patient Experience 2022

Headline findings

o
Q
«Q
) m
H
(o]
Support from a main contact
person
91.5%

said they had a main contact
person within the team looking
after them who would support
them through treatment (91.9%
in 2021).

P

Support from hospital staff
75.5%

said they definitely received the
right amount of support for their
overall health and wellbeing
from hospital staff (75.7% in
2021).

AoQO

Deciding on the best
treatment

80.0%

said family and/or carers were

definitely involved as much as
they wanted them to be in

decisions about their treatment
options (74.7% in 2021).

Care planning

71.1%

said that before their treatment

started, they had a discussion
with a member of the team
looking after them about their
needs or concerns (71.7% in
2021).



OK K AR E NHS

E OQ U I TY Whittington Health

Largest positive & negative change

Question 2021 2022 Change
Q12 - Patient was told they could have a family member, carer or friend with them when told diagnosis T01% 75.9% +5.8%

o 02? - Family and/or carers wgre definitely involved as much as the patient wanted them to be in 74.7% 80.0% +5.3%

) decisions about treatment options

(®) Q32 - Faherlnls Igmlly, nlr someone close, was definitely able to talk to a member of the team looking 60.6% 65.6% +5.0%

D after the patient in hospital

B Q52 - Patient has had a review of cancer care by GP practice 18.0% 20.7% +2.7%
Q49 - Care team gave family, or someone close, all the information needed to help care for the patient 55.4% 57.9% +2.6%
at home
The five scores with the largest negative change
Question 2021 2022 Change
Q34 - Patient was always able to get help from ward staff when needed 76.2% 72.5% -3.7%
QO7 - Patient felt the length of time waiting for diagnostic test results was about right 81.9% 78.4% -3.5%
Q35 - Patient was always able to discuss womies and fears with hospital staff 66.8% 64.2% =2.7%
Q31 - Patient had confidence and trust in all of the team locking after them during their stay in hospital 80.9% 78.5% -2.3%
Q29 - Patient was offered information about how to get financial help or benefits 69.5% 67.5% -2.0%




C‘/\_/“\_/_‘\_O

T¢ abed

E O U |

What we are doing

88%
National score
95%

Q9. Enough privacy
was always given to
patient when receiving
diagnostic test results.

90%
National score
95%

Q19. Patient found
advice from main
contact person was
very or guite helpful.

Liaise with OP manager All patients to have contact

egarding space for CNS’ card for key worker CNS.
to have difficult CNS and CSW education
conversations. focus.

ACCEND framework.

ACCEND framework roll out
across NCL.
CNS development role
funded by NCLCA across

52%
National score

70%

Q33 Patient was
always involved in
decisions about their
care and treatment
whilst in hospital.

AO and site-specific teams
to work together to identify
those in need of more
information. Focus on SDM
with patients.

Work with ward staff.

AD referrals triaged and
streamlined to tumour site
where required.

CNS’ visit IP & join ward
rounds where needed.
Contact sheet for CNS"
provided to all wards.

73%
National score 88%

Q37. Patient was always treated
with respect and dignity while in
hospital.

Meet with ward managers /
matrons.
Review FFT for wards linked to
cancer patients.
Patient focus group.

NHS

Whittington Health
NHS Trust

78%
National score 86%

Q46. Patient was given information
that they could access about support
in dealing with immediate side effects

from treatment.

Contact cards for patients on
treatment - with 24-hour
Education to chemotherapy unit on
UKONS triage.

Complimentary therapies for patients
with side effects from treatments.eet

with ward managers [ matrons.
Review FFT for wards linked to cancer

patients.
Patient focus group.




OK K AR E NHS

E O U | Whittington Health

ljréent & Emergency care 2022

Top 5 in the league table

Section 4 - Care &
Triumphs treatment

Comparison with other trusts
within our region

Your trust section score =
8.0
About the same

22 abed

Whittington Health are in the top 5 for b sections Section 5 - Tests
and at the top for 2, with the highest scores in our Your trust section score =

region 8.1
About the same

Top of the league table

Section 8 -
Section 2 - Waiting Section 3 - Doctors & Respect & dignity
Your trust section score = : nurses Your trust section score =
4.8 : Your trust section score = 91
About the same : 8.4 ’

Somewhat better than expected

Somewhat better than expected




O\_/\j/_\\_@ o NHS

Whittington Health
E Q U | g NHS Trust

Urgent & Emergency Care 2022

To p ﬂ‘u’e SCQOres (compared with national average)
Section 2 Waiting
Q7. How long did you wait before you first spoke to a nurse or
doctor? Our Trust 6.0 (national average 4.9 - highest score 7.0)

Section 3 Doctors and nurses
Q16. If you had any anxieties or fears about your condition Higher than the
or treatment, did a doctor or nurse discuss them with you? national average

Our Trust 7.5 (national average 6.4 - highest score 7.5)

Section 2 Waiting

Q8. Sometimes, people will first talk to a doctor or nurse
and be examined later. From the time you arrived, how long
did you wait before being examined by a doctor or nurse?
Our Trust 6.0 (national average 5.0 - highest score 6.4)

gz abed

Section 2 Waiting

Q11. While you were waiting, were you able to get help
with your condition or symptoms from a member of staff?
Our Trust 5.6 (national average 4.7 - highest score 7.5)

Section 2 Waiting
Q12. Overall, how long did your visit to A&E last?
Our Trust 6.1 (national average 5.2- highest score 8.0)




C‘/\_/“\_/_‘\_O NHS

E © ) | Whittington Health

NHS Trust

What we are doing

Bottom five scores {compared with national average)

Section 7 Leaving A&E

Q42. Before you left the hospital, did a member of staff

discuss your transport arrangements for leaving A&E?
(national average 4.0 - highest score 6.9)

Section 7 Leaving A&E Lower than the
Q43. Did hospital staff discuss with you whether you may national average =
need further health or social care services after leaving A&E? U pdated aCtlons
(e.g. services from GP, physiotherapist or community nurse, or
assistance from social services or the voluntary sector) Our

(national average 7.2 - highest score 8.6) m did :o:emed

7z abed

staff discuss your transport
Section 6 Environment and facilities v s for leaving

Q31. In your opinion, how clean was the A&E department? Q43. Did hospital staff

. . discuss with you whether
(national average 8.2- highest score 9.1) Section 7 Leaving ALE | you may need further health Discussions
or social care services after | reqarding discharge Duncan - Lead
laving checkist for junior clinician

Section 3 Doctors and nurses Q44. After leaving ASE, was doctors.

H the care and support you
Q18. Did doctors or nurses talk to each other about you as apecid avelstiowl
if you weren’t there? you needed it?

(national average 8.9 - highest score 9.5) Q31. In your opinion, how | YVeeKly cleanliness | Domestic and porters

Section & Environment clean was the ASE levelsr_.i‘ied(and tea_mlaam,ED
Section 7 Leaving A&E and facilities department? any staffing ssues. i

Q44. After leaving A&E, was the care and support you
expected available when you needed it?
(national average 7.0 - highest score 8.5)




, )
‘ . v

——

.“\i
N 2

e



Contents

Part 1: Statement on Quality from the Chief Executive 3

Part 2: Priorities for Improvement and statements of assurance from the Board

2.1 Priorities for Improvement 2022/23 ... 6
2.2 Statements of assurance from the Board 10
Participation in Clinical Audits 2021/22. 11
Participating in Clinical Research 15
CQUIN Payment Framework . 17
Registration with the Care Quality Commission____ . 17
Secondary Uses Service 17
Information Governance Assessment Report____ 18
Data Quality 19
ENd Of Life Care 19
Data Quality 19
Learning from Deatns 21
Percentage of Patients 0-15 and 16+ readmitted within 28 days of
DISCN AN G 24
The trust’s responsiveness to the Personal Needs of its Patients 25
Staff Friends and Family Tests 28
Patient Friends and Family Tests____ 35
Venous Thromboembolism 36
Health Care Acquired Infection (HCA)._ . 38
Patient Safety INCIdeNtS. 41
Freedomto Speak Up 44
Guardian for Safe working hours (GOSWH) 45
Seven Day Service Standards____ oo 45
Part 3: Review of Quality Performance 2021/22 46
Part 4: Other Information 51
Local Performance Indicators 51
Annex 1: Statements from External Stakeholders 53
Annex 2: Statements of Director’s Responsibilities for the Quality Report__ 56
Appendix 1: National Mandatory and Non-Mandatory Audits 2021/22 58
Appendix 2: Sub contracted services 62
Appendix 3: Patients 0-15 and 16+ readmitted within 28 days of discharge 63
Appendix 4: NHS staff Survey Comparison 2019/2020 64
Appendix 5: Actions related to COVID-19 from the letter from NHS England’s Chief Nursing
Officer and Chief Medical Officer (June 2020) .65
Appendix 6: Local changes and outcomes from 2021/22 staff survey | 68

Page 26 Page | 2



Part 1. Statement on Quality from the Chief Executive

: ~ Welcome to the 2022/23 Quality Account for Whittington Health NHS Trust. It is
my first opportunity to sign off the annual quality account since | joined
Whittington Health as Chief Executive in June 2022. | was delighted to join an
organisation with a well-established commitment to ensuring that it offers high

| quality, person-centred, compassionate and above all, safe care. That
commitment, and our passion for constantly challenging ourselves to do better for
our patients and our colleagues, are undiminished despite another very busy
year.

The past twelve months have been characterised by ongoing very high demand for our urgent and
emergency care services, as well as our continued commitment to treat everyone requiring planned
care and cancer treatment as quickly and safely as possible. Whilst the two priorities are interlinked,
they are often in competition with each other. When there are lots of patients who require an
inpatient bed in an emergency, it reduces the number of beds available to admit patients for planned
care. And during periods of industrial action, we have to prioritise maintaining safe emergency care
services, which reduces our capacity to provide outpatient and surgical care.

In that context, we have remained very focused on emergency care flow through our hospital and
continue to work to ensure that every patient can be discharged as soon as it is medically
appropriate and safe to do so.

This is not without its challenges and requires extremely close working with local GPs, social care
colleagues, and other partners. However, it is pleasing to note from the data in this report that over
the year the number of people who have required readmission to hospital within 28 days of
discharge has fallen, demonstrating that the quality of the holistic care we provide has not been
diminished by the need to prioritise efficient flow.

This is one of many examples in healthcare of when doing the right thing for patients (discharging
people as soon as it is safe to do so) is also the most efficient way to work. Whilst we can never
eliminate readmissions entirely, having patients move in and out of the hospital in an unplanned way
is neither good care nor a good use of resources.

This is just one aspect of what makes for quality care. Quality accounts provide an important view ‘in
the round’ of how well we are living up to our ambition to provide the best care possible to all our
patients, whether that care is provided in our hospital, in one of our many community locations, our
dental centres or in their homes.

Our Quality Account continues to be a key method for giving patients, their loved ones, our

community, and stakeholders a view of how well we are performing. Despite some of the challenges
described above, more than 8 out of 10 people who received care from us during the year would

Page 27 Page | 3



recommend us if their friends or family needed care or treatment. This is a testament to the
professionalism, dedication, and continued commitment of our staff, for which | thank them all.

| confirm that this Quality Account will be discussed at the Trust Board, and | declare that to the best
of my knowledge the information contained in this Quality Account is accurate.

Helen Brown
Chief Executive
Whittington Health NHS Trust

Page 28 Page | 4



About the Trust

Whittington Health is one of London’s leading integrated care organisations — helping local people to
live longer, healthier lives.

We provide hospital and community care services to over half a million people living in Islington and
Haringey as well as those living in Barnet, Enfield, Camden and Hackney. Whittington Health
provided over 40 acute and 60 community health services in 2021/22. In addition, we provide dental
services in 10 London boroughs. Every day, we aim to provide high quality and safe healthcare to
people either in our hospital, in their homes or in nearby clinics. We are here to support our patients
throughout their healthcare journey — this is what makes us an integrated care organisation.

Our services and our approach are driven by our vision.

We have an excellent reputation for being innovative, responsive, and flexible to the changing clinical
needs of the local population. We are treating more patients than ever before and are dedicated to
improving services to deliver the best care for our patients, with a clear focus on integrating care for
women, children, and the adult frail.

Our vision is: Helping local people live longer, healthier lives.

What we do: Lead the way in the provision of excellent integrated community and hospital
services

Our 2019/24 strategy has four main objectives:

Deliver
outstanding
safe,
compassionate
care

Empower,
support and
develop
engaged staff

Integrate care

with partners

and promote
health and
wellbeing

Page 29 Page | 5



What is a Quality Account?

Quality Accounts are annual reports to the public from providers of NHS healthcare that detail
information about the quality of services they deliver. They are designed to assure patients, service
users, carers, the public and commissioners (purchasers of healthcare), that healthcare providers are
regularly scrutinising each and every one of the services they provide to local communities and are
concentrating on those areas that require the most improvement or attention.

Quality Accounts are both retrospective and forward looking. They look back on the

previous year’s information regarding quality of service, explaining where an organisation is doing well
and where improvement is needed. They also look forward, explaining the areas that have been
identified as priorities for improvement over the coming financial year.

The requirement for external review and assurance by an external auditor, has been removed again
for this year by NHS England / Improvement due to COVID-19.

Part 2: Priorities for Improvement and Statements of Assurance from the Board

This section of the Quality Account describes the priorities identified for quality improvement in
2023/24. 1t also sets out a series of statements of assurance from the Board on key quality activities
and provides details of the Trust’s performance against core indicators.

The progress made against priority areas for improvement in the quality of health services identified in
the 2022/23 Quality Account can be found in ‘Part 3: Review of Quality Performance’ which starts on
page 46.

2.1 Priorities for improvement 2020-24

Our quality priorities are aligned to the Trust’s commitment to helping local people live longer, healthier
lives and build on factors such as quality performance, clinical or public proposals and our ‘Better
Never Stops’ ambition, to continually improve and provide even better care. The Trust identified 4 key
priorities for quality improvement pre pandemic in 2020, with a recognition that embedding change
would take up to three years. The Quality Priorities for 2020-24 are set out below, with key targets and
milestones to delivery within each year specified.

e Reducing harm from hospital acquired de-conditioning.
e Improving communication between clinicians and patients.
e Improving care and treatment related to blood transfusion.

¢ Reducing health inequalities in our local population.

Our consultation process
Whittington Health recognises that to achieve sustainable improvement, projects need to be long-term

and effectively monitored and so priorities were set as part of a four-year improvement plan 2020-24.
However, given these were initially developed before the onset of the pandemic, the Trust felt that a

Page 30 Page | 6



full review of intelligence, patient feedback and stakeholder consultation was needed to ensure that
these priorities were still reflective of the current need.

To this end, the Trust has held several engagement events across the Trust and community sites to
gather feedback from people who use our services and staff. This feedback was combined with
intelligence from a range of data and information, such as learning from serious incidents, reviews of
mortality and harm, complaints, claims, clinical audits, patient and staff experience surveys, and best
practice guidance from sources such as the National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE)
and national audit data and presented in a meeting with key stakeholders from Healthwatch and the
Clinical Commissioning Group to help establish ongoing priorities and any new priorities to be added
in 2023-24.

The specific objectives, to achieve the priorities set for 2023/24 have been refined and agreed by
clinicians and managers who will have direct ownership and approved at the relevant Trust
committees. The quality account, including the 2023/24 objectives, have been shared with our
commissioners, whose comments can be seen within the appendices.

Monitoring of progress against priorities

We have developed a robust system to monitor and report on progress against the quality priorities.
Each priority has a project work stream (which focus on the key objectives for the year) which is aligned
to one of the three pillars of patient safety, patient experience or clinical effectiveness, and reports
regularly to the relevant governance group (Patient Safety Group, Patient Experience Group and
Clinical Effectiveness Group). The Quality Governance Committee review progress on a quarterly
basis and any concerns are escalated to the Quality Assurance Committee, a committee of the Trust
Board. Within each priority, key milestones and targets are identified to monitor progress which are
reviewed in the context of the wider Quality Account priority ambition.

The key milestones and targets highlighted below, and in the table that follows we have provided a
rationale for selecting this area for focus, details of the improvement plans, and detail on the monitoring
data and progress indicators.

e Improving communication between clinicians and patients and their carers (Ongoing priority, 4-
year improvement plan 2020-24)
e Reducing harm from hospital acquired de-conditioning (Ongoing priority, 4-year improvement
plan 2020 — 2024)
e Improving care and treatment related to blood transfusion (Ongoing priority, 4-year
improvement plan 2020-24)
e Reducing health inequalities in our local population (Year 3)
o Including specific projects to Improve care and treatment of patients with sickle cell
anaemia & projects to improve care we provide to those with Learning Disabilities by
increasing staff knowledge and confidence.

Quality Why are we focusing .

Account on this as an area for What are we doing to Goals for 23/24
J X improve?

Priority improvement?

Reducing and
avoiding harm
from hospital

Hospital-acquired
deconditioning, defined
as a loss of
independence in

The deconditioning work
stream focuses on
preventing functional
decline in frail patients by:

Page 31

Page | 7



acquired de-
conditioning

activities of daily living
(such as toileting,
walking, eating/drinking)
affects up to one in three
adults over the age of
65.

This deconditioning is
associated with
increased length of
hospital stays, increased
care or rehabilitation
needs on discharge, as
well as increased
mortality. Hospital-
acquired deconditioning
is associated with longer
stays in hospital,
increased rehabilitation
or care needs on leaving
hospital and an
increased risk of
mortality.

As the Trust provides
care to both those in
hospital and those within
our local communities,
this priority will cover
both avoiding
deconditioning whilst in
hospital, as well as
avoiding admissions that
could results in
deconditioning.

Reducing the length of
time that patients remain in
hospital.

To ensure 100% of patients
have documentation of a full
pressure ulcer risk
assessment within 6 hours of
admission, and an action plan
(including all required
pressure relieving equipment
required) to manage risks
identified in place within 24
hours of admission.

To manage 4 patients per
month (2 from Islington
borough, 2 from Haringey
borough) via the delirium
discharge pathway.

To reduce medically
optimised patients that are
unable to be discharged by
50% daily.

To implement pathway for
‘Trial without Catheter’
(TWOC) at home, reducing
the length of stay by at least
one day.

Preventing unnecessary
hospital admissions
through supporting
patients to stay well in their
home environments.

To utilise up to 28 Virtual
Ward beds daily, including 8
technology enabled virtual
ward patients and those on
the delirium pathway.

For Urgent Response and
Recovery Care Group to
ensure patients are seen
within the national guidance
of 2 to 24 hours for >80% of
referrals

Supporting patients in
hospital with their eating
and drinking, ensuring they
have the appropriate
choice and support.

For patients with Dementia &
Learning Disability who are
admitted to hospital to have
eating and drinking
preferences and information
about support required
available within 24 hours of
their admission. This requires
100% of this cohort to have
accurate and up-to-date next
of kin and emergency
contacts who will be able to
supply this information, and
for them to be contacted in
regard to the individual’s care

Page 32

Page | 8



needs within 24 hours of
admission.

Reducing
health
inequalities in
our local
population

The NHS Long Term
Plan outlined an urgent
need to prevent and
manage ill health in
groups that experience
health inequalities. This
includes population
groups less able or likely
to access health services
available.

The Health Inequalities
work stream focuses on
reducing inequalities by:

Improving the care we
provide to those with Sickle
Cell disease.

Deliver training to 60% of ED
staff to educate on the
condition, ensuring
unconscious bias does not
exist in the treatment of
patients with sickle cell
anaemia by end of March
2024.

Ensure 80% of sickle cell
patients receive 1% dose of
pain relief within 30mins of
attendance to ED by end of
March 2024.

Improving the care we
provide to those with
Cancer or  suspected
Cancer, that have been

identified as having health
inequalities.

To expand on the previous
success of Prostate cancer
events, we will hold up to 6
specific cancer events by the
end of March 2024.

Improving the care we
provide to those with
Dementia and Learning
Disabilities.

To develop and implement
training packages by end of
March 2024 for all clinical
staff about:

1. Treating and supporting
those with Learning
Disabilities

2. Treating and supporting
those with Autism

Success in the project will be

measured by implementation

of package, uptake of training
and reviewing patient
experience within these
populations to determine
whether the training delivered
shows a positive impact on
experience and care.

To improve patient
experience by offering 100%
of patients with Learning
Disabilities access to care
bags (including items aimed
to improve this patient
cohort’s comfort within this
environment) when attending
ED by August 2023.

Page 33

Page | 9



Improving
access and
attendance for
appointments

We have received
feedback from patient
representatives that
information around
appointments can be
confusing and access
challenging.

This includes comments
around wayfinding on
hospital sites; difficulties
booking transport; as
well as poor
communication being
highlighted as a
contributory factor in
PALS contact,
complaints, and
incidents.

The appointment work
stream focuses on
improving communication,
access, and attendance

by:

Continuing Zesty Patient
Portal roll out with further
functionality and
availability across
outpatient services.

For 60% of outpatients to be
using Zesty by end of March
2024

For DNA rates reduced in line
with booking amendments
functionality being introduced
by end of March 2024

The Trust has an external
provider for transport. We
are working closely with
this provider to streamline
processes and make
access to transport
provision as easy as
possible for those that
require assistance in
attending their
appointments.

For patients to be able to
complete single eligibility
criteria for multiple transport
requests by end of March
2024.

For clear communication and
guidelines on how to access
Transport to be developed in
conjunction with the transport
provider, demonstrating an
impact of reducing the
number of patient complaints
relating to Transport being
received by March 2024.

Improving clarity within
patient letters and
signposting around our
sites

For outpatient letters to be
reviewed and updated to
ensure location correctly
matches hospital signage

Accessible information for
those with Learning
Disabilities (in the form of
leaflets and videos) is
currently in development for
the following areas:
e OQutpatients (generic)
e OQutpatient check in
stations
e Going to Emergency
Department
Going to Theatres
Having an operation
Having an anaesthetic
Going Home from
Hospital
e Compliments and
Complaints
e Appointment letters

Page 34

Page | 10



By the end of March 2024,
this accessible information will
be fully implemented, and
accessible information will be
further rolled out to other
areas & topics required.
Success will be measured via
audits of how many
information leaflets have been
distributed, how often videos
have been used, as well as
reviewing patient experience
feedback to determine the
impact on their care and
treatment.

Offering increased options | To improve uptake and

to be able to attend more attendance of Wood Green
local sites for outpatient CDC walk-in and booked
appointments. appointments through offering
a range of patient information
(in different languages and
different formats such as easy
read, Braille, electronic and
written formats) and by
improving wayfinding to the
CDC within the Mall, by end
of March 2024.

To improve accessibility of
booking appointments by
introducing an electronic self-
booking system for Wood
Green CDC services by end
of March 2024. Success will
be measured via
improvements in patient
surveys, uptake of electronic
app & booking rates of
appointments.

Page 35 Page | 11



The Trust provides statements of assurance to the Trust Board in relation to:

e Modern slavery
e Safeguarding children and young people
e Mixed gender hospital accommodation

Every patient has the right to receive high quality care that is safe, effective and respects their privacy
and dignity. The Trust are committed to providing every patient with same gender accommodation to
help safeguard their privacy and dignity when they are often at their most vulnerable.

Patients who are admitted to hospital or come in for a planned day case will only share the room or
ward bay where they sleep, with members of the same gender, and same gender toilets and
bathrooms will be close to their bed area.

There are some exceptions to this. Sharing with people of the opposite gender may sometimes be
necessary. In addition to clinical need other reasons for exceptions would be in a major incident or to
maintain infection prevention and control isolation. This will only happen by exception and will be
based on clinical need in areas such as intensive/critical care units, emergency care areas and some
high observation bays. In these instances, every effort will be made to rectify the situation as soon as
is reasonably practicable and staff will take extra care to ensure that the privacy and dignity of patients
and service users is maintained.

It is our aim to provide care and services that are appropriate and sensitive to all. We always ensure
that our services promote equality of opportunity, equality of access, and are non-discriminatory. We
are proud of our place in the local community and are keen to embrace the many cultures and traditions
that make it so diverse. The diversity of this community is reflected in the ethnic and cultural mix of our
staff. By mirroring the diversity that surrounds us, our staff are better placed to understand and provide
for the cultural and spiritual needs of patients. In accordance with the Modern Slavery Act 2015, the
Trust has made a statement on its website regarding the steps taken to ensure that slavery and human
trafficking are not taking place in any part of its own business or any of its supply chains.

Whittington Health NHS Trust (WH) is committed to achieving and maintaining compliance with
national safeguarding children standards and guidance to ensure that children and young people are
cared for in a safe, secure and caring environment.

The Chief Nurse holds the position as Executive Lead for safeguarding children and adults and the
two Heads of Safeguarding (adult and child) professionally reports to the Chief Nurse.

A Safeguarding Bi-Annual Report is produced which is reviewed by the Trust Board (covers both
children and vulnerable adults).

Page 36 Page | 12



Whittington Health is an active member of two local safeguarding children’s partnerships in Haringey
and Islington. Section 11 of the 2004 Children Act sets out the provision for Local Children
Safeguarding Partnerships to undertake a self-assessment audit of how organisations and services
are meeting standards to safeguard children and young people. Section 11 audits for children and
young people safeguarding compliance across the Trust are completed as required.

The Trust is a member of the local safeguarding adults’ partnerships in Haringey and Islington and the
Safeguarding Adults Partnership Assessment Tool is completed annually for both.

The WH Joint Safeguarding Committee meets quarterly to discuss all matters pertaining to
safeguarding, domestic abuse, Prevent, Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards and the Mental Capacity
Act and monitors serious case review and Safeguarding Adult Reviews recommendations The
committee reviews the Trust’s responsibility across children and vulnerable adults.

Whittington Health provided services across acute and community service in 2022/23. Of these
services a number were subcontracted.

The Trust has reviewed all data available to them on the quality of care in these relevant health services
through the quarterly performance review of the integrated clinical service unit and contract
management processes.

The income generated by the relevant health services reviewed in 2022-23
represents 100% of the total income generated from the provision of relevant health services that
Whittington Health provides.

A breakdown of the individual subcontracted services can be found in Appendix 2

During 2022/2023, 53 national clinical audits including 5 national confidential enquiries covered
relevant health services that Whittington Health NHS Trust provides.

During that period, Whittington Health participated in 98% of national clinical audits and 100% of
national confidential enquiries of those it was eligible to participate in.

The single national audit to which the Trust did not participate: End of Life Care Audit (EoLC), was
discussed widely with North Central London EoLC colleagues as well as our full MDT at Whittington
Health. Please see the End of Life Care section on page 24 for a fuller explanation for non-
participation in the audit.

The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that Whittington Health was eligible to
participate in, and participated in, during 2022/2023 are detailed in (Appendix 1). This includes the
number of cases submitted to each audit or enquiry as a percentage of the number of registered
cases required by the terms of that audit or enquiry.

Additionally listed are the 17 non-mandatory national audits, in which the Trust also participated
during 2022/2023 (Appendix 2).

Page 37 Page | 13



Whittington Health intends to continue to improve the processes for monitoring the recommendations
of National Audits and Confidential Enquiries in 2023/2024 by ensuring:

¢ National audit and national confidential enquiries will remain the key feature of our Integrated
Clinical Service Unit (ICSU) clinical audit and effectiveness programmes.

e Learning from excellence will continue to form an intrinsic part of our work, and innovative
ways of promoting and celebrating successes will be considered and shared.

e Patient and carer representation in national clinical audits will continue to be developed and
effectiveness monitored.

e Multidisciplinary clinical effectiveness sessions will continue to include reflective learning on
national clinical audit findings and quality improvement.

e The Clinical Effectiveness group will continue to ensure actions from national audit reports are
scrutinised and monitored at the highest level to provide additional organisational assurance.

e Our new national audit response template will be monitored for assurance.

e Improved collaboration with our Quality Improvement lead will identify appropriate project
follow up subsequent to national audit report publication.

The reports of 33 national clinical audits/national confidential enquiries were reviewed by the
provider in 2022/2023.

Examples of results and actions being taken for a national clinical audit:

National Paediatric Diabetes Audit

The National Paediatric Diabetes Audit collects information on the care and diabetes outcomes of all
children and young people receiving care from paediatric diabetes teams. The primary aim is to
provide information that leads to an improved quality of care for those children and young people
living with diabetes.

The recent National Paediatric Diabetes Audit Annual Report has identified the following areas for
improvement:

The median HbA1c has not improved since the 2019/20 report and the department are continuing to
work and improve upon the previously identified actions:

e Team to set higher expectations of families. HbAlc 6.5% (48mmol/mol)
e Continue to focus on education in clinic and patient empowerment — downloading and
reviewing data at home.

e Low threshold for elective patient admission.

e Low threshold for social services referral.
There is an identified need to improve access to Continuous Glucose Monitoring. This was
escalated to the appropriate operational lead who agreed that for all children who fulfil National
Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) criteria to have access to CGM with alarms. The
Trust continue to use Freestyle Libre as per NCL Guidance. This has resulted in improvement;
however, the Trust are not yet on a par with other units. The Trust expect to improve access to CGM
for all. Approval from the operational lead was given to start Freestyle Libre 2 at diagnosis and those
who need it outside NCL criteria.

Page 38 Page | 14



Structured education reflected by blood ketone testing and sick day rules was previously 90-100%
but reduced to 55-65%. This was appropriately discussed at the regular MDT meeting where it was
decided to move from group sessions to structured education clinics in order to bridge this gap.

Royal College of Emergency Medicine National Audit on Fractured Neck of Femur

The aim of the Royal College of Emergency Medicine’s audit on fractured neck of femur is to
improve the care provided to adult patients in the Emergency Department (ED) who had sustained a
fractured neck of femur, over a 6-month period of continuous data collection.

The data for this audit was collected during 2020/21, to identify performance in EDs against the
following four clinical standards:

1. Pain is assessed immediately upon presentation at hospital.

2. Patients in moderate or severe pain (e.g., pain score 4 to 10) should receive appropriate
analgesia within 30 minutes (or in accordance with local guidelines) unless there is a
documented reason not to.

3. Patients should have an X-ray at the earliest opportunity.

4. Patients with severe or moderate pain should have documented evidence of re-evaluation and

action within 30 minutes of receiving the first dose of analgesic.

Following comprehensive review of our results it was determined that none of the records audited for
each standard achieved the gold standard 100% compliance.

Emergency Department staff took the following actions:

e To ensure that pain is assessed immediately upon presentation at hospital (standard 1) triage
of these patients will be prioritised. Teaching sessions will further encourage and promote the
need for documented pain assessment.

e To improve the compliance to the other audit standards, requirements for this group of
patients has been included in departmental teaching. Due to the high turnover of ED staff,
this is now a routine feature of emergency medicine teaching sessions.

e A local re-audit is to be undertaken in September 2023 and results will be carefully monitored
to ensure continuous improvement, with particular emphasis upon these four key clinical
standards.

Local Clinical Audits:

Whittington Health intends to continue to improve the processes for monitoring the recommendations
of local clinical audits in 2023/2024 by ensuring:

e Reactive local audits, vital to patient safety, will remain of intrinsic value to audit programmes,
with further emphasis upon collaborative working across clinical effectiveness, patient
experience, quality improvement and patient safety domains.

e Project proposals will continue to be subject to a centralised and multidisciplinary quality
review to prevent duplication and to ensure alignment to speciality priorities.

e Bespoke clinical audit training packages will continue alongside our pre-existing workshops.
These sessions will be open to staff of all designations and grades.

e Clinical speciality performance in relation to local clinical audit will continue to be monitored on
an ongoing basis, with regular reporting via the ICSU Board meetings.

The reports of 61 local audits were reviewed by the provider in 2022/2023.

Page 39 Page | 15



Example of results and actions being taken for a local clinical audit:

Audit of MRI spine requests for cord/cauda equina compression

Cauda equina is a time-sensitive diagnosing that requires urgent surgical intervention to prevent
paralysis, sexual dysfunction, and/or loss of bladder or bowel function.

The British Association of Spine Surgeons has recommended 24/7 availability of MRI at the referring
hospital for these cases.

The aim of this audit undertaken by the Imaging Department is to assess the time performance, hit
rate and number of MRI requests to help guide local departmental policy.

The results demonstrated one breach of the 24-hour target for scanning. Therefore, 98.8% scans
performed within 24-hour target.

Action taken: As the results were exceptionally positive, the Clinical Lead amended the number of
slots to one MRI Cauda equina saved slot per day (rather than the previous 2 slots).

Assessing the appropriateness of antibiotic prescribing for UTI in adults age 16+

The UK has launched a 20-year vision regarding antimicrobial resistance where the optimal use of
antimicrobials and good antimicrobial stewardship across sectors is being promoted. A five-year UK
Antimicrobial Resistance national action plan outlined concerns about an observed increase in gram-
negative bloodstream infections, including Escherichia coli (E. Coli) bloodstream infections.
Targeting and improving the diagnosing and treatment of urinary tract infections (UTIs) would help
reduce avoidable infection rates, improve patient safety, reduce length of hospital stay, and in turn,
release bed capacity.

Aim: To assess current clinical practice and compliance to NICE guidance regarding the diagnosis
and treatment of UTI’s in patients (16+ years) at Whittington Health NHS Trust.

Results and discussion: 70% of the antibiotic prescriptions complied with all 5 standards, meeting
the Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) CCG2 compliance target of 40% minimum.
Lower and upper UTI antibiotic prescriptions showed good compliance to standard 1, and acceptable
compliance to standards 2, 3 and 4. This indicated satisfactory use of antimicrobials; however,
further work could be done to increase compliance to national guidance.

Conclusion

Results demonstrate that 70% of antibiotic prescriptions for UTIs at Whittington Health NHS Trust
complied with all 5 standards set out by the CQUIN CCG2 target. However, interventions should be
made to further increase and maintain compliance, whilst action must be taken to improve
compliance to standard 2 in catheter-associated urinary tract infection (CAUTI) diagnoses.

Recommendations and action plan

e Raising awareness for when it is appropriate to take urinalysis and appropriate antibiotic
prescribing by implementing ward-based training sessions.

¢ Including a ‘further details’ parameter in the data collection toolkit allowing inclusion of
information about inappropriate antibiotic prescriptions.

Page 40 Page | 16



e To present findings to the pharmacy and microbiology teams. Conduct a re-audit once
recommendations have been implemented.

Involvement in clinical research demonstrates the Trust's commitment to improving the quality of
care we offer to the local community as well as contributing to the evidence base of healthcare both
nationally and internationally. Our participation in research helps to ensure that our clinical staff stay
abreast of the latest treatment possibilities and active participation in research leads to better patient
outcomes and demonstrates Whittington Health’s commitment to improving the quality of care that is
delivered to our patients and to global health improvement. The Trust are committed to increasing
the quality of studies in which patients can participate (not simply the number), and the range of
specialties that are research active as it is recognised that research-active hospitals deliver high
quality care.

The research strategy reflects the Trust aim of enabling local people to ‘live longer healthier lives’
and has been established to benefit patient outcomes, staff recruitment and retention, revenue
generation and the Trust’s reputation.

A key strategic goal is to become a national leader in integrated care, covering all facets of district
general hospital and community health research, and how they relate. The Trust’s research portfolio
continues to evolve to reflect the ambitions of our integrated care organisation (across hospital and
acute, community health services, dental and mental health services).

The research portfolio has reverted to resemble the pre-COVID range of activity. Whilst studies
originally classified as COVID-19 Urgent Public Health (UPH) studies remain open, they are no
longer prioritised over other studies and as participant numbers for these studies are low, it has been
possible to use capacity in other areas. The number of patients receiving relevant health services
provided or subcontracted by Whittington Health NHS Trust in 2022/23 that were recruited during
that period to participate in research approved by a research ethics committee was 540 at the time of
writing (with further data to be uploaded). These patients all participated in studies adopted to the
National Institute of Health Research (NIHR) portfolio. This was a decrease to each of the previous 5
years which (had included the highest annual recruitment recorded for the Trust in 2020/21) and
reflected the challenges seen in opening new studies and reengaging clinical teams as they returned
to pre-pandemic activities. The number of active NIHR Portfolio studies, 47 (30 actively recruiting, 17
in follow-up), has broadly been sustained during this period with Emergency & Integrated Medicine
and Surgery & Cancer seeing the most activity (17 and 12 studies respectively) followed by Children
& Young People and Women’s Health. Acute Patient Access and Support services (having 8 studies
each, with one cross divisional study).

Portfolio-adopted studies are mainly, but not solely, consultant led and are supported by the Trust’s
growing research delivery team to facilitate patient recruitment. In addition to the NIHR portfolio
studies, an additional 4 non-portfolio studies commenced in 2022/23, a reduction of one from the
previous year which had seen a pleasing increase in non-portfolio studies. There are plans in place

Page 41 Page | 17



to support the growth of locally led and locally focused research as a vital aspect of delivering the
research strategy. Most non-portfolio research studies are undertaken by nurses, allied health
professionals, and trainee doctors and the impact of these studies are frequently published in peer
reviewed publications, at conference presentations, and are valuable in their ability to innovate within
the Trust. In addition, small locally funded studies can provide the evidence needed to secure grant
funding for larger scale projects and their potential to build capacity and capability to undertake
larger research studies should not be underestimated. As a result of hosting two grants the Trust will
receive enhanced Research Capability Funding (RCF) in the next financial year which will in part be
used to increase and encourage both portfolio and non-portfolio research activity within the Trust.

A proportion of Whittington Health’s income is conditional on achieving quality improvement and
innovation goals between Whittington Health and NCL ICB through the Commissioning for
Quality and Innovation payment framework.

Our CQUINSs for 2022-2023 are:

e CCG 1 - Flu Vaccinations for Frontline Healthcare Workers (Target for achievement)

e CCG 2 - Appropriate Antibiotic Prescribing for UTI in Adults (Reporting only)

e CCG 3 - Recording of NEWS2 Score, Escalation and Response Times for Unplanned
Critical Care Admissions (Target for achievement)

e CCG 5 - Treatment of Community Acquired Pneumonia in Line with BTS Care Bundle
(Reporting only)

e CCG 6 - Anaemia screening and Treatment for Patients Undergoing Major Elective
Surgery (Reporting only)

e CCG 7 - Timely Communication of Changes to Medicines to Community Pharmacists

via Discharge Medicines Service (Target for achievement)

CCG 8 - Supporting Patients to Drink, Eat and Mobilise After Surgery (Reporting only)

CCG 9 - Cirrhosis and Fibrosis Tests for Alcohol Dependent Patients (Reporting only)

CCG 13 - Malnutrition Screening in the Community (Target for achievement)

Local Maternity CQUIN - 75% of continuity of carer for women from Black, Asian, Mixed

and Minority ethnic communities and from the most deprived groups (Target for

achievement)

For 2022/23 the Trust is required to undertake 12 CQUIN Indicators (9 National and 1 Local). However
only 5 Indicators are included in the CQUIN payment scheme for 2022/23.

In 2022/23, 1.25% percent of our income was conditional on achieving national quality improvement
and innovation goals agreed between Whittington Health and local commissioners through the CQUIN
payment framework. These goals were set because they represent areas where improvements result
in significant benefits to patient safety and experience.

Further details of the agreed goals for 2022/23 are available electronically at:
https://www.england.nhs.uk/nhs-standard-contract/cquin/2022-23-cquin/

Proposed CQUINSs for 2023-2024 are:

Page 42 Page | 18


https://www.england.nhs.uk/nhs-standard-contract/cquin/2022-23-cquin/

CQUINOL1 - Flu Vaccinations for Frontline Healthcare Workers

CQUINO2 - Supporting Patients to Drink, Eat and Mobilise After Surgery

CQUINO3 - Prompt Switching of Intravenous to Oral Antibiotic

CQUINO4 - Compliance with Timed Diagnostic Pathways for Cancer Services
CQUINOS - Identification and Response to Frailty in Emergency Departments
CQUINO6 - Timely Communication of Changes to Medicines to Community
Pharmacists via Discharge Medicines Service

e CQUINO7 - Recording of and Response to NEWS2 Score for Unplanned Critical Care
Admissions

e CQUIN12 - Assessment and Documentation of Pressure Ulcer Risk
e CQUIN13 - Assessment, diagnosis, and Treatment of Lower Leg Wounds ,
« CQUIN16: Reducing the Need for the Use of Restrictive Practices in CYPMHS Inpatient | 11ere is

Settings a
e Local CQUIN - Core20plus5 CQUIN
Project

Manager who leads, coordinates, and oversees the CQUIN projects and is responsible for the
achievement of CQUINSs. There is also a clinical lead and operational lead for each individual CQUIN.
CQUIN progress information for 2022/2023 can be found in Appendix 7.

Whittington Heath is registered with the Care Quality Commission (CQC) without any conditions. The
CQC carried out two inspections of the Trust during 2022/2023. One was conducted in Maternity services
and the other was a ‘mental health act monitoring inspection’ of Simmons House our Child Specialist
Community Mental Health Service for Children and Young People. The final report for Maternity services
was received on the 28" April 2023. Only two domains were inspected during the Maternity inspection,
and these were ‘Safe’ and ‘Well-led’. The trust received a rating of requires improvement for ‘Safe’ and
a rating of Good for the ‘Well-led” domain which gave Maternity services a rating of ‘Requires
improvement’. The previous ratings for the other three domains of effective, caring and responsive were
not taken into account as they were inspected jointly with Gynaecology services back in 2017. An action
plan is being developed to address the findings in the report.

The Mental Health Act (MHA) monitoring report following the inspection’ of Simmons House our Child
Specialist Community Mental Health Service for Children and Young People, was received on the 30™
March 2023. Concerns were raised by the young people to the inspectors about the hot water
temperature, medication errors and the anti-barricade doors. An action plan has been developed to
address these actions and sent to the CQC.

The table below provides the rating summary table for the CQC'’s final report published in March 2020
following its previous inspection in December 2019 of four core services (Surgery, Urgent and
Emergency Care Services (ED), our Critical Care, Community Health Services for Children Young
People and Families and Specialist Community Mental Health Services for Children and Young
People). The Trust’s current CQC overall rating from that assessment is ‘Good’ for Whittington Health,
with 'Outstanding’ ratings for our community health services and performance against the CQC’s
‘Caring’ domain. The overall rating of the Trust has not changed following the CQC inspection of
Maternity services in 2023 and remains ‘Good’ overall.

Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall
Acute Requires Good Good Good Good Good
Improvement

Page 43 Page | 19



Community  ['Good Good Good [ Outstanding [ Outstanding |

Children’s Requires Good Good Good Good

menFaI health |mprovement

services

Overall trust Requires Good Good Good Good
Improvement

The CQC action plan remains a focus for improvement; 8 long term actions are still being progressed
from the 2020 CQC report. The actions are monitored by the responsible ICSU at their Quality meetings
and through the Trust’s Better Never Stops programme.

The CQC have moved to a more risk-based approach for service inspection since the COVID-19
pandemic began, this new approach focusses on reviewing data collected to trigger ‘Direct Monitoring
Activity’ conversations. If there are still concerns or further action required after these conversations are
held, then this would trigger inspection activity. There will be a new assessment framework released by
the CQC in 2023 to support this. Regular meetings have been held with our CQC Relationship Manager
during 2022/2023. These have mainly focused on the following areas:

Staff wellbeing and support

Innovation at Whittington Health NHS Trust
Elective services provision

COVID-19 updates on outbreaks

Serious incident investigations and CQC enquiries
Victoria Ward

Outpatients and diagnostic services — Core service focus
Community nursing — core service focus

Cancer waiting times — core service focus
National audit program outlier status

Maternity staff concerns raised to the CQC
Pharmacy (direct monitoring activity conversation)

VVVVVVVVVYYY

The most recent CQC engagement meeting was held in January 2023 and focused on recent leadership
changes at the Trust and the current operational situation with impact on cancer performance and
referral to treatment times due to COVID-19 and flu challenges. Our CQC relationship manager was
given significant assurance on the areas highlighted at the meeting.

Whittington Health submitted records during 2021 to the Secondary Uses Service (SUS) for inclusion
in the Hospital Episodes Statistics. The percentage of records in the published data which included
the patient’s valid NHS number, and which included the patient’s valid General Medical Practice
Code were as follows:

Percentage of records which Percentage of records which included the
included the patient’s valid NHS patient’s valid General Medical Practice
2021/22 number (%) Code (%)
Inpatient care 99.45% 99.91%

Page 44 Page | 20



Outpatient care 99.62% 99.96%

Emergency care 84.58% 100.00%

Data Item Score Average - April 2021 - December 2021

Information governance (IG) is to do with the way organisations process or handle information. The
Trust takes its requirements to protect confidential data seriously and over the last 5 years have
made significant improvements in many areas of information governance, including data quality,
subject access requests, freedom of information and records management.

The Data Security and Protection (DSP) Toolkit is a policy delivery vehicle produced by the
Department of Health; hosted and maintained by NHS Digital. It combines the legal framework
including the EU General Data Protection Regulations 2016, UKGDPR and the Data Protection Act
2018, the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and central government guidance including the NHS
Code of Practice on Confidentiality and the NHS Code of Practice on Records Management. The
framework ensures the Trust manages the confidential data it holds safely and within statutory
requirements.

During the year the Trust implemented an improvement plan to achieve DSP Toolkit compliance and
to improve compliance against other standards. As a result, the Trust hopes to meet the majority of
the mandatory assertions with an improvement plan in place for IG training which will likely be below
the target of 95%. The Trust’'s DSP Toolkit submission and former IG Toolkit submissions can be
viewed online at www.dsptoolkit.nhs.uk and www.igt.hscic.gov.uk.

All staff are required to undertake IG training. In 2022 the Trust ended the year at 86% of staff being
IG training compliant. The compliance rates are regularly monitored by the IG committee, including
methods of increasing compliance. The IG department continues to promote requirements to train
and targets staff with individual emails includes news features in the weekly electronic staff
Noticeboard and manage classroom-based sessions at induction.

Information Governance Reportable Incidents

IG reportable incidents are reported to the Department of Health and Information Commissioner’s
Office (ICO). Reportable incidents are investigated and reported to the Trust’'s SIEAG Panel, relevant
executive directorate or ICSU and the Caldicott Guardian and the Senior Information Risk Owner
(SIRO). The IG committee is chaired by the SIRO who maintains a review of all IG reportable
incidents and pro-actively monitors the action plans. The Trust declared two reportable incidents in
2022/23.

The Trust continued to work on a data quality improvement plan with significant improvements noted
in the targeted areas. Trust monitors all national data submissions data quality at the point of
submission and responds to any issues raised by NHS Digital with any remedial action required.
Where system limitations have existed, the Trust continues to work with system suppliers to include
fixes in the scheduled system upgrades as part of the supplier contracts. A regular review of the

Page 45 Page | 21


http://www.dsptoolkit.nhs.uk/
http://www.igt.hscic.gov.uk/

Data Quality Maturity Index (DQMI) scores published by NHS Digital Monthly is done at the Data
Quality Group as well as the RIO User Group to highlight specific data quality issues requiring
attention and to update on progress on data quality improvement initiatives.

To improve data quality in 2023-24 the trust will continue to embed the following actions:

e Replacing the Data Quality Group with a Data Quality and Business Intelligence Group that
will include more stakeholder whose roles are relevant to maintaining data quality.

e Continue to use of data quality dashboards for services to individually monitor their own data
quality as required. Plans are underway to improve the current dashboard and develop that in
a more user-friendly platform that allows better collaboration.

e Issuing of regular data quality reports to specific services identified as requiring
improvements.

e Continue monitoring data quality for each of the Integrated Clinical Service Units (ICSUs)
through the Data Quality and Business Intelligence Group

e Undertake to complete any data quality related actions as stipulated in the Data Quality
Improvement Plan (DQIP) requirements of Schedule 6 of the NHS Standard Contract

e Undertake regular internal clinical coding audits.

e Increase the frequency of the external clinical coding audit to every 6 months and produce
and monitor action plans.

e Systematic use of benchmarking of data

e Actively engage in any national or NCL-wide data quality improvement initiatives

Adult Specialist Palliative Care Service

The Whittington Hospital Specialist Palliative Care team (SPCT) is a liaison service providing advice
and guidance to the acute hospital teams caring for patients with palliative care needs. We manage
physical symptoms, provide psychological support to patients and families, and engage in advance
care planning to ensure that patients are discharged to their preferred place of care and die in their
preferred place of death. We also provide education for non-specialist clinicians delivering palliative
and end of life care.

The team has a visible presence across all hospital adult wards, including ambulatory care and ED.
We have robust relationships and maintain regular contact with the Haringey (North London
Hospice) and Islington (CNWL) community palliative care teams in order to facilitate joined up care
across settings for patients and families.

Activity

At Whittington Health we cared for 503 patients who died during an acute admission in 2022. The
SPCT saw over half of these patients. Our referrals were higher in 2022/23 than previous years,
totalling 700. This is the highest number of referrals ever received by the service.

Page 46 Page | 22



Graph 1: Referrals to Whittington Health
Specialist Palliative Care Team

800
700
600
500
400
300
200
100

m Referrals to Whittington Health
Specialist Palliative Care Team

As well as increasing numbers of referrals, the complexity of our caseload has increased, particularly
the amount of complex family support required. Over 70% of patients referred to SPCT in 2022/23
were in an unstable or deteriorating phase of their illness.

Graph 2: Phase of lllness at Referral

M Stable

B Unstable

W Deteriorating
H Dying

W Other

The SPCT proactively supports advance care planning discussions, including recording a patient’s
preferred place of care and death and whether this is achieved. Where appropriate, this is uploaded
into the Pan-London Urgent Care Plan (UCP) so it is visible to all urgent and emergency care staff.
In 2022/23, 225 palliative care patients had a UCP of which 104 were created or updated by the
SPCT.

Quality and Performance Indicators

The Trust participated in the 2021/22 National Audit of Care at the End of Life (NACEL). This
included a case note review (CNR) of all expected hospital deaths in April and May 2021, a hospital
overview of governance and staffing (HGS), and a staff reported measure (SRM). The Trust was

Page 47 Page | 23



unable to participate in the Quality Survey designed to be sent to the families and those important to
the deceased, as we have no robust mechanism for collecting these contact details. The summary
scores for data collected include:

Table 1: Summary scores for data collected in NACEL

Key Theme Source | National Summary | Whittington Hospital
Score Summary Score
Communication with the dying person CNR 7.9 8.5
Communication with families and others CNR 7.0 6.9
Involvement in decision making CNR 9.5 9.8
Individualised plan of care CNR 7.7 6.8
Governance HGS 9.7 10
Workforce / Specialist Palliative Care HGS 8.1 3.1
Staff confidence SRM 7.5 7.1
Staff support SRM 6.4 5.3
Care and culture SRM 7.3 6.9

Whittington Health scores are broadly in line with national performance. As in previous years, the
Trust was a significant outlier in terms of specialist palliative care workforce. Since the audit period
the SPCT have submitted a successful business case and recruited to a further 0.8WTE Band 7
Clinical Nurse Specialist post. This has enabled us to keep pace with our growing clinical workload
and to renew our focus on education of ward staff, in response to our staff reported measure scores
which are slightly lower than the national average.

NACEL Staff Survey Results and Education Action Plan

Thirty-three staff members responded to the survey which was circulated to all staff in summer and
autumn 2021. The main feedback was that staff wanted more knowledge, education and training
regarding palliative and end of life care to improve their confidence in caring for these patients. The
survey reflects a time when staff had been engaged in caring for large numbers of patients with
COVID-19, which is relevant in interpreting the results. It will be valuable to see results of
subsequent surveys in future NACEL audits.

In response to the NACEL staff survey results, the SPCT has expanded its educational offer over the
past year. This has been facilitated by an expansion of our Clinical Nurse Specialist team. Prior to
the team expansion, we had been very limited in the education we were able to offer due to
increasing clinical workload without a corresponding increase in staffing. The team has delivered
training in 2022/23 as follows:

e Palliative care for student midwives

e Nursing students shadowing of team

e Syringe driver training on ICU

Page 48 Page | 24



Foundation year teaching on palliative and end of life care
Respiratory team teaching on opioids and breathlessness

HCSW Introduction to Palliative Care & Recognising Dying
Nursing study day

New staff nurse induction

Whittington Health elected not to participate in NACEL 2022/23. Results from the 2021/22 audit were
made available informally in February 2022 and formally published in July 2022. It was felt that a
further case note review of deaths occurring in April and May 2022, before any action could be taken
on the results of the previous audit, would not add useful information and would take a significant
amount of palliative care clinician time. This extra time was used to undertake staff training as
described above, with our ongoing action plan in Table 2 below. The frequency of the national audit
has now been reduced to biannually with the next round of data collection due in 2024.

All clinical staff caring for patients on medical and surgical wards need basic palliative care skills.
Palliative and end of life care education ideally needs to be included in the induction and mandatory
training programmes for all clinical teams. Over the past year, the SPCT has provided formal training
at New Nurses Orientation, study days (nurses, HCSWs, student midwives) and for medical and
foundation trainees. The team also provides a significant amount of informal training and support
(including reflective practice and emotional support) through working with ward staff caring for
patients with palliative care needs and attending team Morbidity and Mortality meetings. The team is
small and so to ensure all staff receive the training they need to care for patients towards the end of
life the SPCT need to work with colleagues such as practice development nurses and ward
managers. The team would be happy to work with the Learning and Development Team to agree a
programme of mandatory training utilising the eLearning for Health (eLFH) resources for relevant
staff if this is agreed.

Below are the main areas that professionals need training in, and how training can be expanded.

Table 2: Areas requiring training, current delivery and how training can be expanded:

Topic How provided currently? How could be expanded?

Principles of Induction for nurses and medical Induction and Mandatory training for all

PEOLC trainees. relevant clinical staff (could utilise eLFH

modules).

Care of the dying | Induction for nurses and medical Induction and Mandatory training for all

patient trainees. Study days. Working with | relevant clinical staff (could utilise eLFH
palliative care teams on wards. modules).

Symptom control | Induction for nurses and medical Induction and Mandatory training for all
trainees. Study days. Working with | relevant clinical staff (could utilise eLFH
palliative care teams on wards. modules).

Syringe driver Syringe driver training currently Ensure ward managers are keeping a

training available via PDNs. Specialist record of syringe driver competencies.
palliative care teams can support
with ad hoc training. Ward
managers are responsible for
signing off staff competencies.

Page 49 Page | 25



Guidelines on intranet, at induction
for trainees. 1-2-1 informal training.

Prescribing
syringe drivers

Communication External courses eg Sage & Thyme

Skills in PEOLC

Study days. Working with palliative
care teams on wards

Learning from deaths

During 2022/2023 there were 459 inpatient deaths at the Trust (this figure excludes patients who have
died in the Emergency Department) with the following distribution across the year:

e 105 In the first quarter

e 117 In the second quarter

e 123 In the third quarter

e 114 In the fourth quarter.
Oversight

The Trust has an embedded process to screen, review and investigate inpatient deaths. Each Clinical
Directorate has a mortality review process to undertake reviews on any appropriate deaths and to
identify learning. The Mortality Review Group (MRG) provides scrutiny of mortality surveillance to
ensure the Trust is driving quality improvement by using a systematic approach to mortality review and
learning from death. The MRG reports to the Quality Governance Committee, cascading upwards to
the Quality Assurance Committee and the Trust Board, via a Quarterly Learning from Deaths report,
authored by the Associate Medical Director for Learning from Deaths and the Project Lead for Mortality.

Reviews

92/452 deaths for the year were identified as meeting the criteria for a structured judgement review.
Of the 92 identified deaths, 39 case record reviews had been completed by the end of the financial
year with others from more recent deaths in progress.

The table below shows the number of case record reviews by quarter and the number of deaths judged
more than likely than not to have been due to problems in care:

Quarter 1 | Quarter 2 | Quarter 3 | Quarter 4
2022/23 | 2022/23 2022/23 2022/23
Number of structured judgement | 15 7 10 7
reviews
Number of deaths judged | O 1 0 0
probably avoidable (more than
50:50)

There was one death that was noted to be more than 50:50 likely to be avoidable. This concerned a
patient who required prompt surgical intervention for large bowel obstruction with learning around
patients needing to be counselled carefully about the benefits of early intervention.

Page | 26

Page 50



Summary of themes, learning and actions from Case Record Reviews
From the deaths reviewed in 2022/23 the main themes, learning and actions are:

Care of patients with co-existing physical and mental health iliness - regular Mental Health review was
important in those patients with both mental and physical illness acknowledging the potential interplay
between 2 conditions and the importance of ensuring their mental health needs were not overlooked
whilst their physical needs were being intensively managed. It was also noted that patients may be
having infrequent depot injections as part of their mental health care and the schedule of administration
needs to be considered and where appropriate maintained during inpatient admission for physical
illness. The benefits of a collaborative approach with the mental health liaison service were highlighted
particularly where frequent reassessment of a patient’'s mental capacity was needed if they were
choosing to decline treatments.

Good practice was identified in the care of patients with a learning disability. Early contact with the
Learning Disability team following admission is advised with the access of the patient passport, to help
improve communication with the patient.

The early recognition of swallowing difficulties in patients with a learning disability, with the benefit
from the Speech and language teams as well as input from family members resulted in an improvement
in oral intake of food and fluids in one patient.

End of life care (EoLC)
There were many examples of excellent End of life care. The following factors were identified over the
year as contributing to this:

Respecting the wishes of patients who have capacity.
Consistent multiple iterative Treatment Escalation Planning conversations with relatives.

Early identification of a dying patient allows for early involvement with palliative care and gives families
valuable time to spend with their loved one.

A side room being available for the dying where bed pressures allowed.
The anticipatory medicines should be prescribed and utilised when needed.

Hypoglycaemia in elderly non diabetic patients is seen as a poor prognostic indicator and may be part
of the dying process.

The use of morphine as a treatment for breathlessness at the end-of-life care, was emphasised as
beneficial where oxygen levels are at baseline. High Flow Nasal Oxygen (HFNO) and oxygen are not
indicated in this situation.

One mortality meeting discussed that some patients without a confirmed diagnosis of cancer do not
always require a biopsy if the picture is one of terminal disease. This might apply to patients who are
unlikely to be fit for intervention. The acute oncology service can be contacted to provide support for
complex decision making and a second opinion in such cases.

Page 51 Page | 27



Patients presenting with a low sodium should be referred to the Critical Care Outreach Team as they
often require close fluid balance monitoring on the High Dependence Unit (HDU). There are Trust
guidelines available on the intranet on the management of this condition.

Respiratory Care: Avoiding the risk of oxygen toxicity can be done by adjusting oxygen therapy target
levels to avoid type 2 Respiratory failure in patients with chronic respiratory disease or an elevated
bicarbonate. Oxygen prescribing guidelines are available on the intranet for guidance. Teams were
asked to check for oxygen alerts on Careflow with the recommended target saturation. Introducing an
oxygen alert for a patient can be done by a referral on ICE (oxygen alert) to the respiratory team, who
will create one.

Patients with signs of an upper Gl bleed should be fully examined and reviewed. Underlying causes
for the bleeding should be considered. If the patient is on anticoagulation, a reversal agent should be
promptly used to reduce the bleeding if it is safe to do so.

Medical Examiners Service

The Medical Examiners department continues to flourish. This department provides reviews of case
notes, discussions with members of clinical teams, supportive discussions with bereaved families and
issues an accurate MCCD.

Emergency Readmissions within 28 days 0-15 years

300 - M 16 Years +

250 -
200 -
150 A

100 A

Number of readmissions

50 A

0 -

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar| Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

2021/22 2022/23

Rate of Emergency Readmission within 28 days 0.15 years

20% 1 — 16 Years +

15% A

10% A

co, | M\/\/

0%

readmission Rate

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar| Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

2021/22 2022/23

Page 52 Page | 28



The Trust reports within stated requirements, the readmission data is reviewed thoroughly and
compared closely to the metric that is used for routine board and departmental monitoring of
readmissions.

*Data is reported against the month of discharge of the emergency readmission

*Data excludes patients between 0 and 4 years at time of admission or re-admission. Cancer and
Maternity admissions and readmissions are excluded. Patients who discharged themselves are also
excluded.

National data has not been published beyond 2011/12. Consequently, national comparison is not
available, and this information is generated locally by the trust.

During 2022 the Trust has focussed on scoping and implementing initiatives to improve patient flow
within the hospital and ensure safe discharges but, also reduce the numbers of patients requiring
potential readmission within 28 days of discharge. Streaming pathways have been implemented and
reviewed to try and reduce admissions and reduce waits against the 4 hour target, improving patient
experience.

Our ‘Multi Agency Discharge Event’s’ (MADESs) are now part of business as usual. They have regular
input from Social Care, Clinicians, District Nursing and GPs to ensure patients are discharged to the
most appropriate place for their care in a timely manner. However operational pressures have been
experienced nationally which has affected discharge times. The data table that supports the graphs
below can be found in Appendix Three.

Learning from National Patient Surveys

The Trust received the results for three national patient experience surveys during 2022/23. These
were:

o 2021 Adult Inpatient Survey (published September 2022)
o 2022 Maternity Survey (published January 2023)
o 2021 Cancer Patient Experience Survey (published July 2022)

Adult Inpatient Survey 2021

1250 people, who stayed in hospital for at least one night during November 2021, were invited to
take part in the survey. 30% of people responded, with a reduction of 3% response rate in
comparison to our previous survey conducted in 2020. This percentage sits below the average
response rate for similar organisations of 39%.

The survey, carried out by Picker on behalf of the Trust, used a mixed-mode data collection of both
online and paper-based surveys, in addition to using a range of contact for invitation and reminders
for completion, via letter and SMS format.

The survey was made available in a range of accessible formats, including Braille, Easy Read,
British Sign Language, non-English languages, telephone assisted completes and a screen-reader

Page 53 Page | 29



compatible online questionnaire. In addition to this, a freephone language line service was available

to provide translation services.

The representation of our respondents was as follows:

Respondents

0 condition
30%
of patients 9%) 1 50/0
responded to the 15-35 36-50
survey year olds year olds
31% | 46%
51-6?d , 66+|d 8‘V
year olds ear olds
51% 49% .
10%
3%
5%
70%

3%

of respondents said
they had a long term

S,

Asian/ Asian British

Black/ African/
Caribbean/ Black British

Mixed/ Multiple ethnic
groups

Other ethnic groups

White

y

In comparison to the previous year, the following changes were noted within the demographics of

respondents:

e An increased percentage response from those with a long-term condition (70% to 73%)
e A closer matched ratio of male to female participants (43/55% to 51/49%)

The key improvements and issues to address are summarised below:

Most improved scores since 2020

@ 98% Staff helped when needed attention
@ 96% Room or ward very or fairly clean
@ 91% Got enough to drink
0,
@ 79% discharge
@ 98% Had confidence and trust in the doctors

Top scores vs the Picker Average

Page 54

Staff discussed need for additional equipment or home adaptation after

Page | 30



Trust Score Picker Average

Given information about medicine

0 0
90% 87% at discharge
16% 13% Asked to give views on quality of
care during stay
97% 95% Questions before procedure were
answered well
98% 98% Staff helped when needed
attention
Focus on Inpatient views
77% Rated overall experience as 7/10 or more
97% Treated with respect and dignity overall
98% Had confidence and trust in the doctors

Bottom 5 scores vs the Picker Average

52% Food was very good or fairly good

56% Able to get food outside of mealtimes

64% Told who to contact if worried after discharge
39% Not prevented from sleeping at night

58% Staff did not contradict each other about care and treatment

OOOOO

Key successes include people getting help when they needed attention (Q30), increasing from 95% to
98% (above the national average of 97%). We maintained our scores for 98% of respondents having
confidence and trust in their doctors (Q17), and 97% for answering questions before procedure well
(Q32). These positive results are testament to the hard work and care of our clinical staff, and we will
aim to maintain and even exceed these scores in future years.

96% of respondents reported that their room or ward was very or fairly clean (Q8), an increase on the
previous score of 95%, in comparison to national results which saw a decrease in positive results since
2020.

When considering discharge from hospital, there was discussion about additional equipment or home
adaption (Q37) for 79% of respondents (an increase from 78% in 2020), and their medications (Q41)
for 90% of respondents (decreasing from 93% in 2020, remaining above the Picker average of 87%).

Looking at nutrition and hydration questions, there were both positive and negative results. We have
increased our score for getting enough to drink (Q15) from 90% to 91%, matching the national average.

Page 55 Page | 31



This coincides with work done with staff to ensure patients are regularly asked whether they would like
more to drink, and making water more readily available with the use of water dispensers on wards.
However, our food score (Q12) has fallen to 52% from 55%. As the survey was conducted prior to the
roll out of fully plated meals in January 2022 across all areas, allowing for increased patient choice at
each mealtime, we hope to see a positive change in these scores in future patient surveys.

We continue to ask patients their views on the quality of care during their stay, scoring 16%, which is
3% above the Picker average. However, this score has seen a downward trend since 2017 from 22%,
showing our need to focus on accessing patient opinion more regularly during their stay. The Patient
Experience and Volunteering team are currently working on ways to increase feedback received, and
this area will be a goal to look to improve over the next year. The implementation of the Patient Safety
Incident Response Framework (PSIRF) will support an increase in accessing patient views, as it has
a key focus on engaging those with a lived experience of NHS care as a key part of incident responses
and improvement work.

Listening to Our Staff

This is the twelfth year in which Whittington Health as an Integrated Care Organisation (ICO) has
conducted the national staff survey and the fifth year in which the Trust opted to invite all eligible staff
to complete it. It is the second year Whittington Health has opted to run the survey online only. This
paper summarises the results of the survey, draws out key comparative data and provides details of
the proposed steps for updating staff and developing action plans. The 2022 NHS England-
commissioned survey was sent to all staff in 124 NHS organisations. In 2022, 432,292 staff nationally
responded with a median response rate of 44%.

This is the second year the survey results are aligned to the People Promise. There are seven People
Promise elements which replace the old themes in addition to the existing elements of staff
engagement and morale. A total of 117 questions were asked in the 2022 survey, of these 97 can be
positively scored. Our results include every question where our organisation received at least eleven
responses, which is the minimum required.

Of Whittington Health’s (WH) 4519 eligible staff, 2019 staff took part in this survey, a response rate of
45% which is 1% below the average response rate for Acute and Acute & Community trusts using
Picker. The Trust’s response rate dropped by 7% since 2021. This is first time since 2017 that WH has
experienced a response rate below 48%.

The purpose is to give staff a voice and provide managers with an insight into morale,

staff engagement, wellbeing, culture and perception of service delivery. In 2020 NHS

England and NHS Improvement took the decision to combine Acute trusts and combined Acute and
Community trusts into one benchmarking group after analysis of the 2019 survey showed no
substantial difference in the occupation group profiles or the overall distribution of scores or the
survey themes for the two types of organisation. Whittington Health has been part of this newly
combined Acute and Acute & Community Trusts group since 2020.

Staff Engagement Indicator

For the 2022 Staff Survey the key findings that make up the engagement score of staff are:
e Staff recommendation of the trust as a place to work or receive treatment (Advocacy)

Page 56 Page | 32



e Staff motivation at work
e Staff ability to contribute towards improvements at work (Involvement)

Whittington Health’s theme score of 6.8 for staff engagement is the national average 6.8 score and a
reduction from the previous year which was 6.9.

Staff Morale Indicator

Whittington Health’s theme score of 5.5 for staff morale which is slightly below the national average of
5.7 and a reduction from last year where morale stood at 5.6. The reduction follows a similar trend with
other Acute and Acute Community Trusts.

The key findings that make up the Morale score are:

e Staff retention/turnover — thinking about leaving the organisation where the organisation
scored 0.4 below average.

e Work pressures where the organisation scored 0.2 below average.

e Stressors — where the organisation scored average, and in line with other organisations.

Whittington Health — 2022 overall results — Themes

In 2022 Whittington Health is not ranked as ‘worst’ or ‘best’ in any of the themes. The Trust is slightly
above average for one of the themes: We are a team; Average for two themes: We are recognised
and rewarded, and We each have a voice that counts. The Trust has scored slightly below average
in We are compassionate and inclusive, We are safe and healthy, We are always learning, We work

flexibly.
We are . ‘§_ E E % ;E
compassionate We are recognised We each havea  We are safe and We are always
and inclusive and rewarded voice that counts healthy learning We work flexibly  We are a team
10
9
8
7 .
. I .
= 6
= - .
by = e 1 |
2 ° .
8
w 4
3
2
1
8]
7.1 5.7 6.6 5.8 5.3 5.9 6.7
Best 7.7 6.4 71 6.4 5.9 6.6 7.1
7.2 5.7 6.6 5.9 5.4 6.0 6.6
Worst 6.8 5.2 6.2 5.4 4.4 5.6 6.3
Responses 2016 2017 2006 2004 1927 2014 2016

Most improved scores

Page 57 Page | 33



The table below shows the top five most improved scores for 2022 in comparison to 2021. Note that
in the areas of Development and Reasonable Adjustments the organisation is still below the NHS
average, with making reasonable adjustments to enable staff with disabilities to carry out their work
8.3% below average.

People Promise element or | Question 2021 | 2022 | NHS

theme average

We are safe and healthy: glib. In the last 12 months have you

Negative experiences experienced musculoskeletal problems | 36 604 | 33.2% | 30.6%
(MSK) as a result of work activities?

Morale: Stressors g5c. Relationships at work are 46.4% | 48.4% | 44.0%
unstrained

We are always learning: g22e. Able to access the right learning

Development andddevelopment opportunities when | 52.6% | 54.8% | 56.4%
need to

We are compassionate and | g8b. Colleagues are understanding 68.7% | 70.7% | 69.6%

inclusive: Inclusion and kind to one another

Not linked to People Promise q30b. Has your employer made

elements or themes reasonable adjustment(s) to enable 61.8% | 63.4% | 71.7%
you to carry out your work?

Most declined scores

The below table indicates the most declined areas in comparison to 2021 and shows the overall NHS
average in 2022. Note that despite the decline in these five areas since 2021, apart from the level of
pay satisfaction, the Trust remains above NHS average.

People Promise | Question 2021 | 2022 | NHS
element or theme Average
We are recognised and rewarded | g4c. Satisfied with level of pay 25 7% | 20% 25.1%

g23d. If friend/relative needed treatment
Staff Engagement/Advocacy would be happy with standard of care 67% 62.2% | 61.9%
provided by organisation ' '
We are compassionate and g23b. Organisation acts on concerns
inclusive: CompaSSIOnate Culture raised by patients/service users 747% 707% 683%
We are safe and healthy: Health | glla. Organisation takes positive action | 76.5% | 70.6% | 68.3%
and safety climate on health and well-being
We are safe and healthy: Health | q13d. The last time you experienced
and safety climate physical violence at work, did you or a 76.5% | 70.6% | 68.3%
colleague report ' ' '
it?

Highest and lowest scores in comparison to the NHS average

The below table shows the highest scores for WH in comparison to the NHS average scores.

The organisation has scored highly on quality of relationships at work and in two domains around line
manager’'s asking staff opinions before implementing changes and providing clear feedback. The
organisation has also scored positively around witnessing errors or near misses that could hurt the
patients or service users.

Page | 34

Page 58



Despite the organisation scoring positively (10% below NHS average) on staff not working additional
paid hours, the trust is still 7.4% above NHS average where staff are working additional unpaid hours.

People Promise element or | Question 2021 | 2022 | NHS

theme average
g10b. On average, how many
additional PAID hours do you work

Not themed per week for this organisation, over
and above your contracted 30.5% | 30.5% | 40.4%
hours?

Morale: Stressors g5c. Relationships at work are 46.4% | 48.4% | 44.0%
unstrained

We are a team: Line g9c. My immediate manager asks for

management my opinion before making decisions 60.9% | 62.1% | 56.9%
that affect my work.

Not themed gl7. In the last month have you seen
any errors, near misses, or incidents N/A 31.8% | 35.2%
that could have hurt staff and/or
patients/service users?

We are a team: Line g9b. My immediate manager givesme | 64.7% | 66.0% | 62.1%

management clear feedback on my work

The table below shows the bottom five scores for WH in comparison to the NHS average.

The organisation has seen an improvement in some of the bottom scores since 2021, such as the
organisation making reasonable adjustments for staff with long term conditions or disabilities, but it is
still one of our lowest scored compared to the NHS average. The same applies to career progression,
where the organisation has made an improvement of 2% but it is still below NHS average by 7.3%.
The organisation has seen a decline and remains in the bottom scores in the areas of working
additional unpaid hours, having adequate material to do my work and thinking about leaving.

People Promise element or | Question 2021 | 2022 | NHS

theme Overall
gl0c. On average, how many

Not themed additional UNPAID hours do you 62.5% | 63.7% | 56.3%
work per week for this organisation, ' ' '
over and above your contracted hours?

We are Safe.and healthy: Health q3h | have adequate materials,

and safety climate supplies and equipment to do my work | 47.0% | 46.5% | 53.5%
g.30b Has your employer made

Not themed reasonable adjustment(s) to enable 61.8% | 63.4% | 71.7%
you to carry out your work?

We are compassionate and g15. Does your organisation act fairly

inclusive: Diversity and equality | with regard to career
progression / promotion, regardless of 0 o 0
ethnic background, gender, religion, 46.3% | 48.3% | 55.6%
sexual orientation, disability or age?

Morale: Thinking about leaving g24b. | will probably look for a job at a
new organisation in the next 12 27.5% | 30.5% | 23.0%
months. ' ] ]

Progress on the 2021 Staff Action Plan
Page 59 Page | 35



In response to advice provided by the NHS Co-ordination Centre, the Trust sought to create action
plans that focused on a small number of key areas to ensure progress is made and staff are able to
experience the changes.

On receipt of the 2021 survey results the Workforce Directorate provided summaries of Integrated
Care Service Units (ICSU) and Directorate results with three suggested focus areas for each ICSU
and Directorate and a high-level action plan template.

The themes and templates were shared with all of the leads who were then tasked with cascading
downwards, using the ‘We Said We Did’ templates to capture improvement work at team level. In
addition to the templates and guides, departments and teams were issued with team coaching guides
and action plan to support workshops.

To support managers and ensure staff were included in the process a number of workshops and
support was offered by HR and Organisational Development (OD) to ‘hot spot’ teams. This included
attending senior team Away Days, helping managers facilitate workshops to share the data and identify
improvement areas.

The scoring matrix from the 2021 staff survey, which illustrates the changes in scores from the 2021
survey can be found in Appendix 4.

Details of the Equality indicators for the staff survey can also be found in Appendix 5.

2022 Maternity Survey

300 people, aged 16 or older who had a live birth during the month of February 2022, were invited to
take part in the survey. 54% of people responded, with a reduction of 7% response rate in
comparison to the previous survey conducted in 2021. Although reduced, this response rate is above
the average rate for similar organisations (48%).

The survey, conducted by Picker on behalf of the Trust, used a mixed-mode data collection of both
online and paper-based surveys, in addition to using a range of contact for invitation and reminders
for completion, via letter and SMS format. The online survey was available in nine non-English
languages and included accessibility formats.

The representation of our respondents was as follows:

Page 60 Page | 36



Respondents

54%

of patients
responded to the
survey

16-25

82% 31-35

of mothers who have
previously given birth

6%

year olds

39%

year glds

16%

of respondents said
they had a long-term

condition
16%
26-30
year olds
3
36+
9%
13%
6%
3%
66%

Asian/ Asian British

Black/ African/
Caribbean/ Black British

Mixed/ Multiple ethnic
groups

Other ethnic groups

White

y

The number of respondents reporting a long-term condition remained static at 16%, as did the
percentage of mothers who have previously given birth (82%). The percentage of respondents from
ethnic minority groups increased from 29% to 31%.

Key findings, improvements and issues to address are summarised below:

C21. Treated with respect and

o)
95% dignity (during labour and birth)

93% C22. Had confidence and trust in
staff (during labour and birth)

C20. Involved enough in decisions

about their care (during labour and

birth)

94%

Historical comparison™

= Significantly
' better
= Significantly

waorse

45 Wo significant
difference

Comparison with average®
2

= Significantly
'/ better
= Significantly
worse
48 Mo significant
difference

Most improved scores since 2021

70%
71%
69%
84%

72%

SIOIOIOIO

*Chart shows the number of questions that are betier, worse, or show no significant difference

Page 61

Saw the midwife as much as they wanted (postnatal)

Felt GP talked enough about mental health during postnatal check-up
Felt GP talked enough about physical health during postnatal check-up
Given enough support for mental health during pregnancy

Felt midwives aware of medical history (postnatal)

Page | 37



Top scores vs the Picker Average

Found partner was able to stay with them as long as they wanted (in
hospital after birth)

Given enough information about coronavirus restrictions and any
implications for maternity care

91%
85%
70% Saw the midwife as much as they wanted (postnatal)
90% Involved enough in decision to be induced

81% Able to ask questions afterwards about labour and birth

Most declined scores

73% Felt they they were given appropriate advice and support at the start of labour
83% Given information about changes to mental health after having baby
93% Had confidence and trust in staff (during labour and birth)

80% Given enough information about their own physical recovery

CICICICIC

94% Involved enough in decisions about their care (during labour and birth)

Bottom 5 scores vs the Picker Average

Q 72% Provided with relevant information about feeding their baby

@ 73% Felt they they were given appropriate advice and support at the start of
° labour

Q 63% Received suppport or advice about feeding their baby during evenings,
®  nights or weekends

Q 80% Given enough information about their own physical recovery

@ 82% Received help and advice about feeding their baby (first six weeks after

birth)

Key highlights to note include the excellent feedback that 91% felt their partners were able to stay for
as long as they wanted (D7), in comparison to a national average of 41%, reflecting the Trust's
proactive approach to risk assessing partner visiting during the Covid pandemic to allow this to
continue safely. This score was in the top 10 out of 121 Trusts who conducted the survey.

The survey results indicate that further work can be done to improve provision of information, advice
and support in maternity services (B16, F15 & F16: feeding information — 63% - 82%; C7: start of
labour — 73%, F14: physical recovery — 80%; F12: mental health - 83%). Following the survey, an
Ockendon visit took place in June 2022, which found that the service worked closely with the Maternity

Page 62 Page | 38



Voices Partnership to drive improvement, including co-design of patient information. Additional quality
improvement projects are currently underway looking at improving education and information for
maternity service users, which we hope will be reflected in future positive survey results regarding

information provision, advice, and support.

National Cancer Patient Experience Survey 2021

228 patients (with a confirmed primary diagnosis of cancer, discharged from an NHS Trust after an
inpatient episode or day case attendance for cancer related treatment in the months of April, May and

June 2021) were invited to take part in the survey, and 88 responses (39%) were received.

The survey was conducted in both paper and online form, with respondents from 10 different tumour
groups. Age distribution was from 25-85+, with 15% of total respondents from ethnic minority groups.

The executive summary is displayed below:
Questions Above Expected Range

Q22. Family and/or carers were definitely involved
as much as the patient wanted them to be in
decisions about treatment options

Questions Below Expected Range

Q6. Diagnostic test staff appeared to completely
have all the information they needed about the
patient

Q18. Patient found it very or quite easy to contact
their main contact person

Q19. Patient found advice from main contact
person was very or quite helpful

Q26. Care team reviewed the patient's care plan
with them to ensure it was up to date

Q32. Patient's family, or someone close, was
definitely able to talk to a member of the team
looking after the patient in hospital

Q34. Patient was always able to get help from ward
staff when needed

Q35. Patient was always able to discuss worries
and fears with hospital staff

Q37. Patient was always treated with respect and
dignity while in hospital

Q38. Patient received easily understandable
information about what they should or should not
do after leaving hospital

Q41 _1. Beforehand patient completely had enough
understandable information about surgery

Page 63

2021

Score

86%

2021
Score

69%

74%

89%

94%

35%

54%

44%

68%

70%

78%

Case Mix Adjusted Scores
Lower
Expected
Range

64%

Case Mix Adjusted Scores
Lower
Expected
Range

75%

77%

91%

95%

42%

61%

50%

78%

77%

80%

Upper

Expected
Range

85%

Upper
Expected
Range

93%

93%

100%

100%

79%

91%

84%

100%

100%

99%

National
Score

75%

National
Score

84%

85%

96%

99%

61%

76%
67%

89%

89%

89%

Page | 39



Q42_1. Patient completely had enough

understandable information about progress with 65% 74% 95% 85%
surgery

Q59. Patient's average rating of care scored from 8.4 8.6 92 8.9
very poor to very good

To put this into context the results came during a period of extreme challenges for the delivery of
patient centered care for Whittington Health cancer patients. Whilst it is accepted that many of the
scores are below the lower expected range, Cancer Services valued the opportunity to learn and
develop its services to ensure that these concerns are reduced in the future.

In response to the results, an action plan was drawn up to address some of the issues highlighted in
the survey. The actions included:

e Building a stronger working relationship with other hospitals to enable better understanding of
the needs of those with cancer or where cancer may be suspected.

e ‘Ten at Ten’ sessions were organised from September 2022 onwards giving the opportunity for
the clinical nurse specialist (CNS) team to engage with other healthcare professions to support
their learning and understanding about issues that might affect cancer patients. These included
topics such as neutropenic sepsis and spinal cord compression which may be the cause of an
acute admission. The CNSs also provide expert advice and guidance during a hospital
admission, as their expertise and good practice is essential to the development of ward staff,
which in turn enhances patient care.

e Training for frontline staff, including Ward Clerks and administrative staff around patient
engagement. This was delivered by ‘Wingfactors’ (aviation experts) during Q2 and Q3 of 2022.
This helped to promote and improve better communication with patients, their families and
carers, especially during periods when a hospital stay was required. During the time of the
survey, hospital visiting was very limited due to ongoing Covid-19 restrictions, which created
further problems with access to information, especially for a patient’s family and carers.

e Work is currently underway to increase the support available in cancer specific outpatient
settings using volunteers. This is to improve the patient experience, but also gives the
opportunity to engage with the patients to further support the collection of friends & family
feedback (FFT)

e Face to face Health and Wellbeing events have also increased during the latter part of 2022.
These help to increase engagement with different patient groups. This then supports patients
to gain further information and awareness of support mechanisms, which helps to manage
some of the concerns and anxieties that occur because of a cancer diagnosis and ongoing
treatment. An example of this was the highly successful Prostate Cancer event held in
September 2022. This focused on a patient group that had been poorly serviced in relation to
ongoing support (men and in particular Black Men who have a disproportionately higher chance
of being diagnosed with prostate cancer). The event brought patients and healthcare
professionals together, provided access to information, personal testimonies of living with this
condition and explored the need for ongoing support.

Page 64 Page | 40



Family & Friends Test (FFT)

Response Rates

A total of 29,577 Family & Friends Tests were completed for the year, with an average of 2,465 per
month. This is an increase on the previous year’s average of 2,067 per month.

August 2022 received the highest volume of submissions, coinciding with focused intervention of
Patient Experience team and Maternity services to increase response rates, going from a response
rate of 202 in July, up to 517 in August. Whilst this improved rates for that month, the subsequent
months did not maintain this rate, dropping to 167 the following month, demonstrating that further work
is required to embed the practice of services proactively requesting service user feedback.

4000
3352

2920
3000

2523 21zt 2734 2414 2545
2201 2293 2201
2000 1715 1852

1000

0
Jan

2023 Feb Mar

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Figure 1: Number of FFT Surveys completed in the Trust by month

Work has continued within the Patient Experience Team and Voluntary Services to promote and collect
FFT responses. This includes the ongoing work of collecting handwriten postcards to upload to the
electronic reporting system. A new project was commenced in Quarter 4 of 22/23, with Patient
Experience staff and volunteers regularly visting Outpatient waiting areas to promote completion of
FFTs, making electronic tablets available for patients to complete.

FFT responses are received from a range of sources, including:

SMS/text (12,329 responses)

Smartphone app/tablet/kiosk (7,710 responses)

Postcards (6,161 responses)

Online survey after discharge/appointment (1,781 responses)

Telephone survey after discharge of appointment (5 responses)

QR codes have been introduced across the Trust, enabling patients to provide feedback from their
own devices, as well as reducing the need for manual collection and inputting of data. The automated
SMS/text message is in place, with the largest number of SMS/text responses being received for the
Emergency Department FFT (9,388).

Scoring

The below charts demonstrate the percentages of “very good/good” versus “poor/very poor”
responses.

Page 65 Page | 41



FFT - All

C839%

% very good or good

(7.04%

- .,
Nk
il

, T &

% pOOr or very poor

FFT - Birth

- 98.81%

- —, h,

'/‘

s ——— ",

- 1031%

&

% pOOr of Very poor

FFT - Community

% very good or geod

e X

- 196.51%)

. e y,

% wery good or good

4 i ",

[I—

187%

'\ e y

% pOOr or very poor

FFT - Inpatient

937%

r — b,

b T 4

268% 7

“ — p

FFT - Outpatient

©190.99%)

% very good or good

h

-y

p

% very good or good

(669% [

% poor of very poor
e —— ™,

oy

'\:" A
||

., el &

% poor or very poor

FFT — Emergency
Department

o

(75.97%)

O —
% very good or good

’ - — ._:J..‘

17.14%)

“, —— &

% pOOr OF Very poor

Page 66




The overall average has fallen from 89% to 84%, with lowest scoring noted within the Emergency
Department and Outpatient FFTs. On further analysis, it is noted that this drop in responses were
during Quarter 2 and 3, with an uplift in scoring during Quarter 4, reflecting a proactive response of
Patient Experience and individual services to improve based on feedback received.

Figure 2: Very good and good responses for all FFTs
100%
75
50

25

0
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct

88% 86% 85%

Jan

2023 Feb Mar

The Patient Experience and Engagement Strategy for 2023-2025 has been written and an action

plan drawn up. Goals include:

e To expand methods used to receive feedback in order to engage with a wider audience that

IS representative of the community we serve.

e Toincrease our Friends and Family Test responses to baseline response rate seen prior to

the Covid Pandemic.

e To engage and recruit patient representatives to be present and able to contribute at Trust
meetings, playing an active role in improvements and learning from incidents.

VTE Risk Assessment Rates 21/22 & 22/23 to date

100% -

80% -

60% -

40%

% Risk Assessed

20% -

0%

2021/22 ‘ 2022/23

e \\hittington % Risk Assessed
— — — Target

National Average

Highest performing trust

Lowest performing trust

Every year, thousands of people in the UK develop a blood clot within a vein. This is known as a
venous thromboembolism (VTE) and is a serious, potentially fatal, medical condition. The Trust

Page 67

Page | 43



policy requires all admitted patients are individually risk assessed and have appropriate
thromboprophylaxis prescribed and administered.

Since April 2022 the Trust VTE Risk assessment compliance is consistently above 95% as per National
Standards.

The following actions have been taken:

Close co-operation between the VTE pharmacist and Information Technology to switch from a
non-mandatory VTE RA on ICE Sunquest to a mandatory VTE RA form on Careflow clinical
noting which happened in November 2021.

A Quality Improvement project has been published internally as an example of successful
implementation.

Subsequent inclusion of the VTE mandatory form into gynaecology, paediatrics and elective
surgical proformas to increase compliance rate and maintain a good level of safety in VTE
prevention.

Weekly VTE team meeting established to review actions to be taken to increase VTE RA
compliance and policies/guidelines e.g., sub-massive PE, COVID guidelines updates, one-page
anticoagulation and PE guidelines.

A quarterly Thrombosis Committee meeting also established starting from March 2022 with a
multidisciplinary representation.

Weekly MDT meeting to follow up patients who might need bridging plans/haematology reviews.

Root Cause Analysis:

Root cause analysis continue to represent an educational tool for healthcare professionals on VTE
thromboprophylaxis and the VTE pharmacist and the team are keen on keep collecting data to
prove our Trust standards and implementing a robust reporting system.

e A report system is currently in place for the Trust to be able to provide data on Hospital
Acquired Thrombosis (HAT) occurred annually in the Trust.

e Serious Incidents management (Datix) and co-operation with the Patient Safety Pharmacist
and Patient Safety Group leads to help increasing awareness of incidents occurring related
to anticoagulation.

The team is working towards an application as VTE Exemplar Centre.

A senior lead nurse leads the Trust Infection Prevention and Control (IPC) procedures, in collaboration
and under the direction of the Chief Nurse and Director of Allied Health Professionals, who is the
Accountable Officer, and Director of Infection Prevention and Control. The Infection Prevention and
Control Team (IPCT) provide a full service to hospital, dental, mental health and community services
across Whittington Health NHS Trust. Operationally, they are a team of senior IPC nurses, audit person
and an information analyst who support national, regional and local reporting on health care acquired
infections (HCAI), Trust attributable bacteraemia such as Methicillin Resistant Staphylococcus Aureus

Page 68 Page | 44



(MRSA) and Escherichia Coli (E. Coli); Clostridium Difficile infections, HCAI outbreaks; Seasonal
respiratory illness e.g., Influenza and Sars-Cov-2 (COVID-19) across the Trust.

The focus is on prevention of infection through surveillance, audit, education, training and reaudit. The
table below summarises the numbers of incidents of patients acquiring the main healthcare acquired
infections.

Nosocomial or Health Care Acquired Infections (HCAI) are defined as those occurring:

e as adirect result of treatment in, or contact with, a health or social care setting

e because of healthcare delivered in the community healthcare-associated infections

e outside a healthcare setting (for example, in the community) and brought in by patients, staff or
visitors and transmitted to others (for example, norovirus).

(NICE Quality Standard- 13 - 2016)

The UK Health Security Agency (UKHSA) monitors the numbers of certain infections that occur in
healthcare settings through routine surveillance programmes and advises on how to prevent and
control infection in establishments such as hospitals, care homes and schools.

Management of healthcare associated infections

Whittington Health’s infection prevention and control policy documents the importance of preventing
and reducing rates of HCAI and the surveillance of potential incidents. This remains critical for
inpatients who are at risk as they provide essential information on what and where the problems are
and how well control measures are working.

2022-23 Covid surveillance continues, anticipating a drop of reported infections in line with August
2022 guidance pausing routine asymptomatic testing in a number of NHS settings (e.g., emergency,
trauma). The Trust reports daily on all HCAlI COVID-19 infections. There have been 182 definite
COVID-19 HCAI cases in the reporting period 2022/23. Wherever known transmission has occurred,
appropriate IPC measures are implemented, individual cases are reviewed and when necessary,
closure of beds recommended. There is regular updating of the COVID-19 IPC guidance, and this is
incorporated within local policies and guidelines to ensure all staff are kept up to date on Department
of Health and NHSEI changes.

Page 69 Page | 45



400

No. of Covid19 +ve by month / classification

350 4

300 4

250

200 +

150

100

50

Intermediate HAI 11 1 21 25 2 1 ] ] 21 13 22 17
Probably HAI 8 2 13 12 1 14 2 15 21 23 13
B Definite HAI 11 3 6 10 3 1 s} 13 26 18 24 1z
B Community Acquired | 174 151 155 304 110 42 76 54 B7 72 65 86

The Infection Prevention and Control team continue to support the hospital and community services
by performing the post infection reviews which focus on all aspects of the patient journey from pre-
admission through to discharge when the patient acquires a HCAI. This includes a multi-disciplinary
clinical review of all cases with rapid feedback of good practice and/or any lapse in care identified to
prompt ward-level learning; these are reported at the Infection Prevention and Control Committee
(IPCC) meeting to ensure Trust-wide sharing and learning and an appropriate platform for escalating
outstanding actions.

2022/23 has seen an increase of Clostridium Difficile (C. Diff) cases compared with previous years
which may be a threefold consequence of 1) increased use of key antibiotics required during the acute
and subsequent phases of the COVID-19 pandemic 2) the altered surveillance definitions of health or
community acquisition and 3) C. difficile threshold is calculated during the 12 months ending November
2021 data. If a trust had more than ten cases the threshold will be one less than the count. Up until
February 23 Whittington Health reports zero cross infection in relation to this infection. March cases
remain outstanding on referencing two sample strains to rule out cross contamination of two cases
found in the same ward at the same time.

The table below summarises the numbers of incidents of patients acquiring the main healthcare
acquired infections.

Page 70 Page | 46



Infection Outcomes

MRSA There is a zero tolerance on MRSA blood stream infections (BSI).

(Methicillin Unfortunately, there were two reported case in the reporting year. The first

Resistant case (February 23) is from an unclear source and a possible contaminant. The

Staphylococcus | second case is from a probable source that is intravenous line related. There

Aureus) are Trust wide learning outcomes identified and dedicated work streams
underway through audit and education to minimise infections going forward.

Clostridium

Difficile

Infections (CDI)

Clostridium Difficile Rates

— 2021/22 m— 2022/23
e )(021/22 Cumulative emm— ) (022/23 Cumulative
= = = FYTarget
40 - g

35

30 -

25 A

20 -

15 A

10 A

NUmber of Hospital Acquired Cases

o H H H H H H H H NN N N NN NN NS 0O o®nom
RN SN R B S B SRS BB S
S > ©c 5 oo o+ > 0 c 0O & & > c S oo = > 0 c o -
2 © 5 32 5 o R 0 9 8 o0 &8 2 3 5 2 3 ¢ 8B 0 9 o 0 &
< s = < v O 20 > 0w s < s = g v O Zz o - u© S

The UKHSA CDI trajectory recommended for 2022/23 within the Trust was set
at 14, Whittington Health reported 21 cases of CDI (Hospital onset, healthcare
associated (Day 2 or later since admission HOHA) above the target. All cases
were investigated under collaboration with microbiology, pharmacy, IPC,
nursing and the medical teams. There have been no lapses in care related to
cross-transmission or antibiotic choices until February, March cases
investigation continue. Recurring themes from post infection reviews (PIR)
were:
e Missed opportunity to send stool on time (making a CAl a HAI)
e Notisolated

o as no side room

o not recognising infectious diarrhoea
e Poor documentation

o not being able to isolate not recorded

o no pre-admission bowel habit recorded

o no cause of diarrhoea assessment undertaken

IPC are working alongside the EPR program team to ensure documentation on
the frontline is intuitive, clear and simple. Rapid patient clinical assessment is
essential for providing appropriate IPC management and reducing the spread

of infection.

Page 71 Page | 47



Infection Outcomes

E.Coli Trusts are required under the NHS Standard Contract 2022/23 to minimise
Bacteraemia rates of both C. difficile and of Gram-negative bloodstream infections so that
they are no higher than the threshold levels set by NHS England and
Improvement. There were 17 Trust-attributed E. coli blood stream infections
(BSI) this year of a trajectory set at 35. The national objective in line with the
UK five-year plan 'Tackling antimicrobial resistance 2019-2024'" is to halve
healthcare associated Gram-negative BSIs, by March 2024 to which
Whittington are on target.

Respiratory In the winter of 2022, there were 36 acquired cases of influenza within the
other than C19 | hospital, no HCAI deaths were associated. We are currently seeing slight
increase in cases of Influenza B which is consistent with seasonal picture.
Influenza A and RSV cases occurring in low numbers.

Surgical  Site | National mandatory SSI reporting is one quarter / one orthopaedic surgical
Infections (SSI) | procedure. Whittington opted to report three quarters in 2022/23 on large bowel
and repair of neck of femur fracture surgery as follows:

e Apr to Jun 22 Large bowel Surgery and repair of neck of femur fracture
surgery

e Julto Sep 22 No SSI surveillance undertaken

e Octto Dec 22 Repair of neck of femur fracture surgery — data being finalised

e Jan to Mar 23 Repair of neck of femur fracture surgery

The Trust reported:
e 7 large bowel surgery SSls
e 0 repair of neck of femur fracture surgery

SSil risk is above the national 90th percentile in both above operations
although the number of operations occurring are small and could distort
percentages. It is recommended by UKHSA that surveillance should be
undertaken in more than one consecutive period or continuously so that ‘more
precise rates can be estimated from a larger set of cumulative data’ (UKHSA
2013 - Protocol for the Surveillance of Surgical Site Infection). Large bowel
surgery is complex and often with urgency therefore considered an increased
risk of infection and therefore will cease surveillance in 23/24. Surveillance on
reduction of long bone fracture surgery will be considered as a replacement of
NoFs in 23/24 given the low operations performed.

Serious incidents

The Serious Incident (SI) Executive Approval Group (SIEAG), comprising the Medical Director, Chief
Nurse and Director of Allied Health Professionals, Chief Operating Officer, the Associate Director of
Quality Governance and Serious Incident Coordinator, meets weekly to monitor and review new
incidents and serious incident investigation reports as defined within NHS England’s Serious Incident

Page 72 Page | 48



Framework (March 2015). In addition, internal root cause analysis investigations with
recommendations and actions are monitored and reviewed by the panel.

All serious incidents are reported to North East London Commissioning Support Unit via the Strategic
Executive Information System (StEIS) and a lead investigator is assigned by the Clinical Director of
the relevant Integrated Clinical Service Unit (ICSU). All serious incidents are uploaded to the National
Reporting and Learning System.

During 2022/23 there were 19 serious incidents reported on StEIS. As illustrated in the graph below,
the number of Serious Incidents declared as a proportion of all patient safety incidents has been
reducing since 2016. This is a positive trend, indicative of an open, transparent safety culture where
reporting of incidents is encouraged, with a higher volume of incidents which are near misses or low
harm incidents.

Figure 1: Serious Incidents declared, as a proportion of all patient safety incidents 2016-2023

Recorded Incidents/Serious Incidents

9000 60
8000

7000 >0
6000 ‘ l 40
5000

4000 %0
3000 20

2000
10
1000
0 0

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22  2022/23

mmmm All Patient Safety Incidents Serious Incidents Recorded on StEIS

In preparing for the new Patient Safety Incident Response Framework (PSIRF), Whittington Health
have reviewed processes to ensure that the identification of systems issues and human factors remain
at the forefront of our work with a focus on learning and improving practice. The Serious Incident
Executive Advisory Group (SIEAG) have supported the use of alternative tools, such as After-Action
Reviews, a Multidisciplinary team (MDT) approach, Quality Improvement (QI) projects and audit
projects, to drive change.

Completed investigation reports with a summary letter, highlighting key findings and changes made as
a result, are shared with the patient and/or family member with an offer of a meeting with the Trust to
discuss the findings.

Lessons learned following each investigation were shared with all staff and ICSUs involved in the care
provided, through various methods including the ‘Big 4’ in theatres, and ‘message of the week’ in
Maternity, Obstetrics, and other departments. Learning from incidents is shared through Trust-wide
multimedia such as a regular patient safety newsletter, as well as at local ICSU Quality & Risk meetings
and other internal media sources.

Page 73 Page | 49



Never Events

A Never Event is defined as a serious, largely preventable, patient safety incident that should not occur
if the available preventative measures have been implemented; this is a list of specific events defined
nationally.

Figure 2: The number of Never Events reported by Whittington Health from 2016 to 2023

Never Events

~ O

2
0 m B [
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Misplaced naso or orgogastric tubes

Retained foreign object post-procedure

Unitentional connection of a patient requiring oxygen to an air flowmeter
Wrong implant/prosthesis

B Wrong site surgery

During 2022/23, the Trust reported one Never Event which was wrong site surgery.

A patient who was admitted to Whittington Health NHS Trust for an elective shoulder procedure in the
Day Treatment Centre (DTC). As part of the anaesthetic plan, the patient was to be given a general
anaesthetic and a nerve block. Unfortunately, the nerve block was performed on the incorrect side .
This was immediately noted. Surgery was cancelled and rebooked for the following day. Subsequent
surgery (and correct side block) occurred uneventfully on the following day.

Learning from the incident was as follows:

e Consistent completion of the WHO surgical list with the anaesthetist undertaking the procedure
present.

e Consistent use of ‘Stop Before You Block’ for all anaesthetic team members involved in the
procedure.

e To ensure patients are not asked leading questions about their procedures.

Healthcare Safety Investigation Branch (HSIB) Maternity incidents

The Healthcare Safety Investigation Branch (HSIB) maternity investigation programme is part of a
national action plan to make maternity care safer. HSIB undertakes approximately 1,000 independent
maternity safety investigations a year to identify common themes and influence systemic change. All
NHS Trusts with maternity services in England refer incidents to HSIB.

From 1 April 2022 to March 2023, Whittington Health referred five cases to HSIB for investigation. The
reasons for referral were potential hypoxic ischaemic encephalopathy (HIE) and intrapartum stillbirth.
Two of the families declined for HSIB to review the care. One case was not investigated by HSIB as
on further review the case did not meet HIE criteria.

Page 74 Page | 50



Two HSIB reviews for intrapartum stillbirths have now been completed. One report concluded that
appropriate care was provided, and no safety recommendations were made. The other had two safety
recommendations — one with respect to maternity triage telephone access and clinical prioritisation
which has been part implemented to date and one regarding a fetal wellbeing mandatory study day
including Intelligent Intermittent fetal monitoring auscultation as part of the programme. The Intelligent
Intermittent fetal monitoring auscultation guideline is under review.

As at the end of March 2023, the Trust has no active investigations being undertaken by HSIB. Also,
no new referrals have been made as no cases met HSIB criteria since the end of March 2023.

Perinatal Mortality Review Tool (PMRT)

Perinatal Mortality Review Tool (PMRT) supports systematic, multidisciplinary, high-quality reviews of
the circumstances and care leading up to and surrounding each stillbirth and neonatal death, and
babies who die in the post-neonatal period having received neonatal care. PMRT provides a structured
process of review, learning, reporting and actions to improve future care.

In 2022 ten cases met eligibility criteria for PMRT review. The eligible cases were stillbirths. From
those, seven reviews have been completed and three are ongoing. The progress is within Maternity
Incentive Scheme (MIS) timeframes. For five of the cases there were no care and or service delivery
problems identified. For two cases, care and service delivery problems were identified. For the first
case this was related to staff not accessing available information regarding the woman’s mental health
history. This, however, did not impact on the outcome. For the second case, the low dose aspirin
pathway was not adhered too, the review panel found that this may have contributed to the outcome.
For all cases, the families have been involved in the PMRT reviews.

Patient safety alerts are issued via the CAS, which is a web-based cascading system for issuing alerts,
important public health messages and other safety information and guidance to the NHS and other
organisations. The Trust uses a cascade system to ensure that all relevant staff are informed of any
alerts that affect their areas.

In 2022/23 the Trust received 34 safety alerts (of which eleven were National Patient Safety Alerts
issued by NHS Improvement/NHS England). These have each been actioned and closed as
appropriate.

Safety alerts are reviewed by the relevant group — for example Patient Safety Alerts are reviewed at
Patient Safety Group, and Estates and Facilities alerts are reviewed at Health and Safety Committee
— in addition there is a six-monthly Safety Alert Group in place to review performance regarding the
closure of all CAS alerts.

The Quality Governance Committee monitors compliance with CAS alerts, and the Quality Assurance
Committee receive updates on any concerns as part of the quarterly Quality report.

Page 75 Page | 51



The Freedom to Speak Up Guardian (FTSUG) for Whittington Health is continuously working to
engage with teams and services across Community and Hospital departments and strengthen its
relationships across the trust. The Guardian has adapted to meet the needs of staff over the course of
the COVID-19 pandemic where there are less opportunities to meet staff face to face. Towards the
year end in March 2023, more people have been preferring face-to-face appointments returning to pre
pandemic levels.

The Guardian has worked closely with the communications team to review the Trust’'s media activity
and promotion to refresh a focus on speaking up. the Trust launched the new Speak Up badges to
improve the visibility of the Speak up Advocates network and allies across the Trust. The new badges
state ‘Freedom to Speak Up, Speak to me” encouraging people to approach the network. The
Intranet page was improved, enabling everyone to access it through the main page on the site. An all-
staff email was sent to everyone in the organisation about Freedom to Speak Up (what we do, who we
are and how to contact us). Another email was sent in Spring 2022 as a reminder that everyone can
reach out in a safe confidential way. Posters across the community health sites are being updated
displaying information about the Speak Up Advocates working on that site. The Guardian continues to
be part of the Nurse, Midwives and Allied Health Professionals Preceptorship Study Day and Newly
Quialified Nurses Orientation Training, Health Care Support Worker (HCSW) Development Programme
and Medical Education Induction to explain how to raise concerns safely and confidentially, raising the
profile of FTSU. The Guardian continues to attend the Trust Induction Day for all new starters.

The collaboration between the FTSUG and the Organisational Development team and Human
Resources continues to be fundamental to reinforce learning and acting on the concerns received.
This collaboration has allowed the trust to challenge cultural behaviours, bullying and harassment and
detriment in a serious, committed, and constructive way.

The Guardian has offered regular supervision and support to consolidate the network of Speak Up
Advocates. Currently the network, representing diversity, equality, and inclusion across the Trust, has
45 Advocates, across job roles and services. They are trained to actively listen to colleagues raising
concerns and provide unobstructive emotional support for staff in difficult meetings.

Whittington Health has been working closely with the joint Directors of Race, Equality, Diversity &
Inclusion and all the Staff Networks to listen to staff concerns, promote a healthy and positive Speak
Up culture and help remove additional barriers that staff may face in speaking up. Collaboration and
mutual support are growing between the FTSUG and the Networks leadership, who have been
escalating concerns and signposting accordingly to the Guardian some of the concerns raised within
the network’s members.

During this year, the FTSUG received 84 initial concerns that required action. These 84 concerns
created 84 new opportunities for change and improvement. We always thank staff raising concerns for
this valuable contribution. Considering the impact of COVID-19 and winter pressure, it is encouraging
to see the number of concerns is returning to the levels seen prior to the Pandemic. Only two concerns
were anonymous and have been reported internally and investigated. This hopefully represents a
gradual change to an open and positive culture for raising concerns and suggests that staff are starting
to feel more confident and safer to disclose their identities while speaking up. 54 concerns presented
an element of bullying or harassment. 14 involved patient safety/ experience. Aligned with the National
figures reported by the Guardians to the National Guardian office, the percentage of cases at

Page 76 Page | 52



Whittington Health involving an element of patient safety or quality of care has decreased, while cases
involving elements of bullying and harassment have also dropped.

The plan for the next twelve months is to focus on the response of managers and leaders to staff who
speak up and will be focused on a new National Guardian’s Office Freedom to Speak Up e-learning
package, in association with Health Education England. The first module — Speak Up — is for all
workers. The second module, Listen Up, for managers, focuses on listening and understanding the
barriers to speaking up. Also, following the national workforce race equality standard (WRES) in depth
review of race equality and the WRES data at Whittington Health, there was feedback that some staff
report still feeling cautious about speaking to the FTSUG or Advocates. Communication and work to
support black and minority ethnic staff gaining further confidence in the role will be a priority over the
next 6-12 months. Proactive engagement with our temporary, agency and bank workers are also a
priority for the next 12 months.

There continues to be a significant emphasis on the safety of junior doctors’ working hours. This has
been reflected in the ongoing engagement with the exception reporting process by both junior doctors
and their supervisors. These clearly document the extra hours worked over and above their rostered
hours, as well as the breaks that are missed. The time accrued through exception reports continue to
be reimbursed with either time off in lieu or payment. The reasons for extra hours worked are analysed
to try and effect change to prevent this from recurring where possible.

This year has seen ongoing issues with significant staff shortages across all training grades due to
high levels of sickness coupled with high levels of acuity of patients, as we have seen across the wider
NHS. There also continues to be high levels of fatigue and burnout amongst all staff and the hard work
and resilience of junior doctors is to be commended.

There continues to be good engagement with the process of exception reporting as laid out in the 2016
terms and conditions. There has been an ongoing effort to encourage all specialities to promote and
encourage the use of exception reporting and a particular emphasis on those at higher levels of training
where low levels of exception reporting is typically seen. The reasons for this are being explored.

The Guardian of Safe Working Hours has worked closely with the junior doctors’ forum to ensure there
is a proactive approach to compliance with the 2016 terms and conditions. This is also where the
spending of monies generated from exception reporting is discussed and decided. This process will
continue.

Whittington Health is committed to the 7 Day Hospital Services (7DS) Programme. The programme
supports providers of acute services in tackling the variation in outcomes for patients admitted to
hospitals in an emergency, at the weekend across the NHS in England. The Trust has made
progress with all 4 priority standards, particularly Standard 6 where the Trust is now fully compliant
for the first time this year. The Trust continues to do focussed improvement work on the remaining
priority standards to move towards 100% compliance:

e Standard 2: Time to initial consultant review: this has been reaudited annually as part of the
national Society of Acute Medicine Benchmarking Audit (SAMBA) and the Trust have

Page 77 Page | 53



consistently showed that we meet time to initial consultant review with the exception of
patients arriving between 1500 and 2000 as this would require significant investment as would
require an extension of the standard working day of General Medical consultants to midnight.
Currently the acute medical admissions are covered by a consultant on the floor from 0800 to
2000 in line with most acute medical units which allows for the teams to ensure the sickest
and most complex patients are prioritised for review which may well explain why no
complaints, clinical incidents or feedback from mortality reviews have included lack of timely
consultant review as a quality concern over the last year when the Acute Medicine team have
monitored for this outcome.

Standard 5: Access to diagnostics: The magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) service is now
available during daytime hours 7 days a week on site for spinal cord compression with out of
hours cover still provided at The National Hospital for Neurology and Neurosurgery (NHNN).
Echo cover increasing with training programme underway of Intensive Care Unit, Emergency
Department, and acute medical staff to provide 7-day cover by 2025.This is taking longer than
anticipated last year due to key staff being required to cover acute work.

Standard 6: Access to consultant led interventions: All areas are compliant with either onsite
or as network pathway with partner Trusts. Access to 24/7 Interventional Radiology is via an
onsite 6-day daily service with emergency out of hours cover provided by University College
London Hospital which is working well.

Standard 8: Ongoing daily consultant-directed review: In most specialities this is place-
Obstetrics and Gynaecology, Surgical specialities, ITU, Paediatrics but remains challenging in
Medicine. The electronic record and handover system and effective daily meetings (Board
Rounds) has allowed effective prioritisation for daily review, but it must noted that at
weekends the weekend consultant staffing in medicine not adequate to allow consultant level
ward reviews rather this task is delegated to the ward registrar who asks for consultant input
from the on-site consultant if required. This is under active review with QI plans for 2023-4 to
trial adding in another weekend consultant to support the ward patients.

The Trust is fully compliant with the remaining standards 1, 3, 4, 7, 9 and 10 which are
assessed through self-assessment annually.

Page 78 Page | 54



Part 3: Review of Quality Performance

This section provides details on the progress the Trust is making with the Quality Account priorities
2020-23. the Key milestones and targets were identified for Year 3 (2022/23), and notwithstanding the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic the Trust has made significant progress.

Priority not achieved
Priority partially achieved
Priority achieved

Aims for 2022/2023:

Project 1: Patients in Hospital:
e Goal 1: For 65% of patients to have assessment of functional status within 24 hours.
e Goal 2: For 70% of patients to be mobilised within 24 hours.
e Goal 3: To ensure that 15 patients are mobilised daily.

Functional status & Mobilisation within 24

hours: _ % of patients receiving assessment
During 2022-23, prqjgct.wprk was of functional status and mobility
undertaken by multidisciplinary (MDT) .

once admitted

colleagues within the acute settings to

promote the importance of early 100%

mobilisation to reduce hospital acquired 90%

deconditioning. It was identified that 20%

assessment of functional status included Target % mobilsation
mobilisation, therefore intervention and 70% e e s —
audits for these goals were combined. 60%

Intervention across the year included: daily  50%
therapy attendance at ward board rounds 40%
and safety huddles; using clinical frailty 30%
score to identify and prioritise those
requiring early assessment of mobilisation;
development and promotion of clear

20%

10%

therapy inclusion and exclusion criteria; 0% _
MDT Falls presentation at local Grand Qt (April) Q2 (August) Q3 (October)
Round to promote links between W % Within 24 hours W % Within 48 hours

deconditioning and mobility.

Initial audits conducted in Q1 demonstrated a range of 37-51% of patients having an
assessment of their functional status within 24 hours of admission, rising to a range of 62-74%
being assessed within the first 48 hours of admission. Following engagement with therapy

Page 79 Page | 55



staff in the project, a clear inclusion and exclusion criteria was produced to identify those that
would be appropriate for assessment within the first 24 hours of admission.

Audits conducted in Q2 demonstrated that functional assessment within 24 hours had
increased to 57% (and up to 77% within 48 hours of admission). Further analysis of the data
demonstrated the robustness of therapy screening, as 8 patients (out of 120) that did not
receive an assessment during their admission all met the therapy exclusion criteria. Of those
patients admitted for less than 24 hours, 100% received appropriate intervention, either
receiving an assessment or excluded from assessment in line with the criteria produced.

A further audit conducted in Q3 demonstrated a further increase to 70% assessment within 24
hours, up to 89% within 48 hours of admission.

Daily mobilisation:

Coyle (a 32 bedded ward) was identified as a speciality ward that cares for those with neck of
femur fractures, and therefore appropriate as a focal point for the daily mobilisation project.

In Q2, an audit of daily mobilisation was carried out, with results indicating that an average of
12 patients were mobilised per day, with an average of 69% of those appropriate to be

mobilised. WF%.,  PREVENTING
L . - €3+,  MUSCLE

The audits identified several reasons for patients declining to e WEAKNESS
mobilise, including pain, fatigue, agitation, and nausea. Based !:‘ 1 ,,mm@
on these results, the therapy team looked at ways to eradicate 2 sitoutin ‘“.:‘,;‘;::::Z"'%
barriers. This included raising awareness of importance of the chalr
mobility to patients, staff, and visitors with posters as well as 3 Gofora 2
staff education. Barriers to mobilisation were raised and q e walk A
discussed in daily board rounds, considering optimisation of sgg g
analgesia, identification of patients that those independently 5 ."";@2,
mobile or able to be assisted by nursing staff (rather than solely 8 wasn bed

. - A . . 2 independently &= 1
reliant on therapy for mobilisation). Further ideas included RN p/\
focusing on toileting, washing, and dressing as ways to “

promote retaining independence and mobility.

Following these interventions, a repeat audit was carried out which demonstrated an
improvement in daily mobilisation, with an average of 19 patients mobilised per day, and an
average of 84% of those appropriate to be mobilised.

Page 80 Page | 56



Audit of Daily Mobilisation
I

Quarter 2 Audit Quarter 3 Audit

100%

30

90%

80%

|
1
|
I
1
1
25 I
1

70%

20

I 60%
! 50%
15 —eesccccsccccccolleccccecopeccececcccececVocleccecoceceee [PRRTERY IR PR PR BRY PRY PRPRR
1 40%
10 ! .
I 30%
! 20%
5 |
| 10%
1
0 1 0%
N AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN NN N NN N AN NN NN N NN NN
AN AN AN AN AN AN NN NN NN NN NN IN [ I o R o I o A o O o B o A o N o |
OO0 0O 00O 0O 00000000000 OO0 00O oo o o o O
N AN AN N &N NN AN NN AN NN N NN N NN |N N N N N NN N NN
S~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~ ~ ~ ~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~
a OO O O OO OO OO O OO O OO OO O O O OO O 0O Q" «=H = N N N N N N
O O O O O O O O O OO0 OO0 O o o o o o IH N = = A A A
n O ™~ 0 O N MO < 1N O O 4 N M O N 0 O O I 00 OO O 4 &N 1N O I~ 0 O
O O O O O o +d =+ 1 4 N N N N N N AN AN nfn N n ©O OO O o o o
mmmmm Mobilised (number)  eeecee Target (number) % mobilised (of those appropriate)

Project 2: Discharge:
e Goal 1: To reduce length of stay through implementation of a delirium discharge pathway
pilot.
e Goal 2: Reduce medically optimised patients by 50% on a daily basis.
e Goal 3: Virtual Ward to utilise 20 beds daily (4 of these for patients with delirium)
e Goal 4: Reducing length of stay for patients who require a ‘Trial without Catheter’ (TWOC)
by at least one day.

Delirium Discharge Pathway

This has been very successful in Islington, the number of people that have been selected as
suitable for this pathway has been higher than anticipated. Further funding has been agreed by
the Integrated Care Board (ICB) to continue to support this successful pathway. It was
implemented in Haringey in January 2023 the delay was due to recruitment and funding
challenges, that have now been resolved. The plan is to continue this priority until it is fully
embedded in Haringey as well as Islington.

Reducing Medically Optimised Patients

This priority has not been achieved and will be rolled over to 2023/2024. There has been an
increase in medically optimised patient delays which has been attributed to lack of placements
and care resources in the community.

Virtual Ward Utilisation

Page 81 Page | 57



This priority has been consistently achieved throughout 2022/2023. Virtual ward has exceeded
past the initial 20 bed usage at times due to the successful utilisation and we plan to increase
the use of Virtual Ward bed usage for 2023/2024.

Reducing length of stay for patients who require a ‘Trial without catheter’.

This priority was not achieved as the pathway was only implemented in January 2023. This was
due to funding being discontinued during 2022. Further funding streams have been agreed and
the priority is being rolled over for 2023/2024 to maximise the impact on length of stay.

Project 3: Reducing admissions:
e Goal 1: Utilisation of new falls pick up service to support people to be supported at home
rather than requiring admission.
e Goal 2: Newly restructured Urgent Response and Recovery Care Group to streamline
discharge and ensure patients are seen by the right clinician first time and within the new
national guidance of 2 to 24 hours.

The falls pick up service was not fully utilised in 2022/23 due to higher acuity patients requiring
to be seen post fall.

The urgent response and recovery care group trialled managed to see a large majority of
patients within the time frame of 2 — 24hrs, however this was also a reflection of higher acuity
patients and the majority of patients seen were unable to be streamlined due to the severity of
their issues. We aim to continue this work during 2023/24.

2 Hours 291
4 Hours 152
24 Hours 300
Not seen within requested time 314
frames
Q2
2 Hours 339
4 Hours 166
24 Hours 316
Not seen within requested time frame 371
Q3
2 Hours 227
4 Hours 178

Page 82 Page | 58



24 Hours 334

Not seen within requested time frames 418
Q4

2 Hours 289

4 Hours 139

24 Hours 308

Not seen within requested time frames 460

Admission rates per quarter for 2022/2023:

Q1 - 211/1057(20%)
Q2 -197/1192(16.5%)
Q3- 226/1157(19.5%)
Q4 -213/1196(18%)

The raised admission rate of 16.5 - 20% is a reflection of the higher acuity patients accepted
to the Whittington Health Response and Recovery service.

Aims for 2022/23:

We aim to improve communication with patients and their relatives by:

Project 1: Implementing Zesty (an online, secure, interactive platform that is easily accessible)
to improve outpatient's experience and quality of communication.

Goal 1: Introduction of Zesty in all outpatient clinics by the end of March 2023

Goal 2: 30% of outpatients to be onboarded to the app by end of March 2023

Goal 3: Improved patient satisfaction in outpatient communication.

Goal 4: Improved timeliness of patient appointment correspondence showing a positive
impact of reducing ‘Did not attend’ (DNA) rate.

The Zesty programme has made excellent progress in 2022/2023 having undertaken a
successful pilot in Haematology and Respiratory service in Q1 of 2022, the technical processes
work correctly and importantly we surpassed our patient registration target by 3% achieving
43%. The programme has received the green light for full acute roll out (Phase 1) with go live
commencing from the 10th of January 2023.

Portal benefits include:

Page 83 Page | 59



. Reduction of physical outpatient appointment letters being printed and posted, therefore
a reduction in costs

. Option to add appointments to personal calendars from the portal

. Patients don’t need to worry about misplaced appointment letters, service contact details
available on the portal

. NHS App integration - Early 2023 we will see the Zesty portal accessible via the NHS
app through a single point of access for our patients using their existing NHS log ins.

. Reduced DNA rates - portal users can autonomously cancel and reschedule their
appointments without calling a member of the booking team (Phase 2).

. Relieving pressure on booking staff and/or call centre and clinic staff by reducing the
number of calls from patients* (Phase 2).

*Benefit dependant on adequate number of future available appointment slots.

Parallel to the Zesty Project, the Wayfinder Project has been gaining traction over the last few
months and plans are for this to be ready for a go live decision by the end of January 2023. The
Wayfinder Project is collaborative work with NHS England to integrate the Zesty Patient Portal
into the NHS App for a single point of seamless access to outpatient appointment information.

The Project Management Office (PMO) are also exploring additional features within the portal
which were not part of the initial project scope. These include:

Forms/questionnaires for portal feedback,
patient-initiated bookings,

Community integration

Clinical letters.

Project 2: Improving timeliness of contact with a patient’s Next of Kin (NOK) for those admitted
to hospital.

e Goal 1: For 70% of NOK details to be checked within 24hrs of admission by end of March
2023.

e Goal 2: For 70% of NOKs to be contacted within 24 hours of admission by end of March
2023.

NOK detail checking

A baseline audit was conducted to establish the number of NOK details recorded on the

inpatient electronic note system. It identified that of 889 adult, non-elective admissions in May

2022, 86% had NOK details recorded. For the remaining 14%, errors ranged from no

information recorded, partial information recorded (e.g., name with no number, number with no

name), or incomplete telephone numbers recorded. The audit identified that the system did not
record when details were last updated. On exploration of this with Information Technology, it
was identified that the system was not able to account for this, and that alternative ideas
needed to be explored to ensure the information recorded was current and accurate. This led
to multiple changes ideas, including:

v' Emergency Department (ED) staff handing out NOK information cards for patients to fill out
whilst they were in the waiting area and returning to front desk once completed, to avoid
“bottle necking” occurring at the front desk when NOK details required updating, or in
cases where patients were reluctant to provide details out loud in a busy ED environment.

Page 84 Page | 60



v' ED administrative team sharing ideas about how they record updates on the system, using
free text areas to include date/time of NOK updates, as well as recording if patients
declined to give details or reported no known NOK.

v A prompt to check NOK details via admission board rounds was introduced.

v IT reviewed accessibility of EPR, to ensure that staff who may receive updates to NOK
details have the correct access to update the system.

Following introduction of these, NOK details were re-audited in August and October. August
data (883 non-elective adult admissions) showed a 1% increase in details recorded, with a
further increase of 6% (13% above target) from baseline by October (970 non-elective adult
admissions). Records with no

information recorded fell from 8% % of NOK details recorded on Electronic

at baseline to 3% by October. Patient Record

Although this shows improvement 039

and an achievement of the target 100% 86% 87%

set, the gold standard for NOK 80%

contact details should be 100%, as 60%

in the event of emergencies or a 40%

change in a patient’s ability to 20%

communicate and provide informed 0%

consent, NOK contact details May August October

would be required. It is therefore

recommended that further

improvement work continues with

capturing and maintaining accurate NOK details.

% NOK details Target (70%)

NOK Contact

A baseline snap-shot audit of 30 patient records was conducted in May. 13 next of kins were
contacted during their admission, 11 occurring within 24 hours of admission. Those not
contacted included 15 patient (50%) where notes indicated there was no concern regarding
the patient’'s communication, ability, or capacity, and the patient was provided with updates
directly, with the expectation that they would provide the information they deemed necessary
to their own NOK.

Following this audit, stakeholders within

the admission wards were identified and % of recorded contacts, requiring

consulted as to how to improve NOK communication, achieved
timeliness of NOK contact, as well as within 24 hours of admission
developing clear criteria for those . 7% 77%
requiring an update within 24 hours. This B0% 73%

75%
70%
65%

resulted in change ideas being
introduced in Admissions including
updating post take documentation that

. . . . . M Al t Octob
had a section regarding discussion with o ue croner
NOK/patient, and addition of a NOK Target (%)
discussion column in the electronic white % of NOK contact achieved within 24 hours

board, placed in a prominent position to

ensure it was highlighted during daily multidisciplinary (MDT) discussion.

Further audits conducted in August and October demonstrated an increase from 73% to 77%
of those requiring NOK contact achieved within 24 hours of admission (7% above target).
Surveys conducted with patients on admission wards suggest that there may be a higher

Page 85 Page | 61



percentage of contact occurring than is documented, as 36% of patients surveyed reported
there had been contact made despite there being no record within clinical note.

Further scoping was carried out across the hospital, shifting focus from initial NOK contact
within 24 hours of admission, to NOK contact across the whole hospital admission. Anecdotal
feedback from Care of Older People (COOP) wards reported an increase in demand and
expectation for NOK updates coinciding with the re-introduction of open visiting after the Covid
pandemic, with queues forming outside the doctor’s office during visiting hours. Based on
these reports, surveys for patients and NOKs were designed and conducted on both COOP
and Admission wards.

Survey results Expected timeliness of contact following admission
demonstrated a wide NOK responses (COOP)

variety in expectation of

timeliness and frequency of
contact. Expectations for
29% ‘
= Within 4 hours = Within 12 hours Within 24 hours

Patient responses (COOP)

o

timeliness of contact
ranged between 4 (50-
80%) to more than 48
hours (7-20%) after
admission, with frequency
of contact expectation
ranging from daily (34%),
weekly (25%) or only in the
event Of Change or = More than 48 hours = More than 48 hours
emergency (6 and 19%).

This variability was demonstrated in both patient and NOK survey responses.

= Within 4 hours

= Within 12 hours

Within 24 hours = Within 48 hours = Within 48 hours

Expected Fregency of Contact (Admission & COOP, Patient & NOK Responses)
Daily
Every couple of days
Weekly
Only in Emergencies
When situation changes

Whenever the team would like to

Dependent on severity:
daily if unwell, weekly if stable

Qualitative results demonstrated updates expected would include updates of changes, test
results, any concerns, discharge planning & change in location. Contact was most frequently
expected from doctors (87.5%), although some responses acknowledged that the update
could be received from other member of the MDT, if there was a structure to the update that
included a brief medical summary as well as a general status update.

Following analysis of these surveys, project work has commenced on both Admission and
COOP wards to develop standard expectations for the provision of NOK contact. These ideas
include developing a standard for MDT staff to follow, and a welcome pack for individual

wards, outlining key information for patient and NOKSs, including expectation and frequency of

Page 86 Page | 62



contact, visiting hours, how to arrange meetings when required. Creation of these standards
will not only help clearly set out expectations but also ensures that NOKs who may not initiate
contact with the hospital, continue to receive regular contact from the hospital. The aim of
these projects is primarily to improve communication, whilst also ensuring efficiency of staff
time. Further ideas for development include exploring whether there can be a collaborative
approach to gaining collateral history that covers multiple elements of MDT care, therefore
reducing incidences of duplicate conversations.

Project 3: Embedding the "Dear Patient Letters" project to further improve communication
between clinicians and service users.

e Goal 1. “Increase in quality metrics, in particular letters written to patient and in clear
language.”

Dear Patient Letters project has been running in the Trust since 2020, aiming to increase the
usefulness of letters provided to patients about appointments they have attended. In previous
years the project has seen success in delivering teaching and training on how to write letters
in a patient friendly format including:

e Having the letters addressed directly to patients rather than GPs or other referrers.

e Using clear language and explaining medical terminology

e Providing next steps

e Providing clarity as to whether the patient is discharged or will be followed up.

e Provide safety netting advice of what to do or look out for (for both patient and GP)

e Provide practical advice to promote self-management.

Awareness raising and promotion of these standards has continued throughout the year,
including targeting of new medical staff at induction via training and induction packs, as well as
using staff communications to highlight the importance of writing in patient friendly format. The
library service runs regular sessions for staff across different forums regarding Health Literacy
training, highlighting the importance of patients understanding their letters.

Following analysis of areas where this practice was not being consistently adopted, specific
services were targeted to help explore the barriers to adopting this practice. Responses
received demonstrated a reluctance to engage in the practice, with concerns that using ley
terms rather than medical terms may result in less clear communication with GP and other
medical colleagues, with the potential to dilute the significance of diagnoses or actions. This
was particularly of concern in departments that use letters as their primary source for medical
records and information. Suggestions to move forward with this were for departments to
develop crib sheets or patient friendly information that could supplement letters where medical
jargon needed to remain for the purpose of medical records and communicating with other
specialities.

Services other than medical specialities have reporting adopting the practice including
Intermediate Care Rehabilitation services. The Learning Disability service has also carried out
a project to develop easy read formats of appointment letters and information about various
inpatient processes, such as having an operation, going to the Emergency Department, and
attending appointments.

Page 87 Page | 63



Results across the year demonstrate uptake of the Dear Patient Letters project remains
variable. Results were collected using spot-check audits across the year, using departments
that identified in previous years of being high, low and randomly selected performing areas.
An audit of early adopters, Care of the Elderly Speciality, was conducted to determine whether
practices are embedded. Results (as demonstrated in the below chart) demonstrate
maintenance of next steps, improvements in safety netting, and ongoing variability in the other
areas. On detailed analysis of these results, variability or downtrends appear secondary to
new staff rather than discontinuation of practice in existing staff.

Dear Patient Letters: COOP Results 23-24

100%

80%

/

60% — —
- \/,
20%
0%
May-22 Aug-22 Nov-22 Feb-23
e \\/ritten to pt? ('you') e Fasy language, any terms explained
Next steps e (C|ear if DC or FU
= Safety Netting for GP and patient Practical Advice

Results of spot-check audits conducted across a wider range of services across the year are
shown in the chart below.

Dear Patient Letters: Results for 23-24

100%

80%

60% /
40%
0% —r ﬁ?\

0%

May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22
e \\/ritten to pt? ('you') e Fasy language, any terms explained
Next steps e (Cl|ear if DC or FU
= Safety Netting for GP and patient Practical Advice

The results suggest that the areas of “next steps” and “clear if discharge or follow up” are
consistently being documented. Improvements were seen within “safety netting” and “practical

advice”, “written to patient” remained static at around a third of letters, and a downtrend in
“‘easy language”.

Page 88 Page | 64



Given the results, further ideas for improving communication with patients’ needs to be
considered. A working group around Patient Information is currently being established to
review the current processes of developing and reviewing Patient Information, such as
leaflets, with a key focus on ensuring information available is provided in an appropriate format
for those with lower-than-average health literacy, as well as those with additional needs.

Aims for 2022/23:
We aim to improve understanding and impact of human factors by:

Project 1. Delivering Trust wide Human Factors education through development of a
sustainable, educational model.

e Goal 1: Develop robust pathway to incorporate patient safety learning into the Simulation
programme in a timely way.

Due to the introduction of Patient Safety Incident Response Framework (PSIRF) this priority has
been superseded.

The Patient Safety Incident Response Framework was published in Q2 2022/23 which replaces
the previous Serious Incident Framework (2015). The PSIRF is not a different way of describing
what came before — it fundamentally shifts how the NHS responds to patient safety incidents for
learning and improvement with a focus on systems-based investigations and human factors.
The transition to PSIRF is inextricably linked with human factors awareness and understanding.
PSIRF promotes a proportionate approach to responding to patient safety incidents by ensuring
resources allocated to learning are balanced with those needed to deliver improvement. PSIRF
supports organisations to respond to incidents in a way that maximises learning and
improvement rather than basing responses on arbitrary and subjective definitions of harm.
Whittington has laid some of the groundwork for this transition through the increased use of
After-Action Reviews (AAR’s) and work will continue as we transition over the next 12 months
to the new framework.

Project 2: Raising awareness of the practical implications of human factors on patient safety.

e Goal 1: Develop multiple channels to deliver patient safety syllabus level 1 ‘Basics of
patient safety’ to maximise exposure.

Due to the introduction of Patient Safety Incident Response Framework (PSIRF) this priority has
been superseded. Training on the new response framework will include human factors training
as part of the wider patient safety learning package.

Page 89 Page | 65



Aims for 2022/23:
We aim to improve blood transfusion safety by:

Project 1: Implementation of a vein-to-vein system to minimise risk of error during blood
transfusion process.

e Goal 1: Vein to vein system to be in place by end of March 2023 including fully
electronic transfusion documentation.

The Vein to Vein ‘BTrack’ system implementation has not been achieved this year. Due to
issues with the 3" party provider and suitability of the system. The Trust is exploring recourse
for the contractual obligations not being met with the 3" party provider due to the timelines
for completion being unrealistic.

Project 2: Improving understanding of blood transfusion safety practices through training and
awareness.

e Goal 1: To continue to increase compliance with blood transfusion training from the
2020 baseline and achieve over 60% compliance by end of 2022/23.

The Blood Transfusion team have worked extremely hard over the last few years to improve
training compliance amongst staff groups. Compliance has exceeded the quality
improvements targets set for 2022/2023. The Trust average for all clinical staff stands at 66%
as of March 2023, this represents a 267% increase on 2019/2020 baseline of 18%.

This was achieved by:

e Simplifying the E-learning process enabling staff to comply

e Monitoring Blood Transfusion training in the same way as other mandatory training
subjects on the mandatory training matrix (Elev8)

e Linking the training to the appraisal system has elevated its importance to staff.

Training compliance continues to improve and will continue to be monitored on a yearly basis.
The yearly compliance tracker is below which illustrates the great work that the team have
been doing to improve training numbers.

Doctors’ training compliance remains low and will be a focus for the team going forward.

Page 90 Page | 66



100%
90%
80%

Yearly Compliance Tracker

| = B
70%
60% el
s0% e 1 Nurses
..... I
40% B = s Midwives
30% P
A B S — R [ 4 l Doctors
20% — | mm— ODP's
10% — el ,
0% | n e d I n e d LR A [ HCA'S
2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023  ceeeeee.. Linear (HCA's)
M Nurses 12% 41% 44% 77%
B Midwives 10% 10% 6% 80%
M Doctors 12% 18% 25% 47%
B ODP's 44% 29% 27% 80%
HCA's 13% 28% 68%
Aims for 2022/23:

We aim to improve health inequalities by:

Project 1: Improving care and treatment of patients with sickle cell anaemia.

e Goal 1: Ensure 100% of sickle cell patients receive 1st dose of pain relief within 30mins
of attendance to ED.

Ensuring first dose received within 30 minutes of attendance.

May
2022

August
2022

Sept
2022

March
2023

Audits have been carried out throughout the year to measure the efficiency of delivery of pain
relief against the target. Results for those requiring pain relief during their ED attendance are
shown in the charts and table below:

Page 91

Page | 67



1st dose received
with London

Ambulance Service 22 S 10 11
(LAS)

1st dose r.eceived 13 18 23 16
with 30 minutes

1st dose received 4 3 4 8
over 30 minutes

15T PAIN RELIEF DOSE GIVEN FOR PATIENTS IN
SICKLE CELL CRISIS

m Data Not Captured

M First dose over 30 minutes

B First dose received prior to arrival or within 30 minutes of arrival to ED

MAY AUGUST SEPT MARCH

On review of the data, data had not been captured for some cases due to discrepancies in the
data being held in paper format. Audits across the year show an average of 64% receiving their
first dose within 30 minutes, 36% below the target.

On further analysis, September data demonstrates an average time of 21.67 minutes to receive
dose, compared to an increase in March of 29.96 minutes. In March data, there is an outlier of
104 minutes (and shown in the graph below). On review of this case, the patient presented to
ED outside of their usual borough and were under the care of a Haematology service external to
the Trust, which may have contributed to the delay seen in this individual case.

Page 92 Page | 68



Time Comparison of those receiving first dose of pain relief
120

104

100

80

60

TIme in minutes

40

20

M sept M March

Across the year, QI projects have been commenced aiming to improve experience and efficiency
of care for Sickle Cell Disease. This includes ED staff training aiming to reduce bias and
increase awareness of need for urgency with medicine prescription. Teaching sessions have
been held face to face and virtually, with patient representatives included as speakers during
these sessions. This work will continue into 2023-2024 to reach a wider workforce audience.

Within Research there has also been a focus on Sickle Cell Disease. The STAR (Sickle and
Thalassemia Alliance for Research) held its first meeting on 27" February 2023 and has since
appointed two paediatric research nurses to further the aims of the alliance in increasing the
availability of research for this patient cohort.

Whittington Health are actively participating in the work of the alliance and continue to deliver
research studies that are of relevance and benefit to our patients. Studies that have been open
to recruit SCD patients in the last year include Rare Diseases BioResource (NIHR) and CROSS
WALK-a (A Study Evaluating the Safety, Pharmacokinetics, Pharmacodynamics and Efficacy of
Crovalimab for the Management of Acute Uncomplicated Vaso-Occlusive Episodes in
Participants with Sickle Cell Disease), with further studies in the pipeline for 2023/24.

Project 2: Raising awareness of prostate cancer.
e Goal 1: Hold 20 Prostate cancer events by end of March 2023.

The target of 20 prostate cancer events has not been met this year, this was due to staff leading
on the priority leaving the Trust. A Prostate Cancer Conference was held during Q2 2022/23,
funded by Macmillan, organised by Casey Galloway and Tracey Palmer.

Speakers included: people with lived experience of prostate cancer, radiographer,
psychosexual nurse specialist, dietician, representative from Maggie's. The all-day event

Page 93 Page | 69



focussed on health and wellbeing, living with diagnosis, recovering from treatment and side
effects.

Theatre groups performed using real life scenarios, and there were opportunities for attending
patients to have a haircut / beard trim or massage.

Roughly 70 people attended, with 85% of those that completed questionnaires about the event
being patients. 100% reported the conference was very useful or useful, and respondents had
the opportunity to suggest further areas of information that they would like to receive.

Plans going forward include filming and sharing clips to be accessible through WHT and
Macmillan; developing group sessions to be rolled out for people diagnosed with cancer;
development of a support group; CBT training for prostate CNA, exercise and therapy sessions
to be evaluated against patient outcomes measures; roll out of personalised cancer care
objectives within services, with increased permanent staffing structure.

During the last financial year, we started a colorectal support group for patients who have
ceased active treatment and are currently on the remote monitoring pathway. The groups meet
4 times a year and it has been very beneficial for the patients that have attended.

We are currently working on the planning of events specifically aimed at breast patients. We
are planning a self-care day, having online workshops, and will also run the same ‘side effects’
course as with prostate patients. We therefore anticipate having 4 breast specific events
separate to the running of the course and again if successful the course will be repeated
throughout the year.

Work is currently being undertaken to survey lung cancer patients about their care and support
needs as a means of identifying any gaps in the support that is being offered to them. This has
historically been a ‘harder to reach’ group and socio-economic factors tend to be a barrier to
them receiving adequate levels of support.

We have submitted a grant application to hopefully enable us to run Sex and Intimacy
workshops for patients affected by cancer diagnoses. If successful plan on running a series of
workshops for patients and staff (separately). The aim will be for some of the sessions to be
gender specific and some to cater for the needs of more marginalised groups (e.g., LGBTQI+
communities).

Page 94 Page | 70



Part 4: Other Information

Goal Standard/benchmark Whittington Comments
performance
21/22 20/21 19/20
ED 4 hour waits 95% to be seen in 4 hours 78.30% | 87.4% 83.8%
RTT 18 Week Waits: o . . .
Incomplete \&I)v?tr/]c;noflge\\zgglt(ssto be waiting 74.4% | 65.6% 92.1% Astr!vzaln:;:;e)b 22 (March 22 not
Pathways y
*Total Breaches reported as part
RTT patients waiting | No patients to wait more than 7093 11094 5 of monthly submission, not
52 weeks 52 weeks for treatment individual patients. April 21 to Feb
22 as March 22 not yet available
) . . 0 —
Waits for diagnostic | 99% waiting less than 6 94.1% 791% 99 3%
tests weeks
Cancer: Ur'gent' . 93% seen within 14 days 74.8% 94.6% 94.8% April 214 to Feb 22 (March 22 not
referral to first visit yet available)
Ca’.“’e" Diagnosis 96% treated within 31 days 95.3% 98.1% 98.8% April le to Feb 22 (March 22 not
to first treatment yet available)
Cancer: Urgent .
referral to first 85% treated within 62 days 61.1% | 73.8% 84.0% April le to Feb 22 (March 22 not
yet available)
treatment
Improved Access to o :
Psychological Zvir/ﬁnogr\?vfeeenl’(asls treated 91.4% 93.8% 95.1% Aptrll 214|t(E)|F?b 22 (March 22 not
Therapies (IAPT) yet available

Summary Hospital-Level Mortality Indicator (SHMI)

The most recent data available (published 9 March 2023) covers the period November 2021 to October

2022
Whittington  Trust SHMI Compared to 0.88 reported for October 2020
. 0.88 :
score: to September 2021 period
Lowest National Score: 0.71 Chelsea_ And Westminster Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust
. . . Epsom and St. Helier University Hospitals
Highest National Score: 1.18 NHS Trust.

13 Trusts were graded as having a lower-than-expected number of deaths.

10 Trusts were graded as having a higher-than-expected number of deaths.

98 Trusts including Whittington Health were graded as showing the number of deaths in line with

expectations.

Page 95

Page | 71




The SHMI represents a comparison against a standardised National Average. The 'national average'
therefore is a standardised 100 and values significantly "below 100 indicate a lower-than-expected
number of mortalities (and vice versa for values significantly above).

The Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee for North Central London would like to thank
Whittington Health NHS Trust for their engagement and assistance regarding the Quality Accounts,
including the sharing of a draft version of the report and attendance at a scrutiny meeting of the
Committee. The Committee also wishes to place on record its thanks for the hard work of staff
throughout the Trust in 2022/23 in delivering positive health outcomes for our residents at a time
when the NHS is under considerable pressure.

As part of our scrutiny, the Committee welcomed the focus on tackling health inequalities and further
efforts in supporting ‘hard to reach groups’ to engage with services. The Committee commented that
the quality of transport services available to vulnerable residents could be a key factor in this area
along with their understanding of points of access to services.

The Committee also welcomed measures taken on health promotion and expressed support for the
further development of support networks for people with long-term conditions which could help to
improve health outcomes and reduce future costs to the NHS.

The recent opening of Community Diagnostic Centres in Finchley and Wood Green has helped to
improve access to blood tests, x-ray, ultrasound and ophthalmology services. The Committee
recommended that consideration be given as to whether accessibility could be further improved by
providing additional options for patients who cannot access electronic booking systems.

The Committee highlighted certain areas where additional information could be included in future
Quality Account reports. In particular, the Committee suggested that the Trust’s responses to the
findings of CQC reports and issues relating to CQUIN goals could be more clearly explained.

The Committee discussed the response to the CQC report on maternity services and noted that
maternity services across NCL were due to be scrutinised by the Committee in more detail as part of
its work programme for 2023/24. Other issues and areas of concern raised by the Committee
included collaboration between hospitals, the End-of-Life Care audit, virtual wards, the National
Cancer Patient Experience Survey and the increase in referrals to palliative care.

The Committee looks forward to further engagement with the Trust on these issues in 2023/24 and
through the scrutiny of next year’s Quality Accounts report.

Clir Pippa Connor

Page 96 Page | 72



Chair of Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee for North Central London 2022/23

HealthWatch Islington recognise the extreme pressure that services are under, exacerbated by the
pandemic. Whittington Health has been an active partner in the vaccine roll-out and strived to keep
delivering high quality, timely services within this context.

We'll continue to work with the Trust to ensure that problems with non-Emergency Patient Transport
are dealt with. This is a complex and ongoing issue influenced by a number of factors including
ambiguous criteria from NHS England and a complex, multi-partner commissioning process. We are
pleased to be receiving less resident and GP concerns about this issue but will continue to work closely
with the Trust on this.

Whittington Health involved us in a discussion about their priorities. These priorities make sense to us,
and we look forward to working with them particularly on those priorities relating to communication
between healthcare professionals and patients, to ensure these are accessible (Healthwatch England
will be leading work on the Accessible Information Standard and we will share this learning and good
practice). We hope to also work closely with the Trust on addressing population health inequalities.

We will continue to work closely with Whittington colleagues at the Integrated Care Board and
Whittington’s Patient Experience Group as well as through Fairer Together Borough Partnership and
the Partnership’s Challenging Inequality workstream.

Emma Whitby,
Chief Executive,

HealthWatch Islington

Statement from HealthWatch Haringey

Thank you for sharing this year’s Quality Account 2022-23 with us at Healthwatch Haringey. Firstly,
we commend Whittington NHS Trust for its commitment to hearing the voices of lived experience and
for its plans to expand the scope of this soon.

Secondly, Healthwatch Haringey is pleased to regularly liaise with colleagues from Whittington Health
NHS Trust over a variety of activities, particular around patient involvement and engagement.

Finally, Healthwatch Haringey are happy to see that Whittington Health NHS Trust are taking tangible
steps to reduce waiting times, facilitate easier accessibility to healthcare services, and make efforts to
outreach into communities, as can all be observed in the Trust’'s development of the Wood Green
Community Diagnostic Centre.

Page 97 Page | 73



Progress Against Priorities for 2022-23

HealthWatch Haringey are impressed by the progress that Whittington NHS Trust has made against
its four quality priorities for 2020-24. We credit the Trust for its robust system to monitor and report on
progress against the quality priorities and to place these priorities under the scrutiny of patient and
staff, best practice guidance from NICE, input from NCL ICB and others.

HealthWatch Haringey welcome the honesty of the Trust when noting that under Quality Priority 1
related to ‘reducing harm from hospital acquired de-conditioning’, efforts to reduce the length of time
older patients remain in hospital, prevent unnecessary hospital admissions; support patients to stay
well in their home environments and in supporting patients in hospital with their eating and drinking.
The goal to ensure 100% of patients have documentation of a full pressure ulcer risk assessment
within 6 hours of admission, along with an action plan to manage any risks, is indeed welcome.

Under Quality Priority ‘Improving communication between clinicians and patients’, HealthWatch
Haringey, who facilitates patient participation groups on a regular basis and invites colleagues from
the Trust to attend, is pleased to see from the Trust the honesty to highlight that there have on
occasions been issues of poor communication, yet on the other hand in 2022/23 the ‘Zesty’ interactive
platform was rolled out. This utilisation of this platform has meant that many outpatients are using it,
and this has led to improved patient satisfaction and outpatient communication and has also improved
timelines of patient appointment correspondence.

HealthWatch Haringey also notes how the Trust is utilising more clarification in its correspondence
with patients with the goal being for such outpatient letters to be reviewed so that information is correct,
easy to understand, simple to follow while on the hospital site and also accessible for people with
Learning Disabilities. We also note that under this quality priority area, the Trust aims to conduct audits
in March 2024 on the number of leaflets distributed, the rate of videos utilised and also review patient
experience feedback. While overall, the Trust is taking steps to improve communication between
service users and clinicians and is making great strides to increase standards in correspondence
communication.

Under Quality Priority ‘Reducing health inequalities in our local population’, HealthWatch Haringey
again applaud the Trust for further seeking to incorporate specific projects to improve the care and
treatment of patients with sickle cell, and to also improve care provided to people with Learning
Difficulties. We note that the Trust is aiming to increase staff knowledge and confidence, hence we
would also recommend that such change can be further embedded via the usage approaches such as
an innovation exchange forum wherein staff are given scope to learn, understand best practice and
then innovate on delivering better outcomes for patients.

Sickle cell disease being the fastest growing genetic disease in the UK, and blood transfusions are
also needed for people with sickle cell, yet blood must be matched in order to reduce the risk of serious
complications. Blood type matches can only be made in half of requests according to the NHS and
often must rely on using O-negative as a universal blood type.

In 2021 an All-Party Parliamentary Group on Sickle Cell and Thalassaemia found that there were
“serious failings” for patients with sickle cell disease in England and several deaths which could have

Page 98 Page | 74



been avoided. The MPs’ report also found evidence of racism as patients reported that on some
occasions they had been racially abused by staff or had had their pain denigrated or regarded as
exaggerated.

As a result of these experiences, some people with sickle cell disease try to suffice without even going
to the hospital when they have a crisis, as they anticipate the response which they will face at hospital
as being negative. Their pain, which is often excruciating, must be believed, and not regarded as being
either an act or an exaggeration.

Hence, people who live with sickle cell disease often do not even bother to seek out medical care.
Community voice, and the voice of young people, has to be foundational to bring change in regard to
these steps, including research, to improve care for people with sickle cell disease. HealthWatch
Haringey hope that Whittington NHS Trust can take the lead in this regard and the aim to deliver
training to staff by the end of March 2021 on the disease, wherein unconscious bias is erased, is highly
commendable.

Participation in Clinical Research

HealthWatch Haringey particularly welcomes the Trust’'s involvement in clinical research to improve
the quality of care offered to the local community.

HealthWatch Haringey are quite interested in the scope to which local communities could be more
involved in research particularly when it comes to reducing health inequalities locally. We envisage
that Whittington Health NHS Trust will also explore research collaborations with the local community.

Patient Safety Incident Response Framework

The Trust could have expanded on discussing the vital role of Patient Safety Partners in line with the
new Patient Safety Incident Response Framework (PSIRF).

HealthWatch Haringey are quite interested in PSIRF and its scope in including patient voice, involving
patients to sit around the table in an equitable manner to reach solutions alongside clinicians,
encourage staff to explain what happened incidents, learn from incidents and then embed learnings
for future practice. The innovative aspect of it, is that the PSIRF will incorporate the view of Patient
Safety Partners, to provide non-clinical input into how change can be embedded. This will be key for
the Trust and should be further emphasised.

CQC Inspections

In terms of the CQC Inspection, HealthWatch Haringey note that in final report in April 2023 highlighted
that maternity services under the Whittington Health NHS Trust ‘requires improvement’. Considering
the poor outcomes for black and minority ethnic women when it comes to maternal health, we are keen
to see the Whittington NHS Trust take steps to address this going forward, and HealthWatch Haringey
are ready to support the Trust to make further improvements in this area.

It was also positive to see that in regard to a Mental Health Monitoring Report following an inspection
of a Child Specialist Community Mental Health Service for Children and Young People, an action plan
was implemented by the Trust and then communicated with the CQC. The actions being in light of

Page 99 Page | 75



young people raising concerns regarding anti-barricade doors, medication errors and hot water
temperatures.

Listening to Staff

The Trust has conducted the national staff survey, and from it gauged staff engagement and staff
morale. It is evident that staff morale is quite low, and as noted in the Quality Statement is reflected
within other Acute and Acute Community Trusts.

Nevertheless, it is evident that more could be done to engage staff, and it is positive that staff are being
better engaged via the Freedom to Speak Up Guardian initiative wherein learning can be reinforced,
concerns acted on, issues raised safely, and staff supported. 84 initial concerns which required action
were received by the Freedom to Speak Up Guardian, which the Trust frames as 84 new opportunities
for change and improvement. The framing of such concerns in this manner can help the Trust to be
self-reflective.

The Trust note that this can represent a cultural change where staff can raise concerns and be
confident to come forward.

We would also have liked to see the development of a Staff Wellbeing Plan utilising innovative
interventions to empower and support its workforce and thereby transform the organisational culture.

Although empowering staff to navigate challenges and manage stress may cost time and resources,
there is an even higher cost if no actions are taken to support staff and their psychological wellbeing.
Staff who are under increasing stress are more likely to view their work as a burden and be off sick,
take time off, lose interest and generally begin to view their work with disdain rather than as a rewarding
role helping others.

In general, this is immensely detrimental to any organisation and consequently embedding strategies
to facilitate staff wellbeing and provide equitable flexibility are key. Healthwatch Haringey view that this
will have many benefits for staff such as:

e Being heard

e Feeling supported from colleagues and a stronger sense of team-spirit

e Helping promote interventions which encourage creative ways of handling difficult situations.
e Developing an awareness of new ways to respond to problems.

e Developing higher levels of staff resilience

e Improving job satisfaction

Patient Surveys

HealthWatch Haringey finds it encouraging that the Whittington Health NHS Trust has engaged
patients in surveys. We note the key successes such as people getting help when they needed
attention, increasing from 95% to 98% which is just above the national average of 97%.

In regard to food and drink, the food score dropped to 52% from 55% yet the Trust recognises that this
survey was conducted prior to the January 2022 roll out of fully plated meals which allows for increased
patient choice at each meal.

Page 100 Page | 76



Areas for Improvement in Service Delivery

Nevertheless, despite the great efforts made by Whittington Health NHS Trust, HealthWatch Haringey
hopes that the Trust will also address several areas, namely:

e Maternal care
e Staff engagement
e Young people’s mental health support.

We encourage the Trust to be self-reflective about the delivery of these areas, as in Haringey there
have been some serious concerns about which the Trust needs to be cognisant.

Conclusion

We again reiterate that we will support the Trust, its staff, priorities and objectives and that further
meaningful changes can be embedded into the Whittington Health NHS Trust strategy going forward.

Paul Addae

HealthWatch Haringey Manager

Quality Account 2022/23 - NHS North Central London Integrated Care Board Statement for
Whittington Health NHS Trust

The NHS has continued to face significant challenges during 2022/23 due to the Covid -19
pandemic, other outbreaks of seasonal illnesses including respiratory viruses, Group A
Streptococcus, staff shortages and illness, combined with increased demand for healthcare and
industrial action.

North Central London Integrated Care Board (NCL ICB) has worked closely with the Trust
throughout 2022/23, taking a pragmatic approach regarding assurance of commissioned services
throughout the year, obtained through regular discussions with key staff and attending the Trust’'s
Quality and Safety Committee meetings.

Commissioners note the progress outlined in the account against the 2020/23 quality priorities. The
Trust identified 5 key priorities for quality improvement in 2020, with a recognition that embedding
change would take up to three years. We continue to recognise the positive impact the Trust has
taken through a number of initiatives including work to improve access and attendance through
patient letters and a focus on improving blood transfusion training, achieving a 60% compliance
rate.

We note the priorities for the coming year continue to build on previous work and the Trust’s
commitment to helping local people live longer, healthier lives and build on factors such as quality
performance, clinical or public proposals and ‘Better Never Stops’ ambition, to continually improve
and provide even better care.

Page 101 Page | 77



We continue to fully support the Trust’s chosen priorities for 2020/24 and continuing to work
collaboratively with Whittington Health NHS Trust and system partners, to improve access and care
for all of our residents across North Central London boroughs.

Deirdre Malone,
Director of Quality,
Chief Nursing Officer’s Directorate,

NHS North Central London Integrated Care Board (NCL ICB).

Page | 78

Page 102



NHS

Whittington Health

If you would like to comment on our Quality Account or have suggestions for future
content, please contact us either:

By writing to:

The Communications Department,
Whittington Health,

Magdala Avenue,

London. N19 5NF

By telephone:
020 7288 5983

By email:
communications.whitthealth@nhs.net

Publication:

The Whittington Health NHS Trust 2019/20 Quality Account will be published on the
NHS Choices website by the 151" December 2020.

https://www.nhs.uk/pages/home.aspx

Accessible in other formats:

This document can be made available in other languages or formats, such as Braille
or Large Print.

Please call 020 7288 3131 to request a copy.

The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 to prepare a Quality Account for
each financial year. The Department of Health has issued guidance in the form and
content of annual Quality Accounts (which incorporates the legal requirements in the
Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010
(as amended by the National Health Service (Quality Accounts) Amended Regulations
2011.

In preparing the Quality Account, directors are required to take steps to satisfy
themselves that:

The Quality Account presents a balanced picture of the Trust’s performance over the
period covered, in particular, the assurance relating to consistency of the Quality
Report with internal and external sources of information including:

79 | Page

Page 103

NHS Trust


mailto:communications.whitthealth@nhs.net
https://www.nhs.uk/pages/home.aspx

NHS

Whittington Health
NHS Trust

- Board minutes.

- Papers relating to the Quality Account reported to the Board.

- Feedback from Health Watch.

- the Trust’s complaints report published under regulation 18 of the Local Authority,
Social Services and NHS Complaints (England) Regulations 2009.

- the latest national patient survey.

- the latest national staff survey.

- feedback from Commissioners.

- the annual governance statement; and

- CQC Intelligent Monitoring reports.

The performance information reported in the Quality Account is reliable and accurate.
There are proper internal controls over the collection and reporting of the measures of
performance reported in the Quality Account, and these controls are subject to review
to confirm that they are working effectively in practice.

The data underpinning the measures of performance reported in the Quality Account
is robust and reliable, conforms to specified data quality standards and prescribed
definitions, and is subject to appropriate scrutiny and review; and The Quality Account
has been prepared in accordance with the Department of Health guidance.

The directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied
with the above requirements in preparing the Quality Account.

WA égf‘— /l\rc, N__ ( >

Helen Brown Baroness Julia Neuberger DBE
Chief Executive Chair

Appendix 1: National Mandatory and Non-Mandatory Audits 2020/21

80|Page

Page 104



NHS

Whittington Health
NHS Trust

Title of Audit Management Body Participated | If completed, number of
in 2022/2023 | records submitted (as total
or % if requirement set)

Muscle Invasive Bladder Cancer at British Association of Data submitted: 4 cases

Transurethral Resection of Bladder | Urological Surgeons v

(MITRE) Audit

National Bariatric Surgery Registry British Obesity & Data submitted: 66 Cases

Metabolic Surgery v
Society

National Early Inflammatory British Society for v Data submitted: 100 Cases

Arthritis Audit Rheumatology

Adult Respiratory Support Audit British Thoracic Society v carried forward to 2023/24
for completion.

Improving Quality in Crohn's and Inflammatory Bowel Data submitted: 95 Cases

Colitis formerly Inflammatory Disease Registry v

Bowel Disease Audit

National Cardiac Arrest Audit Intensive Care National Data submitted: 44 Cases

(NCAA) Audit & Research v

Centre
Case Mix Programme (CMP) Intensive Care Society v Data submitted: 464 Cases
Sentinel Stroke National Audit Kings College London Data submitted: 53 Cases.
Programme (SSNAP) - to include v
Organisational Audit
Myocardial Infarction Audit Project | National Institute for Data submitted: 77 Cases
Cardiovascular v
Outcomes Research

National Heart Failure Audit National Institute for Data submitted: 110 Cases
Cardiovascular v
Outcomes Research

National End of Life Care Audit NHS Benchmarking Trust decision not to
Network X participate (rationale

provided above)

Oesophago-gastric cancer (NAOGC) | NHS Digital v Data submitted: 19 cases

National Diabetes Footcare Audit NHS Digital v Data submitted: 168 cases

Breast and Cosmetic Implant NHS Digital Data submitted: 25 Cases

Registry (for cancer pts only)

National Obesity Audit NHS Digital Participated - see link to
latest published data
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-
and-

v information/publications/s
tatistical/national-obesity-
audit/bariatric-surgical-
procedures-21-22-final-
and-gq1-22-23-provisional

National Diabetes Inpatient Safety NHS Digital v Data submitted: 2 cases

Audit

Page 105

8l|Page




NHS

Whittington Health

NHS Trust
Diabetes (Adult - national core) NHS Digital Data submitted: 1417 cases
National Pregnancy in Diabetes NHS Digital Data submitted: 36 cases
audit
National Bowel cancer Audit NHS Digital Data submitted: 95 cases
LeDeR - Learning from lives and NHS England Data submitted: 9 Cases
deaths of people with a learning
disability and autistic people
UK Parkinson’s Audit Parkinson’s UK Data submitted: 80 cases
National Emergency Laparotomy Royal College of Data submitted: 91 Cases

Audit (NELA)

Anaesthetists

PQIP (applicable to spinal patients
only)

Royal College of
Anaesthetists

Recommenced November
2022. Those patients who
were approached did not
wish to participate in the

study.

Mental Health Self Harm

Royal College of
Emergency Medicine

carried forward to 2023/24

for completion.

Pain in Children (care in Emergency
Departments)

Royal College of
Emergency Medicine

Data submitted:

(c/f 2021/22)

269 cases

National Maternity and Perinatal
Audit

Royal College of
Obstetricians and
Gynaecologists

Data submitted:

Cases

2984

National Clinical Audit of Seizures
and Epilepsies in Children and
Young People (Epilepsy 12)

Royal College of
Paediatrics & Child
Health

Data submitted:

65 cases

National Paediatric Diabetes Audit

Royal College of
Paediatrics and Child
Health

Data submitted:

108 cases

National Audit of Dementia - care in
general hospitals

Royal College of
Psychiatrists

Data submitted:

173 Cases

Lung cancer (NLCA)

Royal College of
Surgeons

Data submitted:

74 Cases

National Audit of Metastatic Breast
Cancer

Royal College of
Surgeons

Data submitted:

5 Cases

National Audit of Primary Breast
Cancer

Royal College of
Surgeons

Data submitted:

140 Cases

National Audit of Breast Cancer in
Older Patients

Royal College of
Surgeons

Data submitted:

41 Cases

National Prostate Cancer Audit

Royal College of

Data submitted:

155 Cases

Surgeons
Falls and Fragility Fractures Audit Royal College Data submitted: 7 Cases
Programme (FFFAP) - Inpatient Falls | physicians
Falls and Fragility Fractures Audit Royal College Data submitted: 187 Cases
Programme (FFFAP) - National Hip Physicians

Fracture Database

Page 106

82|Page



SAMBA 22

Society for Acute
Medicine

NHS

Whittington Health
NHS Trust

Data submitted: 47 cases

Neonatal Intensive and Special Care
(NNAP)

The Royal College of
Paediatrics and Child
Health

Data submitted: 409 Cases.

Major Trauma: The Trauma Audit &
Research Network (TARN)

Trauma Audit &
Research Network

Data submitted: 296 Cases

UK Renal Registry National Acute
Kidney Injury Audit

UK Kidney Association

Data submitted: 5291
Cases

National Child Mortality Database

University of Bristol

Review of published
reports

National Audit of Cardiac
Rehabilitation

University of York

Data submitted: 347 Cases

Mental Health Clinical Outcome Review Programme

Suicide and Homicide

National Confidential
Inquiry into Suicide and
Safety in Mental Health
(NCISH) - University of
Manchester

v

If cases identified to
WH then participate
- none to date

Maternal, New-born and Infant Clinical Outcome Review Programme
data on 19 cases were submitted to MBRRACE-UK who allocate to the appropriate work stream

Maternal mortality surveillance MBRRACE-UK, led from v Ongoing
the University of Oxford

Perinatal mortality surveillance MBRRACE-UK, led from v Ongoing
the University of Oxford

Perinatal mortality and serious MBRRACE-UK, led from v Ongoing

morbidity confidential enquiry the University of Oxford

National perinatal mortality review MBRRACE-UK, led from v Ongoing

tool the University of Oxford

Maternal mortality confidential MBRRACE-UK, led from v Ongoing

enquiries the University of Oxford

Medical, Surgical and Child Health Clinical Outcome Review Programme
National Confidential
. Enquiry into Patient v 6/6 cases
’sD
dirers tieess Outcome and Death submitted
(NCEPOD)
Transition Study from Child to Adult Natlo'naI' Confldgntlal
. Enquiry into Patient v 1/1 cases
Health Services Outcome and Death submitted
(NCEPOD)
83|Page

Page 107



NHS

Whittington Health

NHS Trust

National Confidential
. . . Enquiry into Patient 5/6 cases =
Epilepsy: Hospital attendance Outcome and Death 34%
(NCEPOD)
National Confidential
. . Enquiry into Patient 3/3 cases
Testicular Torsion Outcome and Death submitted
(NCEPOD)
National Confidential
Community Acquired Pneumonia Enquiry into Patient 6/6 cases
Hospital Attendance Outcome and Death submitted
(NCEPOD)

National Asthma and Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease Audit programme

Paediatric Asthma in Roval College of Physicians v Data submitted:
Secondary Care ¥ & ¥ 102 cases
S - v Data submitted:
Pulmonary rehabilitation Royal College of Physicians 118 cases
. - v Data submitted:
COPD in Secondary Care Royal College of Physicians 146 cases
Adult Asthma in Secondary - v Data submitted:
Care Royal College of Physicians 101 cases
Non-Mandatory National Audits 2022/2023
Project Title Management Body Status
COVID-19 Process Audit: a quality NHS England Completed
improvement initiative
Audit of use of PET imaging during University College London Completed

neoadjuvant chemotherapy for breast
cancer

Hospital

Cardiovascular outcomes after major
abdominal surgery - CASCADE

STARSurg and EuroSurg

Data submitted

Learning Disability Improvement Standards
for NHS Trusts Year 5

NHS Benchmarking Network

Data submitted

UK Comparative Audit of Acute Upper
Gastrointestinal Bleeding: clinical
management and the use of blood

NHS Blood and Transplant

Data submitted

National Comparative Audit of Blood Sample
Collection and Labelling

NHS Blood and Transplant

Data submitted

NDA Integrated Specialist Survey

NHS Digital

Data submitted

Consultants sign off

Royal College of Emergency
Medicine

Data submitted

Infection & Prevention Control

Royal College of Emergency
Medicine

Data submitted

Page 108

84 |Page



TRANSFER study: Threatened preterm birth,
Assessment of the Need for in utero Transfer
between 22+0-23+6 weeks’ gestation

University of Birmingham,
University Hospitals Bristol &
Weston NHS Foundation Trust

NHS

Whittington Health
NHS Trust

Data submitted

National study of HIV in Pregnancy and
Childhood (NSHPC)

NSHPC

Data submitted

Audit of Reversal of anticoagulation
(warfarin/DOACs) in trauma patients

London & SE Trauma &
Haematology Group

Data submitted

"End of life care in Advanced Chronic Liver British Society of on target
disease (EVOLVE)” Gastroenterologists

London-wide audit of TB management in Pan-London LOOP TB pathway on target
patients with ocular TB — led by Moorfields guidance

Mandatory Surveillance of Healthcare Public Health England on target
Associated Infections

Surgical Site Infection Surveillance Service Public Health England on target
Infection Prevention and Control Royal College of Emergency on target

Medicine

Appendix 2 - Subcontracted Services

Organisation

Service Details

Camden and Islington NHS foundation
trust

Psychological service

UCLH foundation trust

South Hub Tuberculosis resources

UCLH foundation trust

Ears Nose and Throat services

UCLH foundation trust

Provision of PET/CT scans

trust

The Royal Free London NHS foundation

Ophthalmology services

Whittington Pharmacy CIC

Provision of pharmacy services

WISH Health Ltd

A network of 8 local practices — four in
north Islington and four in west
Haringey

Primary care services to the urgent care
centre at the Whittington hospital

The Thrombosis Research Institute

The Provision of 2 clinical sessions

Camden and Islington NHSFT

MHA

Provision of associate hospital
managers panels and training under

Tavistock and Portman

consultants

CCN209- Agreement for the provision of
services from Tavistock and Portman
NHS Foundation Trust — CAMHS OOH

Page 109

85|Page



NHS

Whittington Health

UCLH

SLT 4 days per week provision at
Whittington

NHS Blood and Transplant

Contract for the supply of blood, blood
components and services

NHS Blood and Transplant

Contract for the supply of Tissue and
Ocular products

UCL Foundation Trust

Renewal addendum of combined
screening services detailed in COMB1

Foundation Trust

Newcastle Upon Tyne Hospital NHS

Department tests a wide range of
patient and environmental specimens to
detect the presence of pathogenic
micro-organisms.

NHS Trust

Epsom & St Helier University Hospital

Pathology Testing Service

Calderdale and Huddersfield NHS FT

Agreement relating to National
Pathology Exchange Service (NPEX)

Appendix 3 - Patients 0-15 and 16+ readmitted within 28 days of discharge

0-15 years 16 Years +
Readmissions | Discharges | Readmission rate | Readmissions | Discharges | Readmission rate
Year and Month
Apr 7 639 1.1% 205 2913 7.0%
May 2 688 0.3% 163 2791 5.8%
Jun 9 629 1.4% 143 2899 4.9%
Jul 6 664 0.9% 167 2860 5.8%
o Aug 6 601 1.0% 179 2582 6.9%
g Sep 3 615 0.5% 177 2556 6.9%
3 Oct 9 669 1.3% 187 2842 6.6%
Nov 5 675 0.7% 166 2780 6.0%
Dec 7 645 1.1% 157 2532 6.2%
Jan 7 621 1.1% 169 2703 6.3%
Feb 4 607 0.7% 151 2616 5.8%
Mar 3 525 0.6% 117 1977 5.9%
Apr 1 308 0.3% 96 967 9.9%
May 2 387 0.5% 109 1220 8.9%
Jun 6 447 1.3% 137 1748 7.8%
Jul 3 547 0.5% 171 2296 7.4%
- Aug 3 570 0.5% 160 2042 7.8%
g Sep 6 630 1.0% 140 2302 6.1%
S Oct 7 715 1.0% 165 2353 7.0%
Nov 7 683 1.0% 193 2383 8.1%
Dec 10 674 1.5% 183 2322 7.9%
Jan 13 599 2.2% 156 1853 8.4%
Feb 8 632 1.3% 153 1922 8.0%
Mar 14 875 1.6% 110 2442 4.5%
86|Page

Page 110

NHS Trust



NHS

Whittington Health

Apr 4 573 0.7% 111 2132 5.20
May 5 595 0.8% 111 2134 5.20%
Jun 14 1549 0.9% 167 4476 3.7%
N Jul 10 805 1.2% 213 2476 8.6%
S | Aug 8 704 1.1% 164 2464 6.7%
N Sep 3 762 0.4% 209 2657 7.9%
~ Oct 2 722 0.3% 162 2583 6.3%
Nov 4 670 0.6% 140 2431 5.8%
Dec 11 684 1.6% 132 2521 5.20
Jan 10 790 1.3% 111 2329 4.8%
Feb 6 765 0.8% 128 2392 5.4%
Mar 5 639 0.8% 113 2049 5.5%
Apr 1 645 0.2% 151 2104 7.2%
May 13 728 1.8% 150 2337 6.4%
Jun 3 725 0.4% 123 2321 5.3%
Jul 12 687 1.7% 138 2339 5.9%
" Aug 5 649 0.8% 130 2267 5.7%
S| sep 9 683 1.3% 99 2405 4.1%
§ Oct 2 748 0.3% 118 2386 4.9%
Nov 14 761 1.8% 103 2473 4.2%
Dec 5 699 0.7% 106 2099 5.1%
Jan 20 767 2.6% 99 2392 4.1%
Feb 12 673 1.8% 70 2117 3.3%
Mar 9 720 1.3% 95 2254 4.2%

Appendix 4 — Staff Survey score matrix 2022
Whittington Health Directorate/ICSU Report

The directorate/ICSU results for Whittington Health contain the results by directorate
or ICSU for People Promise elements and theme results from the 2022 NHS Staff
Survey. The below directorate results are compared to the unweighted average for the
organisation.

*Each 2022 theme score for ICSUs and Directorates is graded in green with a ‘AN
symbol if the score is above organisational average, and red where the score is below
organisational with a ‘¥’ symbol. Where an ICSU or Directorate has scored the same
as the organisations averaged it is graded black with a - symbol.

87 |Page

Page 111

NHS Trust



NHS

Whittington Health

NHS Trust

Nursing
WH _— . Medical & Trust
Theme overall ACW | ACS | COO | CYP | EIM | Facilities | Finance | IT Dir. Patient Procurement | S&C Secretariat Workforce
Exp.
We are
' 6.7 74 | T4 |77 |70 6.4 7.4 74 7.8 7.3 72 8.9 7.6 8.1
compassionate 7.2 N
and inclusive v A A A v v A A + A v * *
We are -
" A 59 | 60 | 83 | 58 5.1 6.3 5.9 6.8 6.2 5.9 5.3 6.6 7.3
recognised 58 J
and rewarded v A A A v v A A * A * v * 1‘
We each have 60 | 68| 72 |71 65| 63 68 | 66| 7.0 7.1 6.8 6.3 7.2 7.1
a voice that 6.7 ¥ 4 A Py ¢ ¥ Py ¥ N Py N ¥ N N
counts
We are safe 58 5.4 58 | 6.2 6 5.4 6.2 6.7 6.4 6.6 6.1 6.3 5.7 6.1 6.9
and healthy : ¥ - h h ¥ hH h h h hH h ¥ h
We are always 5.4 4.5 59 | 58 | 58 | 55 4.4 54 5.0 6.2 5.3 5.3 5.0 5.3 6.2
leamning : v P ‘? | A v - L7 Y v v v v 'y
We work 6.0 5.8 6.1 68 | 67 | 56 5.8 6.8 6.3 6.8 7.0 6.4 5.7 7.0 8.0
flexibly : v ) @ | ¥ W 4 @ Y 4 T~ W 'y 'y
6.1 70| 70 |72 |67 5.7 7.2 7.0 7.5 7.0 6.7 6.4 7.2 8.0
We are a team 6.8
A N ¥ 1+ 0 t 1+ ¥ ¥ t t
Staff 6.9 6.3 69 | 76 | 7.2 | 6.8 6.6 7.0 6.7 74 7.2 6.7 8.7 7.0 7.6
Engagement : v - A A | ¥ v + v ) 4 v v 4 A
5.0 56 | 57 | 58 | 54 5.5 6.2 5.5 6.6 6.0 6.1 5.5 5.4 6.6
Morale 5.6 J
4 - N i t ¥ t 1t 0l 4 ¥ )

Appendix 5 - Equalities Indicators from the Staff Survey 2022

Equalities Indicators from the Staff Survey

In its fifth year, Workforce Disability Equality Standards (WDES) breakdowns are
based on the responses to questions Do you have any physical or mental health

conditions or illnesses lasting or expected to last for 12 months or more? In 2020, this
guestion was shortened and the word ‘disabilities’ removed to align with the standard
guestion used by ONS. The question and related WDES results remain historically

comparable since 2019, but the WDES labels have been updated to better reflect the

new wording of the question. The word disability has now been replaced by ‘long-term
condition (LTC) or illness’

WDES (Workforce Disability Equality Standards) indicators reported in the
Staff Survey for Whittington Health

The table overleaf, shows improvement in 6 out of 9 WDES indicators with areas
such as experiencing abuse form managers and colleagues improving and where
staff are experiencing bullying or abuse, reporting has improved. There is also an
increase in staff with disabilities or long-term conditions believing the organisation
provides equal opportunities and a positive shift towards the organisation making
reasonable adjustments. There is an increase in staff experiencing harassment,
bullying or abuse from patients, relatives, or the public in the last 12 months — an
increase not mirrored in staff without a long-term condition. There is also a 1%
increase in staff feeling pressure from their managers to come in to work despite
feeling unwell — this may be because of the end of the government’s guidance on

Page 112

88| Page


https://gss.civilservice.gov.uk/policy-store/long-lasting-health-conditions-and-illness/#questions
https://gss.civilservice.gov.uk/policy-store/long-lasting-health-conditions-and-illness/#questions

NHS

Whittington Health

NHS Trust
protecting vulnerable people during the Covid-19 pandemic in 2020/21. There is also
a decrease in engagement for staff with LTC of 0.2 since 2021.
Table to show WDES Indicators 2019 2020 2021 2022
Lror [ VITRUT| wroor | WIHOUT " Lrcor | PITROUT! 1o or [ YITLOUT
illness : illness ; illness ; iliness ;

illness iliness illness illness
F'ercente.lge of staﬁ experiencing he_lralssment, bullying or abuse 33.4% 31.3% 32 8% 28.8% 33.4% 27.4% | 37.5% 28.0%
from patients, relatives, or the public in the last 12 months
F'ercentage_of staff experiencing harassment bullying or abuse from 24.1% 16.3% 29.5% 13.4% 22 7% 13.8% | 22:3% 11.2%
a manager in the last 12 months
Percentage of staff experiencing harassment, bullying or abuse 32.9% 23 5% 30.1% 19.0% 27 7% 19.9% |265% | 173%
from other colleagues in the last 12 months
Percentage of staff saying that the last time they experienced ) 48.7% 45.3% 43.8% 47 1% 44.7% 48.6% | 471% 48 9%
harassment, bullying or abuse at work, they or colleague reported it
Percentage of ggaﬁ who believe that lh?ll’ organlsathn provides 46.6% 50.2% 41.8% 49.7% 28.5% 4900, | 404% | 51.8%
equal opportunities for career progression or promotion
Percentage of staff who have felt pressure from their managers to o
come to work, despite not feeling well enough to perform their 33.5% 22% 37.4% | 216% | 285% | 22.0% |29.5% | 20.8%
duties
F'erce_ntage of staff satwgfled with the extent to which their 39.3% 51.6% 371% 53.7% 23.8% 46.5% | 347% 45 6%
organisation values their work
Percentage of staff with a long-lasting health condition or illness .
saying their employer has made adequate adjustment(s) to enable | 68.1% | 73.4% B7% | 75.5% | 62.3% N | B4T% N/A
them to carry out their work
Staff engagement score (0-10) 6.7 7.2 6.7 7.3 6.5 7.0 6.3 70

*Each 2022 response is graded in green if there has been a positive improvement for
staff with a LTC or illness and red if a decline from the previous year.

WRES indicators reported in the Staff Survey for Whittington Health

In its fifth year of reporting there are four indicators comparing the experience of
B.A.M.E and white staff. NHS England report the findings under ‘BME’ staff whilst
Whittington Health uses the acronym B.A.M.E.

*Each 2022 response is graded in green if there has been a positive improvement for
B.A.M.E staff or red if a decline from the previous year

The table overleaf shows a positive decline in three areas around discrimination at
work from staff, managers and a positive improvement around career progression.
There is a negative increase in staff experiencing harassment, bullying or abuse from
patients, relatives, or the public in the last twelve months of 0.7%. This mirrors the
national increase in bullying, harassment of abuse from patients or the public across
the board.

89 |Page

Page 113



NHS

Whittington Health
NHS Trust

Table to show WRES
: 2018 2019 2020
Indicators 2021 2022
Question BME |White| BME (White | BME | White | BME White | BME | White
staff | staff | staff | staff | staff | staff | staff | staff | staff | staff
Percentage of staff
experiencing
harassment, bullying or .
abuse from patients, 35.9% | 30.5% | 32.5% | 30.6% | 30.3% | 28.9% [28.6% |27.9% | 29.3% | 30.4%
relatives, or the public in
last 12 months
Percentage of staff
experiencing
harassment, bullying or | 36.2% | 31.4% | 31.9% | 29.9% [29.7% | 24.2% | 27-7%|25.7% | 25.4% | 24.3%
abuse from staff in last
12 months
Percentage of staff
believing that the
organisation provides .
equal opportunities for 35.8% | 56.2% | 39.7% | 58.2% | 39.7% | 56.4% (39.0% |54.4% | 41.2% | 57.5%
career progression or
promotion
Percentage of staff
experienced
discrimination at work .
from manager / team 20.3%| 95% |16.1% | 7.8% |16.9% | 82% |152% | &3% | 15.0% | 9.4%
leader or other
colleagues in last 12
months
Appendix 6 — Clinical Coding External Audit Results 2022/23
Primary Number of % coding
Diagnosis cases correct
Number of 200
primary diagnoses
Number of 175 87.50 %
primary diagnoses
Correct
Secondary Number of % coding
Diagnosis cases correct
Number of 600
secondary
diagnoses
Number of 543 90.50 %
secondary
diagnoses correct
90| Page

Page 114



NHS

Whittington Health

NHS Trust

Primary Number of % coding
Procedures cases correct
Number of 159
primary
procedures
Number of 147 92.45 %
primary
procedures
correct
Secondary Number of % coding
Procedures cases correct
Number of 348
secondary
procedures
Number of 306 87.93 %
secondary
procedures
correct

Appendix 7 — CQUIN progress for 2022/2023

Not achieved

Partial achievement
No requirement to report for the quarter

CCG 1 - Flu vaccinations for
frontline healthcare workers

Achieving 90% uptake of flu vaccinations by
frontline staff with patient contact.

CCG 2 - Appropriate antibiotic
prescribing for UTI in adults
aged 16+

Achieving 60% of all antibiotic prescriptions for UTI
in patients aged 16+ years that meet NICE
guidance for diagnosis and treatment.

CCG 3 - Recording of NEWS2
score, escalation time and
response time for unplanned
critical care admissions

Achieving 60% of all unplanned CCU admissions
from non-critical care wards of patients aged 18+,
having a NEWS2 score, time of escalation and time

of clinical response recorded.

CCG 4 - Compliance with timed
diagnostic pathways for cancer
services

Achieving 65% of referrals for suspected prostate,
colorectal, lung and oesophago-gastric cancer
meeting timed pathway milestones as set out in the
rapid cancer diagnostic and assessment pathways

CCG 5 - Treatment of
community acquired

Achieving 70% of patients with confirmed
community acquired pneumonia to be managed in

Page 115

Q1| Q2| Q3

91| Page



pneumonia in line with BTS
care bundle

NHS

Whittington Health

NHS Trust

concordance with relevant steps of BTS CAP Care
Bundle.

CCG 6 - Anaemia screening and
treatment for all patients
undergoing major elective
surgery

Ensuring that 60% of major elective blood loss
surgery patients are treated in line with NICE
guideline NG24.

CCG 7 - Timely communication
of changes to medicines to
community pharmacists via the
discharge medicines service

Timely communication of changes to medicines to
community pharmacists via the discharge
medicines service

CCG 8 - Supporting patients to
drink, eat and mobilise after
surgery

Ensuring that 70% of surgical inpatients are
supported to drink, eat and mobilise within 24 hours
of surgery ending.

CCG 9 - Cirrhosis and fibrosis
tests for alcohol dependent
patients

Achieving 35% of all unique inpatients (with at least
one-night stay) aged 16+ with a primary or
secondary diagnosis of alcohol dependence who
have an order or referral for a test to diagnose
cirrhosis or advanced liver fibrosis.

CCG 13 - Malnutrition
screening in the community

Achieving 70% of community hospital inpatients
and community nursing contacts having a nutritional
screening that meets NICE Quality Standard with
evidence of actions against identified risks

CCG 14 - Assessment,
diagnosis, and treatment of
lower leg wounds

Achieving 50% of patients with lower leg wounds
receiving appropriate assessment diagnosis and
treatment in line with NICE Guidelines.

Local Maternity CQUIN - 75%
of continuity of carer for
women from Black, Asian,
Mixed and Minority ethnic
communities and from the
most deprived groups.

Ensuring continuity of carer for 75% of women from
Black, Asian, Mixed and Minority ethnic
communities and from the most deprived groups.

92 |Page

Page 116



Whittington Health
NHS Trust

ﬂ \
Page 117 @
N, ™



This page is intentionally left blank



6TT obed

=/

P Islington
ageuk

Age UK Islington

6 W3]l epuaby



79 Islington
age UK

What can we help with?

©®

We help with any problems or issues
with money, staying safe, well and
independent at home, getting out and
about and other issues to do with day-

to-day living. ,’

02T abed

ALL AGES 16+
iight




,-D Islington
What do we do? ageukK

IO IO IO [ fooien

of specialist
* Support benefit applications * Find suitable social activities « IT skills for keeping in touch su ort sewices
* Debt management * Find accessible transport & routes & practical matters PP
* Access grants e.g. winter warmth * Support to start attending activities * Help find volunteering & employment
g gj wer of attorney * Befriending options * Finding education & training
«Q
iome [ (Y () ndepononc
SCEAME SRR I SN ® Exsrcise options for 8.0. pain resiet » Carers assessments - identify needs
* Manage repairs and maintenance * Help to find mental health support « Obtain telecare monitoring
* Organise a housing transfer * Re-engage with health services S Bl e o b
# Find suitable accommodation » Support for substance misuse o Direct payment support
O SRR AT R Mo * Support to keep warm » Support following hospital discharge

ALL AGES 16+




& : _ r .
. 68vr old v La® Islington
CIlent Story ¥ - dischals'geod from Jage UK
(Link Work) | A hospital
.y debt built up

Solutions -
mobility

Solutions -
debt

2¢T abed




° (AT R ~ .
Client story . 80yr old syl _Islington

(Casework Parkinsons, age UK
) ' TR e . Falls risk, PTSD,
Co-ordination) [ A isolation

Solutions -
personal

Solutions -
environment

c2T obed




How we work with GPs to help ;a‘gggfgn
support access and care

e Staff based at GP practices

e Involved in the Integrated Network meetings

e Staff have access to the GP EMIS database

e Non-medical support needs can be referred to Age UK
Islington

e Reducing pressures on health colleagues — Blue Badge
applications, PIP, Taxi Card

e Single referral point for GPs — form embedded in database

e Joint projects for alternative approaches

y2T abed




How we work with Adult Social Care < d‘gg"gltg"
to help support access and care

e Central Point of Access —staffed by three VCS organisations —
receive referrals from ASC

e Staff embedded in ASC teams e.g. Reablement

e Islington Carers Hub carries out Carers Assessments and
Direct Payment applications

e Receipt of signposting from ASC colleagues

e Support of clients when in receipt of an ASC care package

e Enabling access to benefits to fund support e.g. personal
assistant, home care

GeT obed



J.J Islington
age Uk

Challenges

e No crossover between GPs/health and Adult Social Care —no
jolnt system access

e Getting social workers to understand the VCS offer and wider,
outside their own offer

e Aware of resident struggle to get timely GP appointments

e Aware of difficulties experienced by residents who cannot
access information about services by email or internet

9¢T abed




Opportunities for the future 7 d)gg"fj’?"

e Growing number of clients
e Expanding organisation —additional contracts over last 3 years
e Great partnership working across the borough with health,
LBl and the VCS
e Envisaged partnership working with the Access Islington Hubs
e Small project work — cardio rehab social prescriber (ICB), carers
mental health peer support worker (C&l)
e Group based work — dietary/nutrition sessions: London Met
e Workshops for asylum seeks in partnership with LBI
e Cost of living support initiatives with LBl and the VCS

/2T abed



7.0 Islington
ageuk

Any Questions?




Agenda Item 11
& |SLINGTON

Chief Executive Department
Town Hall, London N1 2UD

Report of: Director of Adult Social Care

Meeting of: Date: Ward(s):
Health and Care Scrutiny
Committee
23 January 2023
| Delete as appropriate | Exempt | Non-exempt

SUBJECT: Quarter 2 (July — September 2023) Performance Report

1. Synopsis

1.1 Thecouncil has in place a suite of corporate performance indicators to help monitor progress in
delivering the outcomes set out in the council's Corporate Plan. Progress on key performance
measures are reported through the councils Scrutiny Committees on a quarterly basis to ensure
accountability to residents and to enable challenge where necessary.

1.2 This report sets out Quarter 2 2023/24 progress against targets for those performance indicators that

fall within the Adult Social Care outcome area, for which the Health and Care Scrutiny Committee has
responsibility .

1.3 Itis suggested that Scrutiny undertake a deep dive of one objective under the related corporate
outcome over a 12-month period. This wil enable more effective monitoring and chalenge as
required.

2. Recommendations
2.1 Tonote performance against targets in Quarter 2 2023/24 for measures relating to Health and
Independence

2.2 Tosuggest one objective under related corporate outcome for a deep dive review, to take place over
a 12-month period.

Page 129
Page 1 of 9



3.2

Background

A suite of corporate performance indicators has been agreed for 2023/24, which help track progress
in delivering the seven priorities set out in the Council's Islington Together 2030 Plan. Targets are set
on an annual basis and performance is monitored internally, through Departmental Management
Teams, Corporate Management Board and Joint Board, and externally through the Scrutiny
Committees.

The Health and Care Committee is responsible for monitoring and challenging performance for the
folowing key outcome area: Adult Social Care.

Scrutiny Committees can suggest a deep dive against one objective under the related corporate
outcome. This wil enable a comprehensive oversight of suggested objective, using triangulation of
data such as comphints, risk reports, resident surveys and financial data and, where able to, hearing
from partners, staff and residents, getting out into the community and visiting services, to better
understand the chalenge and provide more solid recommendations.

Quarter 2 performance update — Adult Social Care

Key performance indicators relating to Adult Social Care.

NEW: The percentage

ASC of people with an Not Monitoring
1 outcome of no Avaibble 81% only
support needed after val

a reablement

71% New New New

ASC

New admissions to
nursing or residential
care homes (all ages)

225

194

100 (200
end of year
target)

74

Yes

80

Yes

ASC

Percentage of ASC
service users
receiving long term
support who have
received at least one
review

48%

48%

26% (52%
end of year
target)

26%

Yes

24%

Yes

ASC

Percentage of service
users receiving
services in the
community through
Direct Payments

29%

29%

31%

29%

Simila
r

29%

Similar

Page 130
Page 2 of 9



ASC

Percentage of service
users who have been
supported with
safeguarding and who
are able to comment,
report that their
desired outcomes
were fully or partially
achieved

95%

95%

95%

92%

No

*Not
Available

*Not
Avaiable

ASC

NEW - The proportion
of section 42
safeguarding
enquiries where a risk
was identified and the
reported outcome was
that this risk was
reduced or removed

91%

93%

96%

91%

No

*Not
Available

*Not
Available

*Comparisons to last year are not available due to a change in reporting systems at the Mental Health Trust.

Page 131

Page 3 of 9




ASC
1

ASC

NEW: The percentage of people with an outcome of no support needed after a
reablement

This new indicator is one of the statutory reablement indicators that monttors outcomes aftera
period of reablement. The service aims to reable people and promote their independence. A high
percentage for this measure provides evidence of a good outcome in delaying dependency and
supporting recovery. Of the residents who received reablement in quarter 2, 72% were reabled and
did not require long term support from adult social care. No target has been set for this indicator as
this is newly reported. Performance is below end of year performance last year, however the data
this yearis more robust as more people are receiving reablement compared to quarter 2 last year.
Q2 performance is similar to the London 2022/23 performance (London 74%, England 78%).

New admissions to nursing or residential care homes (all ages)

The Council provides residential and nursing care support for those who are no longer able to live
independently in their own homes. The aim is to support more people to remain independent and
within the community for longer, therefore keeping admissions to a minimum. In Q2, there were 74
new admissions to care homes. Performance is better than Q2 last year (80 new admissions) and met
the target of having no more than 50 new admissions each quarter.

Recent benchmarking analysis from 2022/23 shows that as a rate, Islington has a similar or lower rate
of new admissions to a care home per 100,000 of the population compared to London and England.

e For those aged 65+, in 2022/23 435 per 100,000 people were admitted to a care home in
Islington. This is simiar to London (433 per 100,000) and better than England (561 per
100,000).

e For those aged 18-64, in 2022/23 8 per 100,000 people were admitted to a care home in
Islington. This is a lower rate than London (12 per 100,000) and better than England (15 per
100,000).

What action has been taken:

e Daiy Integrated Quality Assurance Meeting (IQAM) and daily hospital meeting to sign off any
packages of care or requests for placements. Chaired by member of the Senior Leadership Team
at Assistant Director level or above. The purpose of the meeting is to be assured that a strength-
based approach is being taken when assessing or reviewing residents and that the least restrictive
options are explored with innovative solutions being used to meet need and to achieve the best
outcomes for residents.

e Management actions are in place to provide assurance that all support packages are recorded in a
timely manner on the electronic care records system (LAS) to enable accurate performance
recording in this area.

Page 132
Page 4 of 9



ASC3

ASC4

Percentage of ASC service users receiving long term support who have received at least one
review

As of Q2 2023/24, 26% of the service users who have been receiving services since the beginning of the
year have received a support plan review. This is a cumulative measure with targets set for each quarter
with the aim of reviewing 52% of the eligible population by the year end. Performance is better than this
point last year (24%) and has met the target of 26%. It is important to note that this only reflects the
575 reviews on long-term service users with us for 12 months+. The team also completes reviews on
service users who have received care for less than 12 months. When we look at all review activity, teams
have completed 1,000 care act reviews including both annual and 6-week reviews.

What action has been taken:

e Daily Integrated Qualty Assurance Meeting (IQAM) and daily hospital meeting to sign off any
packages of care or requests for placements. Chaired by member of the Senior Leadership Team at
Assistant Director level or above. The purpose of the meeting is to be assured that a strength-based
approach is being taken when assessing or reviewing residents and that the least restrictive options
are explored with innovative solutions being used to meet need and to achieve the best outcomes for
residents.

Percentage of service users receiving services in the community through Direct
Payments

Providing support by direct payment aims to give the individual in need of support greater
choice and control over their life. In 2022/23 it was decided to increase the target for this
indicator from 30% to 31%. This decision was made to drive improvements in performance
and align with performance in the upper London quartie for this indicator. In Q2 2023/24 29%
of Islington service users receiving services in the community were supported via a Direct
Payment. Performance for this indicator is similar to last year (29%) and within 5% of the new
target ambition of 31%. Benchmarking from the Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework
(ASCOF) 2022/23 shows Islington is performing better than, London (25%) and England
(26%).

What action has been taken

e Direct payments support people to have greater choice, independence and control over
their lives. This quarter teams have worked with a number of people who have a support
reason of lkearning disability to enable them to start receiving support via a direct payment.

What action are you taking to keep it on track?

e There are a number of Direct Payments User and carers forums and working groups that
have been commenced that are focussing on improvements to processes that wil simplify
the Direct Payment process.

e Otherwork within the department includes the review and refresh of Direct Payments (DPs)
policies and procedures

e Direct Payments are being discussed in the daily qualty assurance meetings with the aim
to identify residents who would benefit from having a direct payments to more flexibly
manage their support.

Page 133
Page 5 of 9



e Management actions are in place to provide assurance that all support packages are recorded in a
timely manner on the electronic care records system (LAS) to enable accurate performance recording
in this area.

Page 134
Page 6 of 9



ASC Making Safeguarding Personal (An individualised approach to safeguarding that

5

focusses particularly on what the resident would like the outcome of the safeguarding
to be)

This indicator measures the percentage of service users who have been supported with
safeguarding, and who are able to comment, report that their desired outcomes were fuly
achieved.

The safeguarding adult’s duties are enshrined in the Care Act 2014. The Care Act formaly
introduced the requirement for local authorties to safeguard people using a personalised approach.
This approach is Making Safeguarding Personal (MSP). MSP places the service user at the centre
of safeguarding conversations, decisions and actions. One of the assurance mechanisms to track
that the Making Safeguarding Personal principles are being followed is by asking service users if
their desired outcomes were fully met at the end of the safeguarding investigation.

In Q2 2023/24, 92% of service users reported that their desired outcomes were fully or partialy
achieved. Quarter 2 performance is below the target (95%) and end of year performance last year
(95%). It should be noted that the data source for this indicator comes from both Adult Social Care
and the Mental Health Trust. Last quarter was the first time the Mental Health Trust used a new
reporting form and system after a national cyber attack last year, so as this embeds the expectation
is to see an improvement.

What action has been taken

e The Trust, the safeguarding hub and Islington Council are working closely together to
ensure that safeguarding practice is accurately recorded on the new Electronic Patient
Record system, RIO. These forms were newly introduced in quarter 1.

e A safeguarding handbook has been developed alongside internal training and forums
ongoing to discuss expectations. Moving forward, data collection will be automatic but still
requires managers to check constantly the quality and recording thereof.

¢ Ongoing forums for Safeguarding Adut Managers (SAM’s) and drop in for frontline workers
are continuing to discuss complex cases, obtain advice and ask about the safeguarding
processes.

What action are you taking to keep it on track?

e Working with Islington Digital Services to review the safeguarding module of our electronic case
records system to ensure that this, and other key questions, are mandatory to answer for staff
completing

e Safeguarding audits and reviews at the point the caseis closed, led by the Safeguarding Team
leads, wil focus on improving this indicator

¢ A weekly safeguarding closure panel is now in place to oversee the outcomes of safeguarding
enquiries and to support the embedding of best practice in this area.

e There has been an issue of different recording processes in Mental Health as a result of the
use of a different management information system in that service. Considerable work has
been undertaken in that area.

Page 135
Page 7 of 9



ASC NEW -The proportion of section 42 safeguarding enquiries where a risk was identified

6

and the reported outcome was that this risk was reduced or removed

This measure is included in the internal safeguarding performance monitoring and forms part of
the annual Safeguarding Adults Collection statutory submission (SAC). From 2023/24, this indicator
wil be included in the national Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF). Based on this, it
was decided to include the measure in the scrutiny report.

In Q2 2023/24, 91% of service users had a reported outcome of risk removed or reduced. Quarter
1 performanceis below the target (96%) and end of year performance last year (93%). It should
be noted that the data source for this indicator comes from both Adult Social Care and the Mental
Health Trust. This was the first quarter that the Mental Health Trust used a new reporting form and
system after a national cyber attack last year, so as this embeds the expectation is to see an
improvement.

What action has been taken

e The Trust, the safeguarding hub and Islington Council are working closely together to
ensure that safeguarding practice is accurately recorded on the new Electronic Patient
Record system, RIO. These forms were newly introduced in quarter 1.

e Support has been provided to the Mental Health Trustto review any potential data quality
chalenges with reporting this figure

What action are you taking to keep it on track?

e As in ASC 5, the Trust continues to hold forums for officers and SAM’s to explore
safeguarding matters, seek advice and support when overseeing difficut cases.

e Inpartnership with ASC and the Trust, a system has been developed to collect and quality
assure data within the Trust before passing over to Public Health to double check and
combine with ASC.

¢ Since RIO went live in August 2022, new safeguarding S42.1+2 forms have been designed
and buit onto the system to ensure the necessary data is being captured.

e A new dashboard has been developed and is currently in its final stages with plans to go
ive at the end of the year. This dashboard wil give better assurances of the data being
collected as it wil be established from RIO directly and reported via PowerBi which then
managers can use to support their teams.

e Presently data is collected on a spreadsheet and cross checked by a business manager
within C+I however we are aware this is open to human error due to the large data set.
The spreadsheet is also difficult to read and miniplate by managers. A checking system has
been put in place where the business manager and a senior officer within C+I meet weekly
to validate the data and that all returns must be approved/signed off by the senior before
submitting to Public Health.

Page 136
Page 8 of 9



5. Implications

Financial implications:

5.1  The cost of providing resources to monitor performance is met within each service’s core
budget.

Legal Implications:

5.2  Thereare no legal duties upon local authorities to set targets or monitor performance.
However, these enable us to strive for continuous improvement.

Environmental Implications and contribution to achieving a net zero carbon
Islington by 2030:

5.3  Thereare no environmental impact arising from monitoring performance.

Resident Impact Assessment:

5.4  Thecouncil must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of opportuntty, and
foster good relations, between those who share a relevant protected characteristic and those
who do not share it (section 149 Equality Act 2010).

5.5 Thecounci has a duty to have due regard to the need to remove or minimise disadvantages,
take steps to meet needs, in particular steps to take account of disabled persons' disabilties,
and encourage people to participate in public life. The council must have due regard to the
need to tackle prejudice and promote understanding.

Conclusion

6.1 The Councils Corporate Plan sets out a clear set of priorities, underpinned by a set of firm
commitments and actions that we wil take over the next four years to work towards our
vison of a Fairer Islington. The corporate performance indicators are one of a number of tools
that enable us to ensure that we are making progress in delivering key priorities whilst
maintaining good quality services.

Signed by:

Director of Adult Social Care Date:

Report Author:  Evie Lodge
Tel: 7536
Email: Evie.lodge@islington.gov.uk

Page 137
Page 9 of 9


mailto:Evie.lodge@islington.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

HEALTH AND CARE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24
Meeting date: 3 July 2023

Membership and Terms of Reference

Health and Wellbeing Update (Executive Member - verbal)
Update on GP Surgeries from NHS Integrated Care Board
Quarter 3 Performance Report — Public Health

Scrutiny Review — selection of topic

Work Programme 2023/24

oUnhwn=

Meeting date: 5 September 2023

Health and Wellbeing Update (Executive Member - verbal)

Scrutiny Review — Approval of Scrutiny Initiation Document & Initial Presentation
Healthwatch Annual Report and Work Programme (TBC)

Quarter 4 Performance Report - Adult Social Care

Scrutiny Review 2022-23: Adult Social Care Transformation Final Report

Work Programme 2023/24

oUnhwn =

Meeting date: 5 October 2023

Health and Wellbeing Update (Executive Member - verbal)
Scrutiny Report 2022/2023

Scrutiny Review — Witness Evidence

Camden and Islington Mental Health Trust Performance update
Quarter 4 Performance Report — Public Health

Work Programme 2023/24

ounhwne

Meeting date: 14 November 2023

Health and Wellbeing Update (Executive Member - verbal)
Scrutiny Review — Witness Evidence - Islington GP Federation
London Ambulance Service Performance update (TBC)
Quarter 1 Performance Report — Adult Social Care

Work Programme 2023/24

uhwwpnE

Meeting date: 18 December 2023

Page 139



Executive Member Update (verbal)

Executive Member for Health and Care - Annual Report
Scrutiny Review — CQC Witness Evidence

Islington Safeguarding Adults Board - Annual Report
Quarter 1 Performance Report — Public Health

Work Programme 2023/24

ouhwn =

Meeting date: 23 January 2024

Executive Member Update (verbal)

Scrutiny Review - Age UK witness evidence
Whittington Hospital Performance update (TBC)
Quarter 2 Performance Report — Adult Social Care
Work Programme 2023/24

AR NS

Meeting date: 4 March 2024

Executive Member Update (verbal)

Quarter 2 Performance Report — Public Health
Scrutiny Review - Access Islington Hubs
Scrutiny Review — draft recommendations
UCLH Performance update (TBC)

End of Life Care

Work Programme 2023/24

ocooouhwn=

Meeting date: 15 April 2024

Executive Member Update (verbal)

Overview of Addiction Services — TBC

Quarter 3 Performance Report — Public Health
Quarter 3 Performance Report — Adult Social Care
Update on Access to NHS Dentists

Moorfields Eye Hospital Performance report (TBC)
Scrutiny Review - Final Report

Work Programme 2023/24

NNowunhwphe

Other possible items

The Committee previously suggested that it may be helpful to review issues relating to direct
payments and the council’'s emerging Dementia Strategy.

Page 140



	Agenda
	8 Whittington Hospital Performance Update
	Final QUALITY ACCOUNT 2022-23 Complete

	9 Scrutiny Review - Age UK
	11 Quarter 2 Performance Report Adult Social Care
	12 Work Programme

